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SECTION I: GENERAL  

 

DEFINITIONS AND ABBREVIATIONS  

 

General Terms 

 

Term Description 

ñthe Companyò or the ñIssuerò  Unless the context otherwise indicates or implies, refers to Reid & Taylor 

(India) Limited, a company incorporated under the Companies Act and having 

its Registered Office at Marathon Innova IT Park, B2/501 and C-501, 5
th
 Floor, 

off Ganpatrao Kadam Marg, Lower Parel (West), Mumbai 400 013 

 

Company Related Terms 

 

Term Description 

Articles/Articles of Association Articles of Association of the Company  

Auditor The statutory auditor of the Company, Haribhakti & Co., Chartered Accountants 

BHRL Brandhouse Retails Limited 

Board/Board of Directors The board of directors of the Company or a duly constituted committee thereof 

Director(s) The director(s) of the Company, unless otherwise specified 

Franchisee Agreement Master franchisee agreement dated July 8, 2008, entered into between BHRL and 

the Company  

GIC Government of Singapore Investment Corporation Pte Ltd 

GICSI GIC Special Investments Private Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of GIC 

Group Companies Companies, firms and ventures promoted by the Promoters, irrespective of 

whether such entities are covered under section 370(1)(B) of the Companies Act 

or not and disclosed in the section ñGroup Companiesò on page 127 of this Draft 

Red Herring Prospectus  

Hartmarx Hartmarx Corporation USA 

Indivest Indivest Pte Ltd 

Memorandum/Memorandum of 

Association 

Memorandum of Association of the Company, unless the context otherwise 

specifies 

Promoter S. Kumars Nationwide Limited. For details, please see the section ñPromoter and 

Promoter Groupò on page 121 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus 

Promoter Group Unless the context otherwise requires, refers to such persons and entities 

constituting the promoter group of the Company in terms of Regulation 2(zb) of 

the SEBI Regulations and disclosed in the section ñPromoter and Promoter 

Groupò on page 121 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus 

R&T International Reid & Taylor (International) Limited 

Registered Office The registered office of the Company is located at Marathon Innova IT Park, 

B2/501 and C-501, 5
th
 Floor, off Ganpatrao Kadam Marg, Lower Parel (West), 

Mumbai 400 013 

RTHL  Reid & Taylor (Holdings) Limited 

Sale and Purchase Agreement Sale and purchase agreement dated July 8, 2008, entered into between SKNL and 

the Company 

Services Sharing Agreement Shared services and product supply agreement dated July 8, 2008, entered into 

between SKNL and the Company 

Shareholdersô Agreement  Shareholders Agreement dated June 20, 2008 entered into between the Company, 

Indivest Pte Ltd, the Promoter, Nitin S. Kasliwal, Jyoti N. Kasliwal, Anjani N. 

Kasliwal, Kartikeya N. Kasliwal, Tulija Enterprises Private Limited, 

Chamundeshwari Mercantile Private Limited and Anjani Finvest Private Limited 

SKNL S. Kumars Nationwide Limited 

TKH License Agreement Technical know-how license agreement dated July 8, 2008, entered into between 

Reid & Taylor (Holdings) Limited and the Company 

TM License Agreement Trademarks license agreement dated July 8, 2008, entered into between Reid & 



 

ii  

Term Description 

Taylor (International) Limited and the Company  

 

Issue Related Terms 

 

Term Description 

Allotment/Allot/Allotted Unless the context otherwise requires, means the allotment of Equity Shares 

pursuant to the Fresh Issue and the transfer of the Equity Shares pursuant to the 

Offer for Sale to successful Bidders 

Allottee A successful Bidder to whom the Equity Shares are/ have been Allotted 

Anchor Investor A Qualified Institutional Buyer, applying under the Anchor Investor Portion with 

a minimum Bid of Rs. 100 million 

Anchor Investor Allocation 

Notice 

Notice or intimation of allocation of Equity Shares sent to Anchor Investors who 

have been allocated Equity Shares after discovery of the Issue Price if the Issue 

Price is higher than the Anchor Investor Issue Price 

Anchor Investor Bid/Issue 

Period 

The day, one working day prior to the Bid/Issue Opening Date, on which Bids by 

Anchor Investors shall be submitted and allocation to Anchor Investors shall be 

completed 

Anchor Investor Issue Price The final price at which Equity Shares will be issued and Allotted to Anchor 

Investors in terms of the Red Herring Prospectus and the Prospectus, which price 

will be equal to or higher than the Issue Price but not higher than the Cap Price. 

The Anchor Investor Issue Price will be decided by the Company and the Selling 

Shareholders in consultation with the GCBRLMs and the BRLMs 

Anchor Investor Portion Up to 30% of the QIB Portion which may be allocated by the Company and the 

Selling Shareholders in consultation with the GCBRLMs and the BRLMs to 

Anchor Investors on a discretionary basis. One-third of the Anchor Investor 

Portion shall be reserved for domestic mutual funds, subject to valid Bids being 

received from domestic mutual funds at or above the price at which allocation is 

being done to Anchor Investors 

Antique Antique Capital Markets Private Limited  

Application Supported by 

Blocked Amount/ASBA 

An application, whether physical or electronic, used by all Bidders to make a Bid 

authorising an SCSB to block the Bid Amount in their ASBA Account 

maintained with the SCSB 

ASBA Account An account maintained by the ASBA Bidders with the SCSB and specified in the 

ASBA Bid cum Application Form for blocking an amount mentioned in the 

ASBA Bid cum Application Form 

ASBA Bid cum Application 

Form  

The form, whether physical or electronic, used by a Bidder to make a Bid 

through ASBA process, which contains an authorisation  

to block the Bid Amount in an ASBA Account and will be considered as the 

application for Allotment for the purposes of the Red Herring Prospectus and the 

Prospectus 

ASBA Bidder Prospective investors in this Issue who intend to Bid/apply through ASBA 

ASBA Revision Form The form used by the ASBA Bidders to modify the quantity of Equity Shares or 

the Bid Amount in any of their ASBA Bid cum Application Form or any 

previous ASBA revision form(s) 

Banker(s) to the Issue/Escrow 

Collection Bank(s) 

The banks which are clearing members and registered with SEBI as Bankers to 

the Issue and with whom the Escrow Account will be opened, in this case being 

[ǒ] 

Basis of Allotment The basis on which Equity Shares will be Allotted to successful Bidders under 

the Issue and which is described under ñBasis of Allotmentò in the section ñIssue 

Procedureò on page 253 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus 

Bid An indication to make an offer during the Bid/Issue Period by a Bidder pursuant 

to submission of the Bid cum Application Form, or during the Anchor Investor 

Bid/Issue Period by the Anchor Investors, to subscribe to the Equity Shares of the 

Company at a price within the Price Band, including all revisions and 



 

iii  

Term Description 

modifications thereto  

Bid Amount The highest value of the optional Bids indicated in the Bid cum Application Form 

Bid cum Application Form The form used by a Bidder (which, unless expressly provided, includes the 

ASBA Bid cum Application Form by an ASBA Bidder, as applicable) to make a 

Bid and which will be considered as the application for Allotment for the 

purposes of the Red Herring Prospectus and the Prospectus  

Bid/Issue Closing Date Except in relation to any Bids received from Anchor Investors, the date after 

which the Syndicate and the Designated Branches of the SCSBs will not accept 

any Bids for the Issue, which shall be notified in two national newspapers (one 

each in English and Hindi) and one in Marathi newspaper with wide circulation 

Bid/Issue Opening Date  Except in relation to any Bids received from Anchor Investors, the date on which 

the Syndicate and the Designated Branches of the SCSBs shall start accepting 

Bids for the Issue, which shall be notified in two national newspapers (one each 

in English and Hindi) and one in Marathi newspaper with wide circulation 

Bid/Issue Period  Except in relation to Anchor Investors, the period between the Bid/Issue Opening 

Date and the Bid/Issue Closing Date, inclusive of both days, during which 

prospective Bidders can submit their Bids, including any revisions thereof 

Bidder Any prospective investor who makes a Bid pursuant to the terms of the Red 

Herring Prospectus and the Bid cum Application Form 

Book Building Process/Method Book building process, as provided in Schedule XI of the SEBI Regulations, in 

terms of which this Issue is being made 

BRLMs/Book Running Lead 

Managers 

Book Running Lead Managers to the Issue, in this case being Antique Capital 

Markets Private Limited, Edelweiss Capital Limited, HSBC Securities and 

Capital Markets (India) Private Limited and IDBI Capital Market Services 

Limited 

CAN/Confirmation of 

Allotment Note 

Note or advice or intimation of Allotment sent to the Bidders who have been 

Allotted Equity Shares after Basis of Allotment has been approved by the 

Designated Stock Exchange 

Cap Price The higher end of the Price Band, above which the Issue Price will not be 

finalised and above which no Bids will be accepted 

Cut-off Price Issue Price, finalised by the Company and the Selling Shareholders in 

consultation with the GCBRLMs and the BRLMs. Only Retail Individual Bidders 

and Eligible Employees are entitled to Bid at the Cut-off Price, for a Bid Amount 

not exceeding Rs. 200,000. QIBs and Non-Institutional Bidders are not entitled to 

Bid at the Cut-off Price 

Designated Branches Such branches of the SCSBs which shall collect the ASBA Bid cum Application 

Forms used by the ASBA Bidders and a list of which is available on 

http://www.sebi.gov.in/pmd/scsb.pdf 

Designated Date The date on which funds are transferred from the Escrow Account or the amount 

blocked by the SCSB is transferred from the ASBA Account, as the case may be, 

to the Public Issue Account or the Refund Account, as appropriate, after the 

Prospectus is filed with the RoC, following which the Board of Directors shall 

Allot Equity Shares to successful Bidders in the Fresh Issue and the Selling 

Shareholders shall give delivery instructions for transfer of Equity Shares 

constituting the Offer for Sale 

Designated Stock Exchange [ǒ]  

Draft Red Herring Prospectus 

or DRHP  

This Draft Red Herring Prospectus dated December 9, 2010 issued in accordance 

with Section 60B of the Companies Act and the SEBI Regulations, which does 

not contain complete particulars of the price at which the Equity Shares will be 

issued and the size of the Issue  

Edelweiss Edelweiss Capital Limited  

Eligible Employees Permanent and full-time employees of the Company, the Promoter, a subsidiary 

company and material associates (entities whose financial statements are 

consolidated with the Companyôs financial statements as per AS 21) and the 

http://www.sebi.gov.in/pmd/scsb.pdf
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Term Description 

Directors of the Company as on [ǒ], 2010 

Eligible NRI(s) NRI(s) from jurisdictions outside India where it is not unlawful to make an issue 

or invitation under the Issue and in relation to whom the Red Herring Prospectus 

constitutes an invitation to subscribe to the Equity Shares   

Employee Reservation Portion  The portion of the Issue being up to [ǒ] Equity Shares shall be available for 

allocation to Eligible Employees  

Engagement Letter  Engagement letter dated October 6, 2010 between the Company, the GCBRLMs 

and the BRLMs  

Equity Shares Equity shares of the Company of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up unless otherwise 

specified in the context thereof 

Escrow Account  Account opened with the Escrow Collection Bank(s) and in whose favour the 

Bidders (excluding the ASBA Bidders) will issue cheques or drafts in respect of 

the Bid Amount when submitting a Bid 

Escrow Agreement Agreement to be entered into by the Company, the Registrar to the Issue, the 

GCBRLMs, the BRLMs, the Syndicate Members, the Escrow Collection Bank(s) 

and the Refund Bank(s) for collection of the Bid Amounts and where applicable, 

refunds of the amounts collected to the Bidders (excluding the ASBA Bidders) 

on the terms and conditions thereof 

Floor Price The lower end of the Price Band, at or above which the Issue Price will be 

finalised and below which no Bids will be accepted 

Fresh Issue  The fresh issue of [ǒ] Equity Shares aggregating up to Rs. 5,000 million by the 

Company  

Global Coordinators and Book 

Running Lead Managers or 

GCBRLMs 

Global Coordinators and Book Running Lead Managers to the Issue, in this case 

being JM Financial Consultants Private Limited, UBS Securities India Private 

Limited, J. P. Morgan India Private Limited and Religare Capital Markets 

Limited 

HSBC HSBC Securities and Capital Markets (India) Private Limited 

IDBI IDBI Capital Market Services Limited 

Issue The public issue of [ǒ] Equity Shares for cash at a price of Rs. [ǒ] each 

aggregating to Rs. [ǒ] million comprising the Fresh Issue and Offer for Sale. It 

comprises of a Net Issue to the public aggregating to Rs. [ǒ] million and a 

reservation for Eligible Employees aggregating up to Rs. [ǒ] million 

Issue Agreement The agreement entered into on December 9, 2010 between the Company, the 

Selling Shareholders, the GCBRLMs and the BRLMs, pursuant to which certain 

arrangements are agreed to in relation to the Issue 

Issue Price The final price at which Equity Shares will be issued and Allotted in terms of the 

Red Herring Prospectus. The Issue Price will be decided by the Company and the 

Selling Shareholders in consultation with the GCBRLMs and the BRLMs on the 

Pricing Date 

Issue Proceeds The proceeds of the Issue  

J. P. Morgan J. P. Morgan India Private Limited 

JM Financial  JM Financial Consultants Private Limited 

Mutual Fund Portion 5% of the QIB Portion (excluding the Anchor Investor Portion), or [ǒ] Equity 

Shares shall be available for allocation to Mutual Funds only 

Mutual Funds A mutual fund registered with SEBI under the SEBI (Mutual Funds) Regulations, 

1996, as amended 

Net Issue The Issue less than Employees Reservation Portion  

Net Proceeds Proceeds of the Fresh Issue less the Issue expenses. For further information about 

use of the Issue Proceeds and the Issue expenses, please see the section ñObjects 

of the Issueò on page 32 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus 

Non-Institutional Bidders All Bidders that are not QIBs or Retail Individual Bidders and who have Bid for 

Equity Shares for an amount of more than Rs. 200,000 (but not including NRIs 

other than Eligible NRIs) 

Non-Institutional Portion The portion of the Issue being not less than [ǒ] Equity Shares shall be available 
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Term Description 

for allocation to Non-Institutional Bidders 

Non-Resident A person resident outside India, as defined under FEMA and includes a Non 

Resident Indian, FIIs registered with SEBI and FVCIs registered with SEBI 

Offer for Sale The offer for sale of 11,964,218 Equity Shares by S. Kumars Nationwide Limited 

and 2,991,055 Equity Shares by Indivest Pte Ltd at the Issue Price, pursuant to 

the terms of the Red Herring Prospectus   

Price Band Price Band of a minimum price of Rs. [ǒ] (Floor Price) and the maximum price 

of Rs. [ǒ] (Cap Price) and includes revisions thereof. The Price Band and the 

minimum Bid Lot size for the Issue will be decided by the Company the Selling 

Shareholders in consultation with the GCBRLMs and the BRLMs and advertised, 

at least two working days prior to the Bid/Issue Opening Date, in two national 

newspapers (one each in English and Hindi) and one in Marathi newspaper with 

wide circulation 

Pricing Date The date on which the Company and the Selling Shareholders in consultation 

with the GCBRLMs and the BRLMs finalises the Issue Price  

Prospectus  The Prospectus to be filed with the RoC in accordance with Section 60 of the 

Companies Act, containing, inter alia, the Issue Price that is determined at the 

end of the Book Building Process, the size of the Issue and certain other 

information 

Public Issue Account Account opened with the Bankers to the Issue to receive monies from the Escrow 

Account and from the SCSBs on the Designated Date 

QIB Portion The portion of the Issue being not more than [ǒ] Equity Shares shall be available 

for allocation to QIB Bidders  

Qualified Institutional Buyers 

or QIBs 

Public financial institutions as specified in Section 4A of the Companies Act, 

scheduled commercial banks, mutual fund registered with SEBI, FIIs and sub-

account registered with SEBI (other than a sub-account which is a foreign 

corporate or foreign individual), multilateral and bilateral development financial 

institutions, venture capital fund registered with SEBI, foreign venture capital 

investor registered with SEBI, state industrial development corporation, 

insurance company registered with IRDA, provident fund with minimum corpus 

of Rs. 250 million, pension fund with minimum corpus of Rs. 250 million, 

National Investment Fund, insurance funds set up and managed by the army, 

navy or air force of the Union of India and insurance funds set up and managed 

by Department of Posts, India 

Red Herring Prospectus or RHP The Red Herring Prospectus issued in accordance with Section 60B of the 

Companies Act, which does not have complete particulars of the price at which 

the Equity Shares are offered and the size of the Issue. The Red Herring 

Prospectus will be filed with the RoC at least three days before the Bid/Issue 

Opening Date and will become a Prospectus upon filing with the RoC after the 

Pricing Date 

Refund Account(s) The account opened with the Escrow Collection Bank(s), from which refunds, if 

any, of the whole or part of the Bid Amount (excluding the ASBA Bidder) shall 

be made 

Refund Bank(s) [ǒ] 

Refunds through electronic 

transfer of funds 

Refunds through NECS, Direct Credit, RTGS or NEFT, as applicable 

Registrar to the Issue/Registrar Registrar to the Issue, in this case being Bigshare Services Private Limited 

Religare Religare Capital Markets Limited  

Retail Individual Bidder(s) Individual Bidders who have Bid for Equity Shares for an amount not more than 

Rs. 200,000 in any of the bidding options in the Issue (including HUFs applying 

through their Karta and Eligible NRIs and does not include NRIs other than 

Eligible NRIs) 

Retail Portion The portion of the Issue being not less than [ǒ] Equity Shares shall be available 

for allocation to Retail Individual Bidder(s) 
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Term Description 

Revision Form The form used by the Bidders (which, unless expressly provided, includes the 

ASBA Revision Form) to modify the quantity of Equity Shares or the Bid 

Amount in any of their Bid cum Application Forms or any previous Revision 

Form(s) 

Self Certified Syndicate 

Bank(s) or SCSB(s) 

A banker to the Issue registered with SEBI, which offers the facility of ASBA 

and a list of which is available on http://www.sebi.gov.in/pmd/scsb.pdf 

Selling Shareholders S. Kumars Nationwide Limited and Indivest Pte Ltd 

Syndicate Agreement The Agreement to be entered into amongst the Syndicate, the Company and the 

Selling Shareholders in relation to the collection of Bids in this Issue (excluding 

Bids from the Bidders applying through ASBA process) 

Syndicate Members [ǒ]  

Syndicate/ members of the 

Syndicate 

The GCBRLMs and the BRLMs and the Syndicate Members 

TRS/Transaction Registration 

Slip 

The slip or document issued by the Syndicate, or the SCSB (only on demand), as 

the case may be, to the Bidder as proof of registration of the Bid 

UBS UBS Securities India Private Limited  

Underwriters The GCBRLMs, the BRLMs and the Syndicate Members  

Underwriting Agreement The agreement amongst the Underwriters, the Company and the Selling 

Shareholders to be entered into on or after the Pricing Date 

Working Days All days excluding Sundays and bank holidays in Mumbai 

 

Technical/Industry Related Terms  

 

Term Description 

EBO Exclusive Brand Outlets 

MBO Multi -Brand Outlets 

T&A  Textile and Apparel 

 

Conventional Terms  
 

Term Description 

AGM Annual General Meeting 

AS/Accounting Standards Accounting Standards issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 

Bn Billion  

BPLR Benchmark Prime Lending Rates 

BSE Bombay Stock Exchange Limited  

CAD Computer aided drafting 

CAGR Compounded Annual Growth Rate 

CARE Credit Analysis & Research Limited 

CDSL Central Depository Services (India) Limited 

CHF or Franc CHF is the official currency of Switzerland 

CIN Corporate Identity Number  

CMIE Centre for monitoring Indian economy 

Companies Act The Companies Act, 1956 and amendments thereto  

CVD Countervailing duty 

Depositories NSDL and CDSL 

Depositories Act  The Depositories Act, 1996, as amended from time to time 

DIN Director Identification Number 

DP ID Depository Participantôs Identification 

DP/Depository Participant A depository participant as defined under the Depositories Act 

EBITDA Earnings Before Interest, Tax, Depreciation and Amortisation 

EGM Extraordinary General Meeting 

EPCG Export Promotion Capital Goods 
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Term Description 

EPS Earnings Per Share i.e., is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the 

period attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of 

equity shares outstanding during the period 

EU European Union 

FCNR Foreign Currency Non-Resident 

FDI Foreign Direct Investment 

FEMA 

 

Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 read with rules and regulations 

thereunder and amendments thereto 

FEMA Regulations  FEMA (Transfer or Issue of Security by a Person Resident Outside India) 

Regulations 2000 and amendments thereto 

FII(s) Foreign Institutional Investors as defined under SEBI (Foreign Institutional 

Investor) Regulations, 1995, as amended, and registered with SEBI under 

applicable laws in India 

Financial Year/Fiscal/FY Unless stated otherwise, the period of 12 months ending March 31 of that 

particular year 

FIPB Foreign Investment Promotion Board 

FVCI Foreign Venture Capital Investors 

GBP or £ British Pound 

GDP Gross Domestic Product 

GIR General Index Register 

GoI/Government Government of India 

HUF Hindu Undivided Family 

ICAI  Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 

IFRS International Financial Reporting Standards 

IIP Index of Industrial Production 

Income Tax Act The Income Tax Act, 1961, as amended 

Indian GAAP Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in India 

IPO Initial Public Offering 

LIBOR London Interbank Offered Rate 

Mn/mn/million Million  

MNC Multinational Corporation  

NA/n.a. Not Applicable 

National Investment Fund National Investment Fund set up by resolution no. F. No. 2/3/2005-DDII dated 

November 23, 2005 of the Government of India published in the Gazette of India 

NAV Net Asset Value  

NEFT National Electronic Fund Transfer 

NR Non-resident 

NRE Account Non Resident External Account 

NRI Non Resident Indian, being a person resident outside India, as defined under 

FEMA and the FEMA Regulations 

NRO Account Non Resident Ordinary Account 

NSDL National Securities Depository Limited 

NSE The National Stock Exchange of India Limited 

NTP National Textile Policy, 2000  

OCB/Overseas Corporate Body A company, partnership, society or other corporate body owned directly or 

indirectly to the extent of at least 60% by NRIs including overseas trusts, in 

which not less than 60% of beneficial interest is irrevocably held by NRIs 

directly or indirectly as defined under the FEMA Regulations. OCBs are not 

allowed to invest in this Issue  

OTEXA Office of Textiles Commissioner 

p.a. Per annum 

P/E Ratio Price/Earnings Ratio 

PAN Permanent Account Number  
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Term Description 

PAT Profit After tax 

PLR  Prime Lending Rate 

RBI The Reserve Bank of India 

RoC The Registrar of Companies, Maharashtra located at 100, Everest, Marine 

Drive, Mumbai 400 002 

RoNW Return on Net Worth 

Rs./Rupees Indian Rupees 

RTGS Real Time Gross Settlement 

SCRA Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956, as amended  

SCRR Securities Contracts (Regulation) Rules, 1957, as amended  

SEBI The Securities and Exchange Board of India constituted under the SEBI Act, 

1992, as amended  

SEBI Act Securities and Exchange Board of India Act 1992, as amended  

SEBI Regulations SEBI (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009, as 

amended  

SEBI Takeover Regulations  Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and 

Takeovers) Regulations, 1997, as amended 

Securities Act U.S. Securities Act, 1933, as amended from time to time 

SICA Sick Industries Companies (Special Provisions) Act, 1985 

SITP Scheme for Integrated Textile Parks. A scheme launched in 2005, during the 

Tenth Five Year Plan by merging the two previously existing schemes namely, 

the Scheme for Apparel Parks for Exports and the Textile Centre Infrastructure 

Development Scheme 

Sq. Ft./sq. ft. Square feet 

Sq. Mts./sq. mts. Square metres 

State Government The government of a state in India 

Stock Exchanges BSE and the NSE 

TUFS Technology Up-gradation Fund Scheme. A scheme launched by the Ministry of 

Textiles for the textile and jute industries for a five years time frame with effect 

from April 1, 1999 to March 31, 2004 

TWS Total Wardrobe Solutions 

UK United Kingdom 

US /United States/USA United States of America 

US GAAP Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in the United States of America 

USD/US$ United States Dollars 

VAT Value added tax 

VCFs Venture Capital Funds as defined in and registered with SEBI under the SEBI 

(Venture Capital Fund) Regulations, 1996, as amended  
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PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL, INDUSTRY AND MARKET DATA  

 

Financial Data  

 

Unless stated otherwise, the financial data in this Draft Red Herring Prospectus is derived from the audited financial 

statements, prepared in accordance with Indian GAAP and the Companies Act and restated in accordance with the 

SEBI Regulations and included in this Draft Red Herring Prospectus. In this Draft Red Herring Prospectus, any 

discrepancies in any table between the total and the sums of the amounts listed are due to rounding off.  

 

The Companyôs fiscal year commences on April 1 and ends on March 31 of the next year, so all references to 

particular fiscal year, unless stated otherwise, are to the 12 months period ended on March 31 of that year.  

 

There are significant differences between Indian GAAP, US GAAP and IFRS. Accordingly, the degree to which the 

Indian GAAP financial statements included in this Draft Red Herring Prospectus will provide meaningful 

information is entirely dependent on the readerôs level of familiarity with Indian accounting practices. Any reliance 

by persons not familiar with Indian accounting practices on the financial disclosures presented in this Draft Red 

Herring Prospectus should accordingly be limited. We do not provide reconciliation of our financial statements to 

IFRS or US GAAP financial statements. The Company has not attempted to explain those differences or quantify 

their impact on the financial data included herein, to the investors and the investors shall consult their own advisors 

regarding such differences and their impact on the financial data. 

 

Currency and Units of Presentation  

 

All references to: 

 

 ñCHFò or ñFrancò or are to the official currency of Switzerland; 

 ñEuroò or ñúò are to the official currency of the member states of European Union; 

 ñGBPò or ñÃò are to the official currency of United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland, 

together with its territories and possessions;  

 ñRupeesò or ñRs.ò are to Indian Rupees, the official currency of the Republic of India; and  

 ñUS$ò or ñUSDò are to United States Dollars, the official currency of the United States of America.  

 ñJPYò are to Japanese Yen, the official currency of Japan. 

 

Exchange Rates 

 

This Draft Red Herring Prospectus contains conversions of certain US Dollar and other currency amounts into 

Indian Rupees that have been presented solely to comply with the requirements of the SEBI Regulations. These 

conversions should not be construed as a representation that those US Dollar or other currency amounts could have 

been, or can be converted into Indian Rupees, at any particular rate.  

 

Industry and Market Data  

 

Unless stated otherwise, industry and market data used in this Draft Red Herring Prospectus has been obtained or 

derived from publicly available information as well as industry publications and sources. Industry publications 

generally state that the information contained in those publications has been obtained from sources believed to be 

reliable but that their accuracy and completeness are not guaranteed and their reliability cannot be assured. 

Accordingly, no investment decision should be made on the basis of such information. Although industry data used 

in this Draft Red Herring Prospectus is reliable, it has not been independently verified.  

 

The extent to which the market and industry data used in this Draft Red Herring Prospectus is meaningful depends 

on the readerôs familiarity with and understanding of the methodologies used in compiling such data.  

 

The section titled ñIndustry Overviewò has been prepared and provided by CARE Research ("CARE"). CARE 
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obtained the information set forth in its respective report from its own independent research, as well as from publicly 

available third-party sources identified in each such report, including Government agencies. While CARE believes 

that the descriptions and conclusions contained in its report are reasonable, there can be no assurance that the 

information contained in such report is accurate. The Industry Overview also includes projections and estimates 

regarding demand and market share for the Indian apparel industry. For purposes of preparing these projections and 

estimates, CARE has relied on certain assumptions regarding contingencies and other matters that are not within the 

control of the Company, CARE or any other person. These assumptions are inherently subject to significant 

uncertainties and actual results will differ, perhaps materially, from those projected. Therefore, no representations 

are made or intended, nor should any be inferred, with respect to the likely existence of a particular future set of 

facts or circumstances. 
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS  

 

This Draft Red Herring Prospectus contains certain ñforward-looking statementsò. These forward-looking 

statements generally can be identified by words or phrases such as ñaimò, ñanticipateò, ñbelieveò, ñexpectò, 

ñestimateò, ñintendò, ñobjectiveò, ñplanò, ñprojectò, ñshallò, ñwillò, ñwill continueò, ñwill pursueò or other words or 

phrases of similar import. Similarly, statements that describe the Companyôs strategies, objectives, plans or goals are 

also forward-looking statements. All forward-looking statements are subject to risks, uncertainties and assumptions 

about the Company that could cause actual results and property valuations to differ materially from those 

contemplated by the relevant forward-looking statement.  

 

Actual results may differ materially from those suggested by the forward-looking statements due to risks or 

uncertainties associated with the expectations with respect to, but not limited to, regulatory changes pertaining to the 

industries in India in which the Company has businesses and its ability to respond to them, its ability to successfully 

implement its strategy, its growth and expansion, technological changes, its exposure to market risks, general 

economic and political conditions in India and which have an impact on its business activities or investments, the 

monetary and fiscal policies of India, inflation, deflation, unanticipated turbulence in interest rates, foreign exchange 

rates, equity prices or other rates or prices, the performance of the financial markets in India and globally, changes 

in domestic laws, regulations and taxes and changes in competition in its industry. Important factors that could cause 

actual results to differ materially from the Companyôs expectations include, but are not limited to, the following:  

 

 inadequate supply of raw materials or failure to receive timely supply or on acceptable commercial terms; 

 deficiency in capabilities of outside manufacturers;  

 fluctuation in the prices of raw materials;  

 inability of the Company to obtain or renew its intellectual property related contractual arrangements;  

 inability of the Company to reduce its cost of production; 

 inability of the Company to manage its growth; 

 general economic and political conditions;  

 termination of any contract entered into with third parties; and 

 delay in completion of projects due to force majeure reasons; 

 

For further discussion of factors that could cause the actual results to differ from the expectations, please see the 

sections ñRisk Factorsò, ñBusinessò and ñManagementôs Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and 

Results of Operationsò on pages xii , 79 and 178 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus, respectively. By their nature, 

certain market risk disclosures are only estimates and could be materially different from what actually occurs in the 

future. As a result, actual gains or losses could materially differ from those that have been estimated.  

 

Forward-looking statements reflect the current views as of the date of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus and are not 

a guarantee of future performance. Neither the Company, its Directors, the Selling Shareholders, the Underwriters 

nor any of their respective affiliates have any obligation to update or otherwise revise any statements reflecting 

circumstances arising after the date hereof or to reflect the occurrence of underlying events, even if the underlying 

assumptions do not come to fruition. In accordance with SEBI requirements, the Company, the Selling Shareholders, 

the GCBRLMs and the BRLMs will ensure that investors in India are informed of material developments until the 

time of the grant of listing and trading permission by the Stock Exchanges. 
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SECTION II: RISK FACTORS  

 

An investment in equity shares involves a high degree of risk. Prospective investors should carefully consider all the 

information in this Draft Red Herring Prospectus, including the risks and uncertainties described below, before 

making an investment in the Companyôs Equity Shares. The risks and uncertainties described in this section are not 

the only risks that are currently faced by the Company. Additional risks and uncertainties not presently known to the 

Company or that it currently believes to be immaterial may also have an adverse effect on the Companyôs business, 

results of operations and financial condition. If any of the following risks, or other risks that are not currently 

known or are now deemed immaterial, actually occur, the Companyôs business, results of operations and financial 

condition could suffer, the price of its Equity Shares could decline, and investors may lose all or part of their 

investment. In making an investment decision, prospective investors must rely on their own examination of the 

Company and the terms of the Issue, including the merits and risks involved. 

 

Unless otherwise stated, the financial information of the Company used in this section is derived from its audited 

financial statements under Indian GAAP, as restated. Unless otherwise stated, the Company is not in a position to 

specify or quantify the financial or other risks mentioned herein.  

 

Internal Risk Related to the Company 

 

1) The Company relies on a continued supply of raw materials and any disruption in that supply could have 

an adverse effect on the Company. 

 

The Company currently relies on raw materials purchased from a number of domestic suppliers. However, 

if timely and adequate supplies of raw materials on acceptable commercial terms are not available to the 

Company, or if there are significant increases in the cost of these materials, the Companyôs margins, results 

of operations and financial condition may be adversely affected.   

 

2) The Company relies on outsourced manufacturing capabilities and the failure to maintain a timely and 

adequate supply of such outsourcing could have an adverse effect on the Company. 

 

The Company relies on outsourcing for low value added processes while it maintains high value added 

manufacturing processes in-house. The Company has not entered into any formal long term agreement with 

any entity to outsource such processes. If the timely and adequate supply of outsourced processes are not 

available to the Company on acceptable commercial terms, or if there are significant increases in the cost of 

these outsourced processes, the Companyôs results of operations and financial condition may be adversely 

affected. Furthermore, any failure on the Companyôs part to maintain a high level of quality or any failure 

by such outside manufacturers to comply with labour standards could adversely affect the Companyôs 

reputation. 

 

3) The Company relies on intellectual property and technology provided by third parties and its business 

may suffer if these arrangements are terminated or not renewed. 

 

The Company is the licensed user of certain trademarks incorporating the words óReid & Taylorô and/or 

certain devices for use in India by virtue of the Trademark License Agreement between Reid & Taylor 

(International) Limited and the Company signed in July 2008 and which became retroactively effective 

from January 1, 2008 (the ñAgreementò). The Agreement grants an exclusive and perpetual license to use 

the óReid & Taylorô trademark in India and other territories specified in the Agreement. The Agreement 

shall continue in perpetuity unless the Company commits a material breach or until it is terminated by 

either party for reasons such as liquidation, change of management or nationalisation by the Government or 

any local authority or if the Company is declared a ñsick undertakingò under the Sick Industrial Companies 

(Special Provisions) Act, 1985. 

 

The Company has also entered into a technical know-how licence agreement with Reid & Taylor 

(Holdings) Limited on July 8, 2008 which became retroactively effective on January 1, 2008. The technical 

know-how licence agreement grants an exclusive, non-transferable, perpetual right and license to use the 

know-how necessary for the manufacture of óReid & Taylorô products in India. This technical know-how 
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license agreement shall continue in perpetuity unless the Company commits a material breach or until it is 

terminated by either party for reasons such as liquidation, change of management, nationalisation by the 

Government or any local authority or if the Company is declared a ñsick undertakingò under the Sick 

Industrial Companies (Special Provisions) Act, 1985. 

 

In addition, the Company has entered into a license agreement (through a novation agreement and 

guarantee in October 2008) with Austin Reed Limited for use of the óStephens Brothersô brand name and 

the processes it employs to manufacture its products. Pursuant to the terms of this license agreement, the 

Company has an exclusive, revocable and non-transferable license which is valid for a term of five years 

from September 1, 2006 to December 31, 2011. The agreement may be renewed for a further period of five 

years, provided that the Company has achieved a net retail sales value of £2.45 million in 2011. Austin 

Reed Limited or the Company are entitled to terminate the agreement inter alia if the other party takes any 

action under any law regarding insolvency or relief for debtors or makes any arrangement or compromise 

with its creditors whatsoever.  

 

In the event these agreements are terminated or the Company is unable to renew its trademark license 

agreement for use of the óStephens Brothersô name on the same or other acceptable terms, the Company 

may lose the benefit of that intellectual property and the legal protection to use certain of the processes it 

employs to manufacture its products, which may prevent the Company from manufacturing and selling 

many of its products which in the future may adversely affect its business. In the future, the Company may 

also need to obtain additional licenses for new or existing technologies. The Company cannot provide any 

assurances that such license agreements will be obtained or renewed on acceptable terms or at all, and, if 

not, the Companyôs results of operations and financial condition could be adversely affected. 

 

4) There is outstanding litigation involving the Company, the Directors, the Promoter and the Group 

Companies, which if determined adversely, could affect the Companyôs business and results of 

operations.  

 

There is outstanding litigation involving the Company, the Directors, the Promoter and the Group 

Companies. These legal proceedings are pending at different levels of adjudication before various courts, 

enquiry officers and tribunals. The amounts claimed in these proceedings have been disclosed to the extent 

ascertainable and include amounts claimed jointly and severally from the Company and other parties. 

Should any new developments arise, such as any change in applicable Indian law or any rulings against the 

Company by appellate courts or tribunals, the Company may need to make provisions in its financial 

statements that could increase expenses and current liabilities. Any adverse decision may have an adverse 

effect on the Companyôs business, results of operations and financial condition. The brief details of such 

outstanding litigation as of the date of the Draft Red Herring Prospectus are as follows:   

 

Litigation against the Company  

 

Sr. 

No. 

Nature of litigation  Number of 

outstanding cases 

Aggregate approximate amount 

involved 

(in Rs. million) 

1. Tax proceedings 4 46.7 

 

Litigation against the Directors 

  

Sr. 

No. 

Name of 

Director  

Nature of 

litigation  

Number of 

outstanding 

cases 

Aggregate approximate amount 

involved 

(in Rs. million) 

Nil  Nil  Nil  Nil  Nil  
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Litigation against the Promoter  

 

Sr. 

No. 

Name of 

Promoter 

Nature of litigation  Number of 

outstanding cases 

Aggregate 

approximate amount 

involved 

(in Rs. million) 

1. SKNL Criminal proceedings 1 - 

2. SKNL Labour proceedings 92 8.9 

3. SKNL Tax proceedings 1 3.4 

4. SKNL Civil proceedings 3 1.2 

 

Litigation against the Group Companies   

 

Sr. 

No. 

Name of Group Company Nature of 

litigation  

Number of 

outstanding cases 

Aggregate 

approximate amount 

involved 

1. HMX Poland sp. Z o. o Arbitration 

proceedings 

1 US $4.2 million (Rs. 

189.44 million)
(1)

 

2. Remala Trading B.V. Civil proceedings 1 - 

3. SKNL North America B. V. Civil proceedings 1 - 
(1)

 The Company has used an exchange rate of Rs. 45.105 being the reference rate as of December 3, 2010. 

(Source: www.xe.com). 

 

For details, please see the section ñOutstanding Litigation and Material Developmentsò on page 201 of this 

Draft Red Herring Prospectus. 

 

5) The Company has received qualifications in its audit reports in relation to its financial statements for the 

year ended March 31, 2010 and may have auditor qualifications in the future. 

 

The Companyôs auditors have included qualifications in their report with respect to the year ended March 

31, 2010. Further, in the Audit Report dated November 25, 2010 and included in this Draft Red Herring 

Prospectus at pages 139 to 177, the auditors have noted that during the financial year ended March 31, 

2010, sundry debtors, loans and advances including capital advances and sundry creditors, amounting to 

Rs. 473.7 million, Rs. 694.7 million and Rs. 533.8 million, respectively, are subject to confirmations, 

reconciliation and consequential adjustment, if any. In addition, the auditorôs report contained in the 

Companyôs annual report for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2010 contains a qualification stating that the 

Companyôs prevailing internal audit system must be strengthened to be commensurate with the size of the 

Company and the nature of its business.   

 

Further, the auditorôs report contained in the Companyôs annual report for the fiscal years ended March 31, 

2009 and 2010 contain a qualification stating that the Company has overstated its profits by an amount of 

Rs. 219.8 million (for fiscal year ending March 31, 2010) by amortizing the amount (starting from October 

1, 2008 till March 31, 2020) paid to its lenders as part of corporate debt restructuring of the Promoter (to 

which the Company is also a part) pertaining to earlier years. The auditors are of the view that such 

amounts should have been charged to the óProfit and Lossô account and should not have been carried 

forward; which the auditors have stated is not in line with the requirements of the applicable accounting 

standards. The Auditorôs Report contained in the Draft Red Herring Prospectus at pages 139 to 177 does 

not have the qualification because the accounts have been restated by the auditors as required by SEBI and 

have charged the amount of Rs. 219.8 million to the óProfit and Lossô account. However, this qualification 

has been stated in past annual reports of the auditors and will continue to be stated in the future, till such 

time that the Company either charges off the current outstanding balance of Rs. 219.8 million to its profit 

and loss account or till the year 2020. 

 

Additionally, the accounting procedures used for purposes of the restated financial statements included in 

this Draft Herring Prospectus are different from those used in the past and what may be used in the future. 

As such, future audit reports will contain auditor qualifications if the Company reverts back to its prior 
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accounting procedures. 

 

6) Fluctuations in raw material prices that the Company is unable to pass on to customers may affect the 

Companyôs earnings. 

 

The raw materials used in the manufacture of most of the Companyôs products are primarily polyester, 

viscose, raw wool, cotton, blended fabrics and other stores and spares. In fiscal years 2009 and 2010 and 

the six month period ended September 30, 2010, raw materials accounted for approximately 43%, 50% and 

51%, respectively, of the Companyôs total expenses. As a raw material-intensive manufacturing operation, 

the Company is exposed to a variety of market risks, including the effects of changes in commodity prices. 

Changes in the prices of raw materials cannot always be predicted or hedged. The costs at which the 

Company procures certain of its raw materials have in the past been subject to significant increases. There 

can be no assurance that the price of the Companyôs raw materials will not increase in the future. Although 

the Company has been able to pass on many of its raw material increases to its customers in the past, there 

can be no assurance that the Company will be able to do so in the future. A significant increase in the price 

of raw materials that cannot be passed on to its customers could have a material adverse effect on the 

Companyôs results of operations and financial condition. 

 

7) The Company relies heavily on licensed brands and specifically the óReid & Taylorô brand name. Any 

dilution of the same could adversely affect its business. 

 

Sales from the brand 'Reid & Taylor' contributed approximately 99.5%, 98.2% and 98.3%, respectively, of 

the Companyôs sales and service charges in the years ended March 31, 2009 and 2010 and the six month 

period ended September 30, 2010, respectively. The Company believes that the óReid & Taylorô brand 

commands strong brand recall among consumers due to its long international presence. The Companyôs 

success depends on its ability to maintain the brand image of its existing products. Decrease in product 

quality due to reasons beyond its control or allegations of product defects, even when false or unfounded, 

could tarnish the image of the brands and may cause consumers to choose other products. Further, there can 

be no assurance that this brand name will not be adversely affected in the future by events such as actions 

that are beyond the Companyôs control and its business, financial condition and results of operations may 

be adversely affected. 

 

8) The Company may not be able to effectively promote or develop its licensed brands. 

  

The Company strives to position its licensed brands as premium and super premium fabric and apparel 

brands. Brand image is an important factor which affects a consumerôs purchasing decision with respect to 

the Companyôs products. To effectively promote these brands, the Company would have to be able to build 

and maintain the brand image by focusing on a variety of promotional and marketing activities to promote 

brand awareness, as well as to increase their presence in the markets in which they operate by expanding 

their retail network. There is no assurance that the Company will be able to effectively promote or develop 

these brands and if they fail to do so, the goodwill of such brands may be undermined, and accordingly the 

Companyôs results of operations and financial condition may be adversely affected. 

 

9) The Companyôs funding requirements and deployment of the net proceeds of the Issue are based on 

management estimates and have not been independently appraised. 

 

The Company has not entered into any definitive agreements to utilize any portion of the net proceeds of 

the Fresh Issue. In view of the competitive and dynamic nature of the textile industry, the Company may 

have to revise its expenditure and fund requirements, as stated in the section titled ñObjects of the Issueò 

beginning on page 32 of the Draft Red Herring Prospectus, due to such factors as variations in the cost 

structure, changes in estimates, exchange rate fluctuations and external factors, which may not be within 

the control of the Companyôs management. In addition, the estimated dates of completion of various 

projects as described herein are based on managementôs current expectations and are subject to delay and 

change due to various factors such as delays caused by market conditions, changes in government policies 

or initiatives, changes in budgetary allocation or insufficiency of funds. In case of decline in fund 

requirements at a later stage, such excess proceeds of the Fresh Issue will be deployed as approved by the 
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Board of Directors and the shareholders of the Company at that point in time. In the event, for whatsoever 

reason, the Company is unable to execute its plans as detailed in the ñObjects of the Issueò beginning on 

page 32 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus, the Company could have unallocated net proceeds.   

 

10) The Companyôs business is presently characterised by large investments in working capital which could 

constrain the cash flows of the business and may affect its result of operations. 

 

Currently, a significant portion of the Companyôs revenues are generated from products that are 

characterised by high investments in working capital, predominantly in inventories and debt. As of 

September 30, 2010, the Companyôs account receivable days were 172, and its days sales of inventory were 

111 days. The Company has incurred high investments primarily due to its wide product range and large 

distribution network. Any increase in these investments due to a change in the business scenario may 

constrain the Companyôs cash flows and adversely affect its results of operations and financial condition. 

 

11) The Company has limited financial history; therefore, prospective investors may not be able to evaluate 

the Companyôs current and future business prospects accurately. 

 

The Company was spun off from SKNL in January 2008 and hence has a limited operating and financial 

history. For details, please see the section ñHistory and Certain Corporate Mattersò beginning on page 98 of 

this Draft Red Herring Prospectus. Hence, it has no significant operating history from which its business, 

future prospects and viability can be evaluated. The manufacturing and distribution of all products involves 

various risks, including among others, execution risk, regulatory risk, financing risk and the risk that these 

projects may prove to be unprofitable. Any inability of the Company to effectively develop and operate 

could adversely affect its business prospects, financial condition and results of operation. Moreover, 

investors should not evaluate the Companyôs prospects and viability based on the performance of its 

Promoter, SKNL, or other affiliates. The Company cannot assure investors about its future performance or 

that its business strategy will be successful. 

 

12)  The Company does not have long-term contracts with its buyers, the loss of which could have a material 

adverse effect on the Company. 

 

Due to the nature of the industry, purchases by the Companyôs customers are primarily through purchase 

orders on a semi-annual basis or on a fixed delivery basis. The Company does not have any long term 

contracts with any of its customers and there can be no guarantee that its present customers will continue to 

procure orders from it. Any decline in the number of customers would likely result in reduced margins and 

the Companyôs results of operations may be adversely affected. 

 

13) The Companyôs business is cyclical and rapidly changing. Any failure by the Company to identify 

changing fashion trends or any reduction in consumer demand would adversely affect the Companyôs 

business. 

 

The fashion industry in which the Company operates is highly creative, competitive and rapidly-changing. 

Any inability on the part of the Company to perceive and capitalize on prevailing trends, timely forecast 

changing trends or failure to keep pace with the rate of such change will affect its growth prospects. Also, 

the Companyôs business is cyclical and subject to seasonal fluctuations as the range of products in the 

garment business changes according to the season. Purchases of the Companyôs products may decline 

during recessionary periods and may decline for a variety of other reasons, including changes in fashion 

trends and the introduction of new products or pricing changes by the Companyôs competitors. 

Uncertainties regarding future economic prospects could affect consumer-spending habits and have an 

adverse effect on the results of operations. For example, a continuation or worsening of the global 

economic crisis could result in a reduction in demand for higher quality, higher priced garments. In 

addition, uncertainty with respect to consumer spending as a result of weak economic conditions could 

cause delays in the placing of initial orders and may slow the pace of reorders during the seasonal peak of 

the Companyôs business. Weak economic conditions may have a material adverse effect on the Companyôs 

financial condition and results of operations. 
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14) The Companyôs major capital projects may not be completed in the time frame planned or at cost levels 

originally anticipated, and may not achieve the intended economic results. 
 

Currently, the Company intends to incur capital expenditures at some of its existing facilities and is 

establishing a new facility in Bengaluru. The Companyôs ability to successfully execute such projects in a 

timely manner is affected by factors such as delays in regulatory approvals, political unrest, technical 

difficulties, the inability to procure machinery and materials at desirable prices, human, technological or 

other resource constraints and may be affected by other unforeseen reasons, events or circumstances, some 

of which may be beyond its control. 

 

Capital projects may incur significant cost overruns and may not be completed on time or at all, which may 

significantly affect the Companyôs results of operations. In addition, as a consequence of project delays, 

cost overruns, changes or lack of demand for the Companyôs products or for other reasons, the Company 

may not achieve the economic benefits expected from these projects and its failure to obtain expected 

economic benefits from these projects could adversely affect its business, financial condition and results of 

operations. 

 

15) Failure to implement future technological advances in the textile industry or fund capital expenditure 

requirements could have a material adverse effect on the Companyôs competitive position and its results 

of operations. 

 

The Companyôs operating results depend to a significant extent on its ability to continue to introduce 

innovative products and to continue to develop its production processes to be a competitive producer. 

Accordingly, to maintain the Companyôs competitive position and its revenue base, the Company must 

continually modernize its manufacturing processes, plants and equipment. To this end, the Company has 

made significant investments in its manufacturing infrastructure in the past. Future technological advances 

in the textile industry may result in the availability of new products or increase the efficiency of existing 

manufacturing and distribution systems, and the Company may not be able to adapt to such technological 

changes or offer such products on a timely basis or establish or maintain competitive positions. Existing, 

proposed or undeveloped technologies may render the Companyôs technology less profitable or less viable, 

and it may not have the financial and other resources to compete effectively against companies possessing 

such technologies. To the extent sources of funds are insufficient to meet the Companyôs ongoing capital 

improvement requirements, it would need to seek alternative sources of financing or curtail or delay capital 

spending plans. The Company may not be able to obtain the necessary financing when needed or on 

acceptable terms. The Company is unable to predict which of the many possible future products and 

services will meet the evolving industry standards and consumer demands. If the Company fails to make 

the capital improvements necessary to continue the modernization of its manufacturing operations and 

reduction of its costs, the Companyôs competitive position may suffer, and its results of operations may be 

adversely effected.   

 

16) A portion of the shareholding of the Promoter, constituting 26.0% of the current paid-up share capital of 

the Company, has been pledged to a bank. Any sale of the Equity Shares by the bank in case of a default 

under the financing document will dilute the shareholding of the Promoter and adversely affect the 

Companyôs stock price.  

 

34,995,338 Equity Shares held by the Promoter, constituting 26.0% of the current paid-up share capital of 

the Company, has been pledged as security to ICICI Bank Limited under the terms of loan agreement dated 

September 16, 2009. Any default under this financing document may result in ICICI Bank Limited selling 

the Equity Shares pledged to them in the open market, thereby diluting the shareholding of the Promoters. 

Any action initiated by ICICI Bank Limited may result in the price of the Equity Shares being adversely 

impacted along with the ability to obtain further funding from other banks and financial institutions.  
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17) The Companyôs business could be adversely affected if it fails to protect its intellectual property rights. 

 

The Company licenses trademarks from third parties. The Companyôs success depends in part on its ability 

to protect these and other intellectual property rights. The Company relies on a combination of trademark, 

and trade secret laws, licenses, confidentiality and other agreements to protect its intellectual property 

rights. However, this protection may not be fully adequate. The Companyôs trademark agreements may 

terminate or become subject to litigation. The Companyôs intellectual property rights may be challenged or 

invalidated, an infringement suit by the Company against a third party may not be successful and/or third 

parties could adopt trademarks similar the Companyôs. The Company routinely enters into confidentiality 

agreements with its employees and strategic and joint venture partners, among others, such agreements may 

be breached, and the Company could be harmed by unauthorized use or disclosure of its confidential 

information. Further, the Companyôs failure to protect its intellectual property could materially and 

adversely affect its competitive position, reduce revenue or otherwise harm its business. 

 

Further, the Company may be accused of infringing or violating the intellectual property rights of third 

parties. Any such claims, whether or not meritorious, could result in costly litigation and divert the efforts 

of Company personnel. Should the Company be found liable for infringement, it may be required to enter 

into licensing arrangements (if available on acceptable terms or at all) or pay damages and cease selling 

certain products or using certain product names or technology. The Companyôs failure to prevail in any 

intellectual property litigation could materially adversely affect its competitive position and have an 

adverse effect on its results of operations. 

 

18) The success of the Companyôs business is substantially dependent upon the services of a few 

management personnel, the loss of whom could adversely affect the Companyôs business. 
 

The Company believes it has built a strong team of senior professionals to oversee the operations and 

growth of its business. The Companyôs management team consists of individuals having significant 

experience in the textile industry. The Companyôs Managing Director and Executive Director, Nitin 

Kasliwal, has 32 years of experience in the textile industry. The Companyôs success is substantially 

dependent upon the expertise and services of these members of management. The loss of these persons 

could have an adverse effect on the Companyôs business, results of operations and financial condition. 

 

19) An inability to manage the Companyôs growth could disrupt its business, results of operations and 

financial condition. 

 

The Companyôs total income has grown to Rs. 11,502.1 million and Rs. 6,323.5 million in the year ended 

March 31, 2010 and the six month period ended September 30, 2010, respectively, from Rs. 7,133.8 million 

in the year ended March 31, 2009. A principal component of the Companyôs strategy is to continue to grow 

by expanding the size and geographical scope of its existing business. This growth strategy will place 

significant demands on the Companyôs management, financial and other resources. In particular, continued 

expansion challenges the Company in the following areas: 

 

 maintaining consistently high-quality products; 

 recruiting, training and retaining sufficient skilled technical, marketing and management 

personnel; 

 managing expectations of clients and maintaining high levels of customer satisfaction; 

 developing and improving internal administrative functions and systems and controls, particularly 

the Companyôs financial, operational, communications and other internal systems; and 

 maintaining a constant supply of quality inputs for its manufacturing processes. 

The Companyôs inability to properly manage its growth may have an adverse effect on its business, results 

of operations and financial condition. Also, the Company needs to obtain various regulatory, environmental 

and health and safety approvals in the normal course of business as well as for proposed expansion projects 

and new projects which may not be available on a timely basis or at all. This may also significantly limit 
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the Companyôs growth. 

 

20) The Promoter of the Company exercises significant control and influence over the business affairs of the 

Company and their interests may conflict with those of the investors and other shareholders of the 

Company. 

 

As of September 30, 2010, the Promoter shareholding in the Company was 74.4% of the issued and 

outstanding Equity Share capital. The Promoter has the ability to control and influence the business affairs 

of the Company including matters such as sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the Company, 

assumption of additional debt, sale of brands belonging to the Company, timing and distribution of 

dividends, election of officers and directors and change of control transactions and other matters. The 

interests of the Promoter may differ and conflict with those of the investors and other shareholders of the 

Company which may cause them to act in a manner that may not be in the best interests of the shareholders 

of the Company. 

 

21) The Company has faced labour disruptions in the past and may face labour disruptions in the future 

that may interfere with its operations. 

 

The Company is exposed to the risk of strikes and other industrial actions. As of September 30, 2010, the 

Company employed a total of 1,227 employees, of whom 834 employees belonged to a single registered 

trade union. The Company has faced labour disruptions in the past. On June 10, 2008, the labourers of the 

Company went on a strike for a period of 16 days. Further, a lockout was declared at the Mysore factory 

from May 30, 2005 to June 30, 2005. While the Companyôs management believes that current relations 

between the Company and its employees are generally good, there can be no assurance that other 

employees will not unionise or that strikes, work stoppages or other industrial actions will not occur in the 

future. Labour disruptions could negatively impact the Companyôs operations and capacity utilization and 

cause it to be unable to meet its customers' demands. Such an event could result in increased wages and 

other benefits to the Companyôs employees and otherwise have a material adverse effect on its business, 

results of operations and financial condition.  

 

The Companyôs current labour agreement will expire on December 30, 2010. If a new agreement is not 

reached by that time, the Company may experience labour disruptions which could have a negative impact 

the Companyôs operations and capacity utilization and cause it to be unable to meet its customers' demands. 

 

In addition, many of the Companyôs suppliers have unionised work forces. Work stoppages or slow-downs 

experienced by these suppliers could increase the costs of raw materials and cause disruptions in the 

Companyôs operations and have a material adverse effect on its business, results of operations and financial 

condition. 

 

22) The Company relies on the success of its third party distribution network of wholesalers and retailers for 

supplying its products into the market and if the Company is unable to maintain its current distribution 

network or attract new distributors, the Companyôs results of operations and financial condition may be 

adversely affected. 

 

The Company has a nationwide distribution network comprising exclusive agents, wholesalers and retail 

outlets, who market, distribute and sell a major portion of the Companyôs products. The Company also 

distributes its products through BHRL. The Company is heavily dependent on its distribution network. The 

distributors are generally independent of the Company, thus the distributorôs finances, as well as the sales, 

merchandising and display of the Companyôs products are largely outside of its control. Additionally, 

distributors are constantly entering and exiting the retail market. Thus, the success of the business depends 

on maintaining good relations with existing distributors as well as attracting new ones. Although the 

Company believes it has good relations with its existing distributors, there can be no assurance that its 

distributors will continue to do business with the Company or that the Company will be able to attract new 

distributors. If the Company does not succeed in maintaining its current distribution network or in 

attracting new distributors to support future growth, the Companyôs market share may decline and 

adversely affect its results of operations and financial condition. 
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23) The Company generates a material portion of its revenue from sales to BHRL, which is a related party, 

and it is therefore dependent on the performance and growth of BHRL. 
 

In the fiscal years ended March 31, 2009 and 2010 and the six month period ended September 30, 2010, 

sales to BHRL represented approximately 39.9%, 37.2% and 29.6%, respectively, of the Companyôs total 

sales. The Company expects the portion of its sales to BHRL to continue to grow in the future. Maintaining 

the Companyôs relationship with BHRL is crucial to the Companyôs business, and any deterioration in 

BHRLôs business would have a material impact on the Company. Further, there can be no assurance that 

BHRL will wish to continue its relationship with the Company in the future or that the Company will be 

able to pursue its stated strategies with respect to BHRL and the markets in which it operates. Any 

deterioration in the Companyôs relationship with BHRL could have an adverse effect on the Companyôs 

results of operations and financial condition. For details, please see the section ñRelated Party 

Transactionsò beginning on page 136 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus. 

 

24) The Company may not be able to manage the rapid growth of its planned retail network effectively which 

may have an adverse effect on the Companyôs results of operations and financial condition. 

 

The Company intends to develop its own retail network in India by setting up 160 new exclusive brand 

outlets in 2012. The Company may not be able to successfully manage the rapid growth of its retail 

network effectively despite adopting various measures or strategies, including relying on the retailing 

experience of BHRL to manage its stores. Therefore, there is no assurance that the intended growth of the 

Companyôs retail network can be achieved or will be profitable. If the expansion of the retail network is not 

successfully managed, the Companyôs operating costs may increase and the Companyôs results of 

operations and financial condition may be adversely affected. In addition, in the event of an economic 

downturn, which may adversely affect the profitability of the stores, this could result in longer lead-time for 

new stores to reach their optimal operating levels. 

 

25) The Company is subject to restrictive covenants and some of the Companyôs properties have been 

pledged as security under certain SKNL financing arrangements. 

 

Certain SKNL financing arrangements are secured by the Companyôs current and fixed assets, including a 

charge on the Companyôs stock of raw materials, semi-finished and finished goods, consumable stores and 

book debts. Certain SKNL financing arrangements also include various conditions and covenants that 

require the Company to obtain lender consent prior to carrying out certain activities and entering into 

certain transactions, including, among others, undertaking new projects or expansions, selling or 

transferring assets, providing additional mortgage guarantees incurring additional debt or amending the 

Articles of Association. Any failure to comply with the requirement to obtain consent, or other conditions 

or covenants under these or future financing agreements that is not waived by the lenders or is not 

otherwise cured by the Company or SKNL, may lead to a termination of SKNLôs or the Companyôs credit 

facilities and/or acceleration of all amounts  due under such facilities and may affect the Companyôs ability 

to conduct its business and operations or implement its business plans.  

 

26) The Company will have to find locations to open and operate exclusive brand outlets and a failure to do 

so could have a material adverse impact on the Companyôs results of operations and financial condition. 

 

The Company intends to use Rs. 928.7 million from the funds raised from the Fresh Issue towards setting 

up 160 new exclusive brand outlets. The success of any retail business lies largely in identifying the best 

possible location at a competitive cost. The Company has to compete with other branded apparel retailers to 

find locations for its exclusive brand outlets on a continuous basis. The Company cannot give any 

assurance that it will be able to expand and grow at the rate at which it may desire to, as it may not be able 

to find locations that it believes will be necessary for implementing its expansion plans. If the Company is 

unable to find locations at the time and place that it desires, the same may have a material adverse impact 

on its results of operations and financial condition. 
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27) BHRL may have different strategic priorities than the Company which may be detrimental to the 

Company. 

 

A material portion of the Companyôs sales are derived from its relationship with BHRL which is controlled 

by the Promoter Group. The operations of BHRL are independent from that of the Company. BHRL may 

have different strategic priorities than the Company, which may be detrimental to the Company including:  

 

 business opportunities that may be attractive to both the Company and BHRL; 

 disagreements over where to establish new exclusive brand outlets and franchise stores;  

 economic or business interests or goals that are inconsistent with the other companyôs; 

 BHRL taking actions contrary to the Companyôs instructions or requests or contrary to the 

Companyôs policies and objectives; and 

 disagreements over how to best market the Companyôs brands. 

Furthermore, BHRL may undergo a change of control or financial difficulties which may alter the existing 

relationship between BHRL and the Company. To the extent that the interests of the Company and BHRL 

are unaligned, the Company cannot provide any assurance that it will be able to resolve such conflicts in a 

manner that will be in the Companyôs best interests. 

 

28) The restrictions set forth in the shareholders agreement between the Company, SKNL and Indivest may 

not govern certain Hartmarx brands. 

 

The Company, SKNL and Indivest entered into a shareholdersô agreement dated June 20, 2008 (the 

ñShareholders Agreementò). The terms of the Shareholders Agreement manage the relationship between 

the three companies, including placing restrictions on SKNLôs operations in certain market segments. 

Under the Shareholders Agreement, SKNL agrees not to manufacture or retail, at a wholesale level, apparel 

in the premium and super premium brand categories for either four years after the Companyôs initial public 

offering or five years after the execution of the Shareholdersô Agreement, whichever is later. However, the 

Shareholders Agreement may not cover certain apparel brands that were acquired by SKNL from Hartmarx 

Corporation USA. Furthermore, four years after the Companyôs initial public offering, SKNL will no 

longer be bound by this restriction. To the extent that the interests of the Company and SKNL are 

unaligned and they fail to reach an agreement on the distribution of market segments and brand licenses, 

the Company cannot provide any assurance that it will be able to resolve such conflicts in a manner that 

will be in the best interest of the Company. 

 

29) There may be potential conflicts of interest with the Promoter, Promoter Group Companies and 

companies in which some of the Companyôs directors are involved. Such conflict of interests may have 

an adverse effect on the Companyôs operations.  
 

The Promoter, Promoter Group Companies and some of the Companyôs directors either have equity 

interests or other investments or are involved in other companies that are authorised to engage in businesses 

similar to the Company. In particular, the Promoter is also engaged in the production of textiles in India. 

There may be conflicts of interest in addressing business opportunities and strategies in circumstances 

where the Companyôs interests differ from other companies in which the Promoter or one or more of the 

Companyôs directors or members of the Promoter Group Companies have an interest. For example, half of 

the members of the Companyôs Board of Directors and several key members of management also hold 

similar positions with the Promoter. There may be instances where the Board of Directors or management 

are asked to decide on issues that have consequences to both the Company and the Promoter, and their 

interests may not be aligned. In such cases of conflict, the Promoter or the Promoter Group Companies' 

Directors which are common between the Promoter and the Company or members of the Promoter Group 

Companies may favour other companies in which the Promoter or one or more of the Companyôs Directors 
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or members of the Promoter Group Companies have an interest. Neither the Promoter nor the Companyôs 

Directors or members of the Promoter Group Companies are obligated to direct any opportunities in the 

industries where the Company operates. Further, the Company shares members of management and other 

resources and office space with the Promoter, which may divert management attention and resources away 

from the Companyôs business and create conflicts of interest. In addition, new business opportunities may 

be directed to these affiliated companies instead of the Company. The Promoter and such directors or 

members of the Promoter Group Companies may also keep the Company from entering into certain 

businesses related to that of the Companyôs, which may be important for its future growth, as they may 

already have interests in other similar businesses. While the Promoter has committed not to enter into a 

competing business with the Company pursuant to the Shareholdersô Agreement there can be no assurance 

that such conflicts will not arise in future. 

 

30) Wage increases in India may reduce the Companyôs profits. 

 

Substantially all of the Companyôs workforce is employed in India, which has generally experienced 

overall wage increases in recent years due to its growing economy. Any future material wage increases 

experienced in India will likely have an impact on the Companyôs production costs and could have an 

adverse effect on the Companyôs profitability. 

 

31) The Companyôs inability to reduce its cost of production could have a negative impact on its results of 

operations.  
 

Reducing the Companyôs cost of production is essential to its business strategy in a highly competitive 

market environment. If the Company is unable to effectively employ such measures as using third party 

logistic providers, implementing supply chain management, process and productivity improvements and e-

sourcing, the Company may not be able to effectively control its costs, which may adversely affect its 

results of operations and financial condition. 

 

32) The Company has issued Equity Shares in the past 12 months at a price which may be lower than the 

Issue Price. 

 

The Company has made a preferential allotment of 1,804,322 Equity Shares in the past 12 months to 

Indivest Pte Ltd at a price of Rs. 609.65 per Equity Share. For further details please see the section titled 

ñCapital Structureò on page 25 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus. The price at which the Equity Shares 

have been issued in the last 12 months is not indicative of the price at which the Equity Shares may be 

offered in the Issue or at the price at which they will trade upon listing.  

 

33) The Companyôs Registered Office is located on land owned by the Promoter for which the Company has 

no formal right of occupation. 

 

The Companyôs Registered Office in Mumbai is located on land owned by the Promoter and the Company 

does not enjoy leasehold or other rights to such premises. In the event the Promoter decides to rent out or 

alienate the premises being used by the Company to any third-party or retains it for their own use, the 

Company may be required to shift its premises to a new location and there can be no assurance that the 

Company will be able to use the new premises in a similar manner.  

 

34) The Company has certain contingent liabilities, primarily on account of a guarantee given in favour of a 

lender of the Promoter, which may adversely affect its results of operations and financial condition if 

they were to materialise. 

  

As on September 30, 2010, the Company had contingent liabilities aggregating to Rs. 2,759.3 million, of 

which Rs. 2,750.0 million is on account of a corporate guarantee in favour of a lender of the Promoter. The 

Promoter had borrowed an amount of Rs. 2,750.0 million from ICICI Bank Limited in 2009. As a condition 

to the loan, the lender asked for a corporate guarantee to be provided. The loan is to be repaid by the 

Promoter by the year 2015. If this contingent liability was to materialise, it may lead to substantial liability 

and may have a material adverse effect on the results of operations and financial condition of the Company. 
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For details on contingent liabilities, please refer to the Companyôs financial statements on page 150 of this 

Draft Red Herring Prospectus. 

 

35) The Company has advanced a loan to its Promoter which involves a substantial degree of risk and if the 

loan remains unpaid, it will have a material adverse effect on the business, results of operations and 

financial condition of the Company. 

 

The Company has advanced a loan of Rs. 4,400 million to the Promoter to enable the promoter to repay its 

lenders pursuant to the corporate debt restructuring of the Promoter, the outstanding balance of which was 

Rs. 3,300.0 million as on September 30, 2010. The loan carries an interest rate of 12% per annum and is to 

be repaid by the Promoter in sixteen quarterly instalments ending in September 2013. Further, the 

Company has also provided an interest free, unsecured loan of Rs. 400 million to the Promoter under the 

corporate debt restructuring scheme of the Promoter, in fiscal year 2008. Currently, this loan amount is also 

outstanding. The Company cannot provide any assurance that this amount could not have been invested in 

instruments which would have yielded higher returns for the Company. Further, the Company cannot 

provide any assurance whether these loans will be repaid by the Promoter in accordance with the 

repayment schedule or at all. Further, given that senior management may have conflicts of interest in 

relation to the Company vis-à-vis the Promoter and Promoter Group Companies, there can be no assurance 

that steps will be taken by the Company against the Promoter in order to recover the amounts due under the 

loan. The amounts under the loan remaining unpaid, may result in a material adverse effect on the business, 

results of operations and financial condition of the Company. 

 

36) The Companyôs profitability may decline as a result of increasing pressure on margins and it could 

incur operating losses that it may be unable to fund or sustain for extended periods of time, if at all. 

 

The textile industry is subject to significant pricing pressure caused by many factors, including intense 

competition, consolidation in the retail industry, pressure from retailers to reduce the costs of products and 

changes in consumer demand. These factors may cause the Company to reduce its prices to retailers and 

consumers, which could cause its gross margins to decline if it is unable to offset price reductions with 

comparable reductions in its operating costs. If the Companyôs gross margin declines and it fails to 

sufficiently reduce its costs of goods sold or grow its net revenues, the Companyôs profitability will 

decline, and it could incur operating losses that it may be unable to fund or sustain for extended periods of 

time, if at all. This could have a material adverse effect on the Companyôs financial condition and results of 

operations. 

 

37) There are risks associated with the Companyôs manufacturing facilities and those of its supporting 

manufacturers. 
 

The Companyôs business is dependent on its manufacturing facilities and those of its supporting 

manufacturers. The loss or shutdown of operations at any of the manufacturing facilities, or those of its 

supporting manufacturers, due to labour unrest, natural disasters, technical failures or other issues, may 

have a material adverse effect on the Companyôs business, financial condition and results of operations. 

 

38) The Company relies on its information technology systems in managing its supply chain, production 

process, logistics and other integral parts of its business, any failure of which could have a material 

adverse impact on the Company. 

 

Since the Companyôs operations are substantially information technology driven, the importance of 

information technology systems to its business is paramount. The Company is reliant on its information 

technology systems for order booking, procurement of raw materials, accounting, production and 

distribution. Any failure in the Companyôs information technology systems could result in business 

interruption, adversely impacting the Companyôs reputation and weakening of its competitive position and 

could have a material adverse effect on the Companyôs financial condition and results of operations.  
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39) Some of the Group Companies have incurred losses during the last three fiscal years. 

 

As set forth below, some of the Group Companies have incurred losses during last three fiscal years (as per 

their standalone financial statements).  

(in Rs. millions) 

Group Company Loss After Tax for 

the fiscal year Ended 

March 31, 2008*
(1)

 
 

Loss After Tax for 

the fiscal year Ended 

March 31, 2009*
(2)

 

 

Loss After Tax 

for the fiscal 

year Ended 

March 31, 

2010*
(3)

 

 

SKNL International B.V. Nil  7.6 2.9 

SKNL Europe B.V. 0.1 77.7 0.3 

SKNL Global Holdings B.V. 0.1  1.8 Nil  

SKNL North America B.V. 0.1 0.9 22.7 

 (1) The financial information is denominated in Euro. The Company has used an exchange rate of Rs. 63.89 for the 

revenue transactions during the year which is the average rate for the period April 1, 2009 to March 31, 2010 and 

exchange rate of Rs. 60.81 for the balances at the year end which is the prevailing exchange rate on March 31, 2010 

(Source: www.xe.com). 
(2) The financial information is denominated in Euro. The Company has used an exchange rate of Rs. 66.58 for the 

revenue transactions during the year which is the average rate for the period April 1, 2008 to March 31, 2009 and 

exchange rate of Rs. 67.44 for the balances at the year end which is the prevailing exchange rate on March 31, 2009  

(Source: www.xe.com). 
(3) The financial information is denominated in Euro. The Company has used an exchange rate of Rs. 66.58 for the 

revenue transactions during the year which is the average rate for the period April 1, 2007 to March 31, 2008 and 

exchange rate of Rs. 67.44 for the balances at the year end which is the prevailing exchange rate on March 31, 2008  

(Source: www.xe.com). 

 

For details, please see the section ñGroup Companiesò beginning on page 127 of this Draft Red Herring 

Prospectus.  

 

40) The Company requires certain approvals and licenses in the ordinary course of business, and the 

failure to obtain or retain them in a timely manner all may adversely affect its operations.  

 

The Company requires certain approvals, licences, registrations and permissions to operate its business, 

some of which may have expired and for which it may have either made, or are in the process of making, 

an application for obtaining the approval for its renewal. As of the date of this Draft Red Herring 

Prospectus, applications for the consent to operate and make discharge of effluents and emissions from its 

manufacturing facility located at Mysore and for expansion of its manufacturing capacity to 18,000 meters 

per day and the authorisation for storage of hazardous waste are pending before the Karnataka State 

Pollution Control Board. For details see ñGovernments Approvalsò on page 209 of this Draft Red Herring 

Prospectus. If the Company fails to obtain or retain any of these approvals or licenses, or renewals thereof, 

in a timely manner, its business may be adversely affected. Furthermore, in terms of the government 

approvals and licenses the Company is subject to numerous conditions, some of which are onerous and may 

require the Company to make substantial compliance-related expenditure. If the Company fails to comply 

or a regulator claims that the Company has not complied with these conditions, the Companyôs business, 

prospects, financial condition and results of operations may be adversely affected.  

 

41) The Companyôs insurance coverage may not adequately protect it against possible risk of loss. 

 

The Companyôs operations are subject to hazards and risks inherent in the use of hazardous materials in the 

course of its production processes, discharges or releases of hazardous substances and other environmental 

risks, mechanical failure of equipment at its facilities and natural disasters. In addition, many of these 

operating and other risks may cause personal injury and loss of life, severe damage to or destruction of the 

Companyôs properties and the properties of others and environmental pollution, and may result in 

suspension of operations and the imposition of civil or criminal penalties. While the Company believes that 

it maintains insurance coverage in amounts consistent with industry norms for its production facilities, if 

http://www.xe.com/
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any or all of its production facilities are damaged in whole or in part and its operations are interrupted for a 

sustained period, there can be no assurance that the insurance policies will be adequate to cover the losses 

that may be incurred as a result of such interruptions or the costs of replacing the damaged facilities. If the 

Company suffers a large uninsured loss or any insured loss suffered significantly exceeds the insurance 

coverage, the business, financial condition and results of operations may be adversely affected.  

 

42) The Company has entered into certain transactions with related parties that may involve a conflict of 

interest. 

 

The Company has entered into certain transactions with related parties. For the fiscal year ended March 31, 

2010 and the nine month period ended September 30, 2010, the Company entered into related party 

transactions as detailed in the following table: 

 

S No. Particulars For the nine month 

period ended 

September 30, 2010 

Amount (in Rs. 

million)   

For the fiscal year 

ended March 31, 2010  

Amount (in Rs. 

million)  

1.  Sales 1,692.4 3,682.4 

2.  Purchases 979.2 24.4 

3.  Capex Nil  3.8 

4.  Loans and advances (550.0) 490.9 

5.  Others (interest income) 207.3 524.3 

 

These transactions and any such future related party transactions may involve a conflict of interest. For 

details, please see the section ñRelated Party Transactionsò beginning on page 136 of this Draft Red 

Herring Prospectus. 

 

43) Certain loans that the Company has availed of contain undertakings, conditions and restrictive 

covenants which could restrict its ability to conduct its business and operations. 

 

Certain loans, which the Company has availed of in connection with its operations, contain conditions and 

restrictive covenants including, but not limited to, the following: the ability of the issuing bank to alter the 

terms and conditions or withdraw all or any of the credit limits sanctioned at any time at its discretion; the 

ability of the issuing bank to recall any part or all of the facility in the event the credit facility is not utilized 

for the specified purpose, non-compliance with terms and conditions of the sanction and drawing beyond 

the sanctioned limits. The Company has also assumed certain obligations under these arrangements, which 

include, but are not limited to, the following: immediate written notification of any changes in the 

Companyôs constitution, changes in directors, proposals for a merger or takeover, in relation to which the 

issuing bank has the right to disapprove such alteration, and further may exercise the right to suspend, 

recall or withdraw the facilities; an undertaking to insure the Companyôs hypothecated movables against 

fire, accident, theft and all other risks under joint name with the issuing bank. The Company also granted 

the issuing banks certain rights in relation to these facilities, which include, but are not limited to the 

following: an option to enforce the security or recover sums due in any manner the bank deems fit, as well 

as the ability of the issuing bank, at its discretion, to demand and recover the balance due in respect of any 

or all facilities and other charges.  

 

Such conditions, covenants and undertakings may restrict or delay certain actions or initiatives that the 

Company may propose to take from time to time. A failure to observe such covenants or conditions under 

these facilities may lead to a termination of these facilities or an acceleration of all amounts due under such 

facilities and the enforcement of any security provided. Any acceleration of amounts due under such 

facilities may also trigger cross default provisions under other facilities. During any period in which the 

Company is in default, it may be unable to, or face difficulties in arranging similar facilities. The Company 

may not be able to continue obtaining new loan facilities in sufficient quantities to match its business 

requirements. As a result, the Companyôs ability to increase production or expand into new markets or 

segments could be limited. Any of these circumstances could adversely affect the Companyôs business, 
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financial condition and results of operations, as well as result in an adverse effect on the price of the Equity 

Shares. 

 

44) The Company has incurred borrowings and may not be able to meet its obligations under these debt 

financing arrangements which could adversely affect its business and results of operation. 

 

The Companyôs ability to meet its debt service obligations and to repay its outstanding borrowings will 

depend primarily upon the cash flow generated by its business. There can be no assurance that the 

Company will generate sufficient cash to enable it to service existing or proposed borrowings, comply with 

covenants or fund other liquidity needs. If the Company fails to meet its debt service obligations or is found 

to be in default with any material covenants required under the financing documents, the relevant lenders 

could accelerate the maturity of the Companyôs obligations. There can be no assurance that, in the event of 

any such acceleration, the Company will have sufficient resources to repay these borrowings. Failure to 

meet the Companyôs obligations under the debt financing arrangements could have a material adverse 

effect on the Companyôs cash flows, business and results of operations. 

 

45) The Company could face difficulties in accessing funds from the debt market due to past defaults by the 

Promoter 

 

The Promoter undertook an expansion plan for setting up new facilities during the years 1998-2002 which 

was primarily funded through high cost debt. The Promoter was unable to service this debt on time during 

the years 2000-2002. The Promoter undertook a credit restructuring exercise under the CDR mechanism 

formulated by the RBI. On September 12, 2008, the CDR forum allowed the Promoter to exit from the 

CDR mechanism subject to certain terms and conditions. The Promoter exited the CDR Scheme on August 

22, 2008. The Promoter has settled all dues under the CDR mechanism with respect to its lenders. The 

Company, being a subsidiary of the Promoter, may be adversely affected in its effort to raise debt, due to 

the corporate debt restructuring of the Promoter. Any inability on the part of the Company to raise debt 

may adversely affect its business and results of operations.  

 

46) The Company faces risks and uncertainties associated with the implementation of expansion projects at 

its existing facilities. 

 

The Company is implementing various expansion programmes and new projects that will increase its 

production capacity. In taking these and any other such initiatives, the Company faces risks and 

uncertainties, including: 

 

 cost and time overruns which could adversely affect the Companyôs operating results; 

 defects in new machinery; 

 installation of machinery that is not as technologically advanced as compared to its competitors; 

 lack of technical support available from the Companyôs vendors; and 

 the Company may not be able to obtain or install production equipment on time or to its 

satisfaction due to unforeseen and unavoidable circumstances. 

While the Company has successfully implemented major expansion projects in the past, there can be no 

assurance that the Company will be able to execute any current or future expansion strategies on time or 

within budget or that the Company will achieve its objectives. Any failure to do so could adversely affect 

the Companyôs business, results of operations and financial condition.  
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47) The Company is subject to risks associated with expansion into new segments and any failure to 

adequately deal with such risks could have a negative effect on the Companyôs business and results of 

operation. 
 

The Company plans to enter new product segments through investments in product development. The costs 

involved in entering and establishing itself in new segments may be higher than expected. For example, the 

Company expects to launch a new casual brand in the premium segment in the fiscal year ended March 31, 

2011. The Companyôs market position in its export markets will depend on its ability to compete 

effectively with larger and more recognizable competitors, implement effective marketing initiatives and 

anticipate and respond to various competitive factors affecting the industry, including new products with 

new features, pricing strategies by competitors and changes in consumer preferences and general economic, 

political and social conditions in the countries in which it does business. If the Companyôs products are not 

successful in capturing market share in any of the new product segments that it seeks to enter, it could 

adversely impact the Companyôs results of operations and financial condition. Furthermore, the Company 

entered into an agreement with SKNL not to expand into certain market segments other than the premium 

and super premium segments. This agreement may limit the strategic choices of the Company and may 

limit future growth.  

 

48) The Companyôs success depends on the continuous supply and transportation of raw materials from its 

suppliers to its facilities and of the Companyôs products from its manufacturing facilities to its 

distributors and customers, which are subject to various uncertainties and risks. 

 

The Company depends on road transportation to deliver raw materials from its suppliers to its 

manufacturing facilities as well as its products from its manufacturing facilities to its distributors and 

customers. The Company relies on third parties to provide such services. Disruptions of road transportation 

services because of weather-related problems, strikes and inadequacies in the road infrastructure, or other 

events could impair the Companyôs ability to receive raw materials and to supply its products to its 

customers. Any such disruptions could materially and adversely affect the Companyôs business, financial 

condition and results of operations. 

 

49) Underutilisation of expanded capacities may adversely impact the Companyôs financial performance. 

 

The Company has undertaken expansion of its production capacities based on its estimates of market 

demand and profitability. In particular, the recent slowdown in the Indian and global economies may affect 

demand for the Companyôs products. In the event that the Companyôs estimates and expected orders do not 

meet expectations due to factors including adverse economic scenarios, changes in demand or changes in 

fashion trends, the Companyôs capacities may not be fully utilised thereby adversely impacting its financial 

performance. 

 

50) The Company has capital requirements and may require additional financing in the form of debt or 

equity that may not always be obtained on satisfactory terms to meet the Companyôs requirements to 

pursue its expansion plans. 

 

Sources of additional financing requirements may include commercial banks or the sale or a fresh issuance 

of the Companyôs equity or debt securities in private or public offerings. If the Company decides to incur 

additional debt, its interest payment obligations will increase, and the Company may be subject to 

additional conditions from lenders, who could place restrictions on how it operates its business and result in 

reduced cash flows. If the Company decides to issue equity, the ownership interest of the Companyôs 

existing shareholders would be diluted. 

 

The Companyôs failure to obtain sufficient financing could result in a lack of cash flow to meet its 

operating and growth requirements and, therefore, could have an adverse effect on the Companyôs business, 

results of operations and financial condition. 

 

 

 



 

xxviii  

51) The Company faces risks associated with the launch of new brands and any failure to adequately deal 

with such risks could have a negative effect on the Companyôs business and results of operation. 

 

The Company intends to launch a new casual brand in the premium segment and may launch additional 

brands in different market segments in the future. Launching new brands involves a significant 

commitment of monetary and other resources for advertisement, product placement, distribution and other 

considerations. While the Company has successfully launched brands in the past, there can be no assurance 

that the Company will be able to successfully launch and gain benefits from new brand launches. Any 

failure to do so could adversely affect the Companyôs business, results of operations and financial 

condition. 

 

52) Competition in the Companyôs markets may adversely affect its earnings. 

 

Competition in the Companyôs markets is intense. Some of the Companyôs competitors have economic 

resources greater than those of the Company and are well established as suppliers to the markets that the 

Company serves. Quality, performance, service and cost are generally the principal competitive factors that 

the Company faces in the markets in which it operates. To the extent the Company is unable to deal with 

these and other competitive pressures effectively, its financial condition and results of operations may be 

adversely affected. 

 

53) Statistical and financial data from industry publications and other third party data included in the Draft 

Red Herring Prospectus may be incomplete or unreliable. 

 

The Company has not independently verified data from industry publications and other third-party sources 

and therefore cannot assure investors that they are complete or reliable. Such data may also be produced on 

different bases from those used in western countries. Therefore, discussions of matters relating to India, its 

economy or regulatory and statutory regime, as detailed in this Draft Red Herring Prospectus are subject to 

the caveat that the statistical and other data upon which such discussions are based, may be incomplete or 

unreliable. In addition, internal company reports have not been verified by independent sources and may be 

incomplete or unreliable. 

 

54) The Company may be exposed to product liability claims that could have an adverse effect on the 

Companyôs results of operations. 

 

The laws of India do not require the maintenance of product liability insurance for the Companyôs business 

operations. The Company therefore does not have product liability insurance. If the Company is found 

liable for any product liability claim, it may be required to pay substantial damages. Even if the Company 

is successful in defending such a claim, the Company may have incurred substantial financial and other 

resources in defending such a claim. In such circumstances, the Companyôs financial results will be 

adversely affected. Depending on the outcome of any such claims, the reputation of the Companyôs 

licensed brands could also be adversely affected. 

 

55) Costs associated with increased environmental regulation, compliance and changing consumer 

environmental awareness could adversely affect the Companyôs results of operations. 

 

Actions by central or state governments in India concerning environmental matters could result in laws or 

regulations that could increase the cost of producing the products manufactured by the Company or 

otherwise adversely affect demand for its products. For example, certain governmental authorities may 

adopt laws prohibiting or restricting the use or disposal of certain products that are among the types of 

products produced by the Company. If such prohibitions or restrictions were to be widely adopted, such 

regulatory and environmental measures could adversely affect demand for the Companyôs products and 

thereby have a material adverse effect upon the Company. Moreover, there can be no assurance that the 

Company will be able to maintain its environmental licenses and permits in order to be able to continue its 

operations. Additionally, a decline in consumer preference for the Companyôs products due to 

environmental considerations could have a material adverse effect upon the Companyôs business. Currently 

unknown environmental problems or conditions may be discovered. If any of the Companyôs facilities are 
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shut down, the Company will continue to incur costs complying with regulations, appealing decisions 

affecting those facilities, maintaining production if possible and continuing to pay labour and other costs. 

The Companyôs results of operations could, therefore, be materially and adversely affected by 

environmental related risks. 

 

External Risk Related to the Company 

 

56) A slowdown in growth of the Indian or global economies could cause the Companyôs business to suffer. 

 

The performance and growth of the Companyôs business is dependent on the health of the overall Indian 

and global economies and expansion plans are based on expectations of continued economic growth in 

India and abroad. The Company believes demand for many of its products is correlated to the general 

economic environment, which is sensitive to a number of factors outside the Companyôs control. The 

Company is not able to predict the timing, extent and duration of the economic cycles in the markets. A 

recession or a slowdown of the Indian or global economies or a deterioration in the credit markets could 

have an adverse effect on the Companyôs results of operations and financial condition.  

 

57) Further deterioration of global financial market conditions could adversely affect the Company. 

 

Various sectors of the global financial markets began experiencing difficult conditions and volatility in 

2008 and have continued into 2009 and 2010. The U.S. residential mortgage market has experienced 

serious disruption because of credit quality deterioration in a significant portion of loans originated, 

particularly to non-prime and sub-prime borrowers, evolving changes in the regulatory environment, a 

slower residential housing market, increased costs of borrowings for mortgage participants and illiquid 

credit markets. The effect of the downward cycle in the U.S. housing market is not expected to improve 

until residential inventories return to a more normal level and the mortgage credit market stabilizes. 

Dramatic declines in the housing market during the prior two years, with falling home prices and increasing 

foreclosures and unemployment, have resulted in significant write-downs of asset values by financial 

institutions, including government-sponsored entities and major commercial and investment banks. These 

write-downs, initially of mortgage-backed securities but spreading to credit default swaps and other 

derivative securities, have caused many financial institutions to seek additional capital, to merge with larger 

and stronger institutions and, in some cases, to fail. Reflecting concern about the stability of the financial 

markets generally and the strength of counterparties, many lenders and institutional investors have reduced, 

and in some cases, ceased to provide funding to borrowers including other financial institutions. These 

conditions have resulted in less liquidity, greater volatility, general widening of credit spreads and a lack of 

price transparency, all of which have adversely impacted the global financial markets. The tightening of the 

credit markets has made obtaining financing more difficult for the Companyôs suppliers. Further 

deterioration of global financial market conditions could have an adverse effect on the Companyôs ability to 

acquire additional debt on favourable terms or at all, and may adversely affect its results of operations and 

financial condition. 

 

58) Regulatory changes in the textile industry may adversely affect the Company. 

 

There may be regulatory changes in the textile industry that could adversely affect the Company. Any 

modification or withdrawal of policies that have been initiated by the Government in order to promote 

growth in the sector, including policies such as interest rate subsidies and duty/tax reimbursement schemes, 

could adversely impact the profitability of textile companies in general and the Company in particular. The 

Company cannot anticipate the extent, nature or probability of such future changes and there can be no 

assurance that any such changes will not have a material adverse effect on the Company. 

 

59) The Companyôs business may be affected by trade sanctions imposed by other countries. 

 

The Company may be required to comply with trade sanctions which may be imposed by countries to 

which it exports its products. The Company may not be able to control the causes leading to the trade 

sanctions and may not be able to rectify the circumstances leading to trade sanctions. These trade sanctions 

may have a material adverse impact on the Companyôs financial condition and results of operations. 
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60) If regional hostilities, terrorist attacks or social unrest in India and South Asia increase, the Companyôs 

business could be adversely affected and the trading price of the Equity Shares could decrease. 

 

Terrorist attacks and other acts of violence or war including those involving India, the United States or 

other countries, may adversely affect the Indian and worldwide financial markets. On November 26, 2008, 

terrorists staged a coordinated attack on several prominent international hotels and various other locations 

in the financial centre of Mumbai. Further terrorist acts may result in a loss of business confidence and 

have other consequences that could adversely affect the Companyôs business, prospects, financial condition 

and results of operations. Increased volatility in the financial markets, including economic recession, can 

have an adverse impact on the economies of India and other countries.  

 

In addition, South Asia has from time to time experienced instances of civil unrest and hostilities among 

neighbouring countries, including between India and Pakistan. Increased tensions and hostilities and may 

occur in the future and on a wider scale. Also, since 2003, there have been military hostilities and 

continuing civil unrest and instability in Iraq and Afghanistan. Events of this nature in the future, as well as 

social and civil unrest within other countries in Asia, could influence the Indian economy by disrupting 

communications and making travel and transportation more difficult and could create a perception that 

investments in Indian companies involve greater degrees of risk.  

 

Further, India has also experienced social unrest, communal disturbances and riots in some parts of the 

country during recent times. If such hostilities and tensions occur, it could have an adverse effect on the 

Indian economy and the Companyôs business, future financial performance and the trading price of the 

Equity Shares. 

 

61) Political instability and significant changes in Government policy could adversely affect economic 

conditions in India generally and the Companyôs business in particular.  

 

Changes in exchange rates and controls, interest rates, Government policies, taxation, social and ethnic 

instability and other political and economic developments in and affecting India may have an adverse effect 

on the Companyôs results of operations.  

 

India has a mixed economy with a large public sector and an extensively regulated private sector. The role 

of the Central and the State Governments in the Indian economy and the effect on producers, consumers, 

service providers and regulators has remained significant over the years. The governments have in the past, 

among other things, imposed controls on the prices of a broad range of goods and services, restricted the 

ability of businesses to expand existing capacity and reduce the number of their employees, and determined 

the allocation to businesses of raw materials and foreign exchange. Since 1991, successive Governments 

have pursued policies of economic liberalization, including significantly relaxing restrictions in the private 

sector. Nevertheless, the role of the Central and State Governments in the Indian economy as producers, 

consumers and regulators has remained significant. There can be no assurance that its past liberalization 

policies or any political stability will continue in the future. Any significant change in Indiaôs economic 

liberalization and deregulation policies could disrupt business and economic conditions in India generally 

and the Companyôs business in particular.   

 

62) The Companyôs business and activities may be regulated by the Competition Act, 2002. 

 

The Indian Parliament has enacted the Competition Act, 2002 (the ñActò) for the purpose of preventing 

business practices having an adverse effect on competition under the auspices of the Competition 

Commission of India, which (other than for certain provisions relating to the regulation of combinations) 

has recently become effective. Under the Act, any arrangement, understanding or action, whether or not 

formal or informal, which causes or is likely to cause an appreciable adverse effect on competition is void 

and attracts substantial penalties. Any agreement which directly or indirectly determines purchase or sale 

prices, limits or controls production, shares the market by way of geographical area or market or number of 

customers in the market is presumed to have an appreciable adverse effect on competition. It is unclear as 

to how the Act and the Competition Commission of India will affect industries in India; any application of 
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the Act to the Company may be unfavourable and have a material effect on its results of operations and 

financial condition. 

 

63) Investors may have difficulty enforcing foreign judgments against the Company or its management. 

 

The Company is incorporated under the laws of India. Many of its Directors and executive officers are 

Indian residents. A substantial portion of the Companyôs assets and the assets of the Directors and 

executive officers resident in India are located in India. As a result, it may be difficult for investors to effect 

service of process upon the Company or such persons outside India or to enforce judgments obtained 

against the Company or such parties outside India.  

 

Recognition and enforcement of foreign judgments is provided for under Section 13 of the Code of Civil 

Procedure, 1908 of India (as amended) (the ñCodeò) on a statutory basis. Section 13 of the Code provides 

that a foreign judgment shall be conclusive regarding any matter directly adjudicated upon except: (i) 

where the judgment has not been pronounced by a court of competent jurisdiction; (ii) where the judgment 

has not been given on the merits of the case; (iii) where it appears on the face of the proceedings that the 

judgment is founded on an incorrect view of international law or a refusal to recognise the law of India in 

cases in which such law is applicable; (iv) where the proceedings in which the judgment was obtained were 

opposed to natural justice; (v) where the judgment has been obtained by fraud; or (vi) where the judgment 

sustains a claim founded on a breach of any law in force in India. Under the Code, a court in India shall, 

upon production of any document purporting to be a certified copy of a foreign judgment presumes that the 

judgment was pronounced by a court of competent jurisdiction, unless the contrary appears on record. 

 

64) Natural calamities could adversely affect the Indian economy, the Companyôs business and the price of 

the Equity Shares. 

 

India has experienced natural calamities such as earthquakes, floods, drought and a tsunami in recent years. 

The extent and severity of these natural disasters determine their impact on the Indian economy. For 

example, the erratic progress of the monsoon season in 2009 adversely affected sowing operations for 

certain crops. Further, prolonged spells of below or above normal rainfall or other natural calamities could 

adversely affect the Indian economy and the Companyôs business. 

 

65) Changes in Government regulations such as tax regulations, FDI policies and foreign ownership of 

Indian securities could adversely affect the Company. 

 

Any change in the Governmentôs attitude towards FDI, FII holdings in Indian companies, taxation aspects 

related to such entities or any changes in tax regulations with respect to Indian companies could have a 

material adverse effect on the price of equities in the capital markets. Also, changes in tax regulations could 

result in an increase in the tax liability of the Company, which may adversely affect its financial results. 

 

66) Any downgrading of Indiaôs debt rating by an international rating agency could have a negative impact 

on the Companyôs business.  

 

Any adverse revision to Indiaôs credit rating for domestic and international debt by international rating 

agencies may adversely impact the Companyôs ability to raise additional financing and the interest rates 

and other commercial terms at which such additional financing is available. This could have an adverse 

effect on the Companyôs financial performance and its ability to obtain financing to fund growth on 

favourable terms or at all.  

 

67) A decline in Indiaôs foreign exchange reserves may affect liquidity and interest rates in the Indian 

economy, which could adversely affect the Companyôs financial condition. 

 

Indiaôs foreign exchange reserves totalled US$287.7 billion as at September 17, 2010. A decline in these 

reserves could impact the valuation of the local currency and could result in reduced liquidity and higher 

interest rates. This could, in turn, adversely affect the Companyôs financial condition and the market price 

of its Equity Shares. 
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68) Financial instability in other countries, particularly emerging market countries, could disrupt the 

Companyôs business and affect the price of the Equity Shares.  

 

Although economic conditions are different in each country, investorsô reactions to developments in one 

country may have an adverse effect on the securities of companies in other countries including India. A loss 

of investor confidence in the financial systems of other emerging markets may cause increased volatility in 

Indian financial markets and the Indian economy in general. Any worldwide financial instability could also 

have a negative impact on the Indian economy, including the movement of exchange rates and interest rates 

in India. Any financial disruption could have an adverse effect on the Companyôs business, future financial 

performance, shareholders' equity and the price of the Equity Shares.  

 

69) Significant differences exist between Indian GAAP and other accounting principles with which investors 

may be more familiar. 

 

Financial statements included in this Draft Red Herring Prospectus at pages 139 to 177 are prepared in 

conformity with Indian GAAP. Indian GAAP differs in certain significant respects from IFRS, U.S. GAAP 

and other accounting principles and auditing standards with which prospective investors may be familiar 

with in other countries. The Company does not provide a reconciliation of these financial statements to 

IFRS or U.S. GAAP or a summary of principal differences between Indian GAAP, IFRS and U.S. GAAP 

relevant to its business. Furthermore, the Company has not quantified or identified the impact of the 

differences between Indian GAAP and IFRS or between Indian GAAP and U.S. GAAP as applied to these 

financial statements. As there are significant differences between Indian GAAP and IFRS and between 

Indian GAAP and U.S. GAAP, there may be substantial differences in the results of operations, cash flows 

and financial positions discussed in this Draft Red Herring Prospectus, if the relevant financial statements 

were prepared in accordance with IFRS or U.S. GAAP instead of Indian GAAP. The significant accounting 

policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are as set forth in notes to the audited 

financial statements included in this Draft Red Herring Prospectus. Prospective investors should review the 

accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements, and consult their own 

professional advisors for an understanding of the differences between Indian GAAP and IFRS and between 

Indian GAAP and U.S. GAAP and how they might affect the financial information contained in this Draft 

Red Herring Prospectus. 

 

70) The Companyôs failure to successfully adopt IFRS effective from April 2011 could have a material 

adverse effect on the price of its Equity Shares. 

 

ICAI, the accounting body that regulates the accounting firms in India, has announced a road map for the 

adoption of, and convergence with the IFRS pursuant to which all public companies in India will be 

required to prepare their annual and interim financial statements under IFRS beginning with fiscal period 

commencing April 1, 2011. Because there is significant lack of clarity on the adoption of and convergence 

with IFRS and there is not yet a significant body of established practice on which to draw on forming 

judgments regarding its implementation and application, the Company has not determined with any degree 

of certainty the impact that such adoption will have on its financial reporting. There can be no assurance 

that the Companyôs financial condition, results of operations, cash flows or changes in shareholdersô equity 

will not appear materially worse under IFRS than under Indian GAAP. As the Company make its transition 

to IFRS reporting, it may encounter difficulties in the ongoing process of implementing and enhancing its 

management information systems. Moreover, there is increasing competition for the small number of IFRS 

experienced accounting personnel available as more Indian companies begin to prepare IFRS financial 

statements. There can be no assurance that the Companyôs adoption of IFRS will not adversely affect its 

reported results of operations or financial condition and any failure to successfully adopt IFRS by April 

2011 could have a material adverse effect on the price of the Equity Shares. 

 

71) Foreign investors are subject to foreign investment restrictions under Indian law.  

 

Under the foreign exchange regulations currently in force in India, transfers of shares between non-

residents and residents are freely permitted (subject to certain exceptions) if they comply with the pricing 
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guidelines and reporting requirements specified by the RBI. If the transfer of shares is not in compliance 

with such pricing guidelines or reporting requirements or fall under any of the exceptions, then the prior 

approval of the RBI will be required. Additionally, shareholders who seek to convert the Rupee proceeds 

from a sale of shares in India into foreign currency and repatriate that foreign currency from India will 

require a no objection or a tax clearance certificate from the income tax authority. The Company cannot 

assure you that any required approval from the RBI or any other Government agency can be obtained on 

any particular terms or at all. For details, please see the section ñRestrictions on Foreign Ownership of 

Indian Securitiesò beginning on the page 259 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.  

 

72) Currency exchange rate fluctuations may affect the value of the Equity Shares. 

 

The exchange rate between the Rupee and other foreign currencies, including the U.S. Dollar, the British 

Pound, the Euro, the Emirati Dirham, the Hong Kong Dollar, the Singapore Dollar and the Japanese Yen, 

has changed substantially in recent years and may fluctuate substantially in the future. If the investor 

purchases Rupees to purchase the Equity Shares, fluctuations in the exchange rate between the foreign 

currency with which the investor purchased the Rupees may affect the value of the investorôs investment in 

the Equity Shares. Specifically, if there is a change in relative value of the Rupee to a foreign currency, 

each of the following values will also be affected: 

 

 the foreign currency equivalent of the Rupee trading price of the Equity Shares in India; 

 

 the foreign currency equivalent of the proceeds that the investor would receive upon the sale in 

India of any of the Equity Shares; and 

 

 the foreign currency equivalent of cash dividends, if any, on the Equity Shares, which will be paid 

only in Rupees. 

 

The investor may be unable to convert Rupee proceeds into a foreign currency of its choice or the rate at 

which any such conversion could occur could fluctuate. In addition, the Companyôs market valuation could 

be seriously harmed by the devaluation of the Rupee if investors in jurisdictions outside India analyze the 

Companyôs value based on the Rupee equivalent of such other currency and the financial condition and 

results of operations of the Company converted into such foreign currency. 

 

73) Investors in the Equity Shares may be restricted in their ability to exercise pre-emptive rights under 

Indian law and may be diluted in their ownership position of the Company. 
 

Investors in the Equity Shares may be restricted in their ability to exercise pre-emptive rights under Indian 

law and may be diluted in their ownership position of the Company. Under the Companies Act, 1956, a 

company incorporated in India must offer its holders of equity shares pre-emptive rights to subscribe and 

pay for a proportionate number of equity shares to maintain their existing ownership percentages before the 

issuance of any new equity shares, unless the pre-emptive rights have been waived by adoption of a special 

resolution by holders of three-fourths of the equity shares which are voted on the resolution or unless such 

Company has obtained Government approval to issue equity shares without such rights. Moreover, if the 

law of the jurisdiction of an investor does not permit the exercise of such investorsô pre-emptive rights 

without the company filing an offering document or registration statement with the applicable authority of 

such jurisdiction, such investor will be unable to exercise its pre-emptive rights unless the Company makes 

such a filing. To the extent that investors are unable to exercise pre-emptive rights granted in respect of the 

Equity Shares, their proportional interest in the Company may be reduced.  

 

74) Trade deficits could have a negative effect on the Companyôs business and the trading price of the 

Equity Shares. 

 

Indiaôs trade relationships with other countries can influence Indian economic conditions. If Indiaôs trade 

deficit increase or become unmanageable, the Indian economy, and consequently the Companyôs business, 

future financial performance and the trading price of the Equity Shares could be adversely affected.  
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75) An outbreak of an infectious disease or any other serious public health concerns in Asia or elsewhere 

could have a material adverse effect on the Companyôs business and results of operations. 

 

The outbreak of an infectious disease in Asia or elsewhere or any other serious public health concern such 

as swine influenza around the world could have a negative impact on economies, financial markets and 

business activities worldwide, which could have a material adverse effect on the Companyôs business. 

Although the Company has not been adversely affected by such outbreaks, there can be no assurance that a 

future outbreak of an infectious disease or any other serious public health concern will not have a material 

adverse effect on its business. 

 

Risks Related to the Issue 

 

76) The price of the Equity Shares may be volatile, and investors may be unable to resell their Equity Shares 

at or above the Issue Price, or at all. 

 

There has been no public market for the Equity Shares, and an active trading market on the Stock 

Exchanges may not develop or be sustained after the Issue. The Issue Price of the Equity Shares may bear 

no relationship to the market price of the Equity Shares after the Issue. The market price of the Equity 

Shares after the Issue may be subject to significant fluctuations in response to, among other factors, 

variations in the Companyôs operating results, market conditions specific to the textile industry in India, 

developments relating to India and volatility in the BSE and the NSE and securities markets elsewhere in 

the world. 

 

77) Investors will not be able to sell immediately on an Indian stock exchange any of the Equity Shares they 

purchase in the Issue until the Issue receives the appropriate trading approvals. 

 

The Equity Shares will be listed on the NSE and the BSE. Pursuant to Indian regulations, certain actions 

must be completed before the Equity Shares can be listed and trading may commence. Investorsô book 

entry, or ñdematò, accounts with depository participants in India are expected to be credited within two 

working days of the date on which the basis of allotment is approved by NSE and the BSE. Thereafter, 

upon receipt of final approval from the NSE and the BSE, trading in the Equity Shares is expected to 

commence within 12 Working Days from the Bid/Issue Closing Date. The Company cannot assure 

investors that the Equity Shares will be credited to investorsô demat accounts, or that trading in the Equity 

Shares will commence, within the time periods specified above. Any delay in obtaining the approvals 

would restrict the investorôs ability to sell the Equity Shares. 

 

78) There can be no assurance that the Companyôs securities will continue to be listed on the Stock 

Exchanges. 

 

Pursuant to the listing of the Companyôs securities on the Stock Exchanges, the Company shall be required 

to comply with certain regulations and/or guidelines as prescribed by SEBI and the Stock Exchanges. 

However, in the event that the Company fails to comply with any of the aforesaid regulations and/or 

guidelines, the Company cannot warrant that its securities will continue to be listed on the Stock 

Exchanges. 

 

79) There may not be an active or liquid market for the Companyôs Equity Shares, which may cause the 

price of the Equity Shares to fall and may limit an investorôs ability to sell the Equity Shares. 

 

The price at which the Equity Shares will trade after this Issue will be determined by the marketplace and 

may be influenced by many factors, including: 

 

 the Companyôs financial results and the financial results of the companies in the businesses it 

operates in; 

 the history of, and the prospects for, the Companyôs business and the sectors and industries in 
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which it competes; 

 the valuation of publicly traded companies that are engaged in business activities similar to the 

Companyôs; 

 significant developments in Indiaôs economic liberalisation and deregulation policies. 

In addition, the Indian stock market has from time to time experienced significant price and volume 

fluctuations that have affected the market prices for the securities of Indian companies. As a result, 

investors in the Equity Shares may experience a decrease in the value of the Equity Shares regardless of the 

Companyôs operating performance or prospects. 

 

80) Any future issuance of Equity Shares by the Company may dilute an investorôs shareholding and 

adversely affect the trading price of the Equity Shares. 

 

Any future issuance of Equity Shares by the Company may dilute an investorôs shareholding, adversely 

affect the trading price of the Equity Shares and the Companyôs ability to raise capital through an issue of 

securities. In addition, any perception by investors that such issuances or sales might occur could also 

affect the trading price of the Equity Shares. Additionally the disposal, pledge or encumbrance of the 

Equity Shares by any of the Companyôs major shareholders, or the perception that such transactions may 

occur may affect the trading price of the Equity Shares. No assurance may be given that the Company will 

not issue Equity Shares or that such shareholders will not dispose of, pledge or encumber their Equity 

Shares in the future. 

 

Also, under the Securities Contract (Regulation) Rules, 1957, as amended (ñSCRRò), listed companies are 

required to maintain public shareholding of at least 25% of their issued share capital. Pursuant to the 

Securities Contracts (Regulation) (Amendment) Rules, 2010, notified on June 4, 2010 and the notification 

of the Ministry of Finance, Government of India dated August 9, 2010, the SCRR were amended to define 

ópublic shareholdingô to refer to persons other than a companyôs promoter and promoter group and 

subsidiaries and associates, and excluding shares held by a custodian against which depository receipts 

have been issued overseas. Companies, such as ours, whose post issue paid up Equity Share capital would 

be more than Rs. 40,000 million, are allowed to list with a less than 25% but more than 10% public 

shareholding on the condition that the public shareholding shall be increased to 25% within three years 

from the date of listing of the Companyôs Equity Shares on the Stock Exchanges. Failure to comply with 

the minimum public shareholding provision would require a listed company to delist its shares and may 

result in penal action being taken against the listed company pursuant to the SEBI Act. This may require 

the Company to issue additional Equity Shares or require the Promoter or Promoter Group to sell their 

Equity Shares, which may adversely affect the Companyôs trading price. 

 

81) Investors may be subject to Indian taxes arising out of capital gains. 

 

Under current Indian tax laws and regulations, capital gains arising from the sale of equity shares in an 

Indian company are generally taxable in India. Any gain realized on the sale of listed equity shares on a 

stock exchange held for more than 12 months will not be subject to capital gains tax in India if Securities 

Transaction Tax (ñSTTò) has been paid on the transaction. STT will be levied on and collected by a 

domestic stock exchange on which the equity shares are sold. Any gain realized on the sale of equity shares 

in an Indian company held for more than 12 months which are sold to an Indian resident other than on a 

recognized stock exchange and on which no STT has been paid, will be subject to long term capital gains 

tax in India. Any gain realized on the sale of listed equity shares held for a period of 12 months or less will 

be subject to short term capital gains tax in India. Capital gains arising from the sale of the Equity Shares 

will be exempt from taxation in India in cases where the exemption from taxation in India is provided 

under a treaty between India and the country of which the seller is resident. Generally, Indian tax treaties 

do not limit Indiaôs ability to impose tax on capital gains. As a result, residents of other countries may be 

liable for tax in India as well as in their own jurisdiction on a gain upon the sale of the Equity Shares. In 

addition, changes in the terms of tax treaties or in their interpretation, as a result of renegotiations or 

otherwise, may affect the tax treatment of capital gains arising from a sale of Equity Shares. 
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82) There may be less information available on the Company in Indian securities markets than in securities 

markets in developed countries. 

 

There is a difference between the level of regulation and monitoring of the Indian securities markets and 

the activities of investors, brokers and other participants and that of markets in the European Union, the 

United States and other developed economies. SEBI is responsible for approving disclosure and other 

regulatory standards for the Indian securities markets. SEBI has issued regulations and guidelines on 

disclosure requirements, insider trading and other matters. There may, however, be less publicly available 

information about Indian companies than is regularly made available by public companies in developed 

economies. Consequently, an investment in an Indian company, such as the Company, may be riskier than 

an investment in a European or American company if investors assume that Indian markets are subject to 

the same level of regulation and make available the same level of information as Western markets. 

 

83) A third party could be prevented from acquiring control of the Company because of anti-takeover 

provisions under Indian law. 

 

There are provisions in Indian law that may delay, deter or prevent a future takeover or change in control of 

the Company. Under the takeover regulations, an acquirer has been defined as any person who, directly or 

indirectly, acquires or agrees to acquire shares or voting rights or control over a company, whether 

individually or acting in concert with others. Although these provisions have been formulated to ensure that 

interests of investors/shareholders are protected, these provisions may also discourage a third party from 

attempting to take control of the Company. Consequently, even if a potential takeover of the Company 

would result in the purchase of the Equity Shares at a premium to their market price or would otherwise be 

beneficial to its shareholders, such a takeover may not be attempted or consummated because of Indian 

takeover regulations. 

 

84) Volatile conditions in the Indian securities market may affect the price or liquidity of the Equity Shares. 

 

The Indian securities markets are smaller and can be more volatile than securities markets in more 

developed economies. The Indian stock exchanges have in the past experienced substantial fluctuations in 

the prices of listed securities.  

 

85) There are restrictions on daily movements in the price of the Equity Shares, which may adversely affect 

a shareholderôs ability to sell, or the price at which it can sell the Equity Shares. 

 

The Equity Shares may be subject to a daily ñcircuit breakerò imposed by all stock exchanges in India, 

which does not allow transactions beyond specified increases or decreases in the price of the Equity Shares. 

This circuit breaker operates independently of the index-based market-wide circuit breakers generally 

imposed by SEBI on Indian stock exchanges. The percentage limit on the circuit breakers is set by the stock 

exchanges based on the historical volatility in the price and trading volume of the Equity Shares. This 

circuit breaker limits the upward and downward movements in the price of the Equity Shares. As a result of 

this circuit breaker, no assurance may be given regarding your ability to sell your Equity Shares or the price 

at which you may be able to sell your Equity Shares at any particular time. 

 

86) The Company does not have a fixed dividend policy and the dividends paid out in the past are not an 

indication of the Companyôs dividend policy in the future. 

 

The Company does not have a fixed dividend policy and the dividends paid out in the past are not an 

indication of its dividend policy in the future. The Companyôs ability to declare dividends in relation to its 

Equity Shares will also depend on the Companyôs future financial performance which, in turn, depends on 

the successful implementation of its strategy and on financial, competitive, regulatory, and other factors, 

general economic conditions, demand and fares, costs of materials and other factors specific to the textile 

industry, many of which are beyond the Companyôs control. Volatile conditions in the Indian securities 

market may affect the price or liquidity of the Equity Shares. 
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Prominent Notes 

 

1. The Company was incorporated on April 19, 2000. For details, please see the section titled ñHistory and 

Certain Corporate Mattersò beginning on page 98 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus. 

 

2. The average cost of acquisition of Equity Shares by the Promoter is Rs. 4 per Equity Share. 

  

3. Public Issue of [ǒ] Equity Shares for cash at a price of Rs. [ǒ] per Equity Share (including a share premium 

of Rs. [ǒ] per Equity Share) aggregating to Rs. [ǒ] million consisting of a Fresh Issue of [ǒ] Equity Shares 

aggregating up to Rs. 5,000 million and an Offer for sale of 11,964,218 Equity Shares by S. Kumars 

Nationwide Limited and 2,991,055 Equity Shares by Indivest Pte Ltd. The Issue also includes a reservation 

of up to [ǒ] Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each aggregating of Rs. [ǒ] million for the Eligible Employees. The 

Issue will constitute [ǒ]% of the fully diluted post issue paid up equity capital of the Company. The Net 

Issue will constitute [ǒ]% of the post-Issue paid up Equity Share capital of the Company.   

 

4. The Companyôs net worth as at September 30, 2010 was Rs. 14,054.2 million.  

 

5. The net asset value per Equity Share was Rs. 104.4 as at September 30, 2010 as per the Companyôs restated 

financial statements.  

 

6. For details of related party transactions entered into by the Company, please see the section titled 

ñFinancial Statementsò beginning on page 139 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.  

 

7. There has been no financing arrangement whereby the Promoter Group, the directors of the Promoter, the 

Directors and their relatives have financed the purchase by any other person of securities of the Company 

other than in normal course of the business of the financing entity during the period of six months 

immediately preceding the date of filing of the Draft Red Herring Prospectus. 

 

8. The Promoter is interested in the Company by virtue of its shareholding in the Company. See ñCapital 

Structureò, ñManagementò on page 25 and 106 of the Draft Red Herring Prospectus. For further details in 

relation to the interest of the Promoter, please see section ñPromoter and Promoter Groupò on page 121 of 

the Draft Red Herring Prospectus. 

 

9. Investors may contact the GCBRLMs and BRLMs for complaints, information or clarifications pertaining 

to the Issue. 
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SECTION III: INTRODUCTION  

 

SUMMARY OF INDUSTRY  

 

In 2009, world apparel production stood at US$140 billion, with 71% of production accounted for by Asian 

countries. The developed nations/regions such as US and European Union (ñEUò) accounted for 11% and 14% of 

global production respectively. Being a matured industry, growth rate of the Global Textile and Apparel industry is 

in sync with the growth rate in global GDP. Of the total apparel retail market valued at approximately US$500 

billion in 2009, the developed nations/regions like US and EU accounted for 33% and 30% respectively. 

 

The Indian textile and apparel industry is estimated by CARE Research to be worth Rs. 2,700 billion in fiscal year 

2010. It has been estimated on the basis of industry interactions. Approximately 65% of the total textile and apparel 

production (wholesale price level) is consumed domestically. Indiaôs domestic textiles and apparel consumption is 

estimated by CARE Research at Rs. 1,750 billion (wholesale price level), of which apparels account for 

approximately 71%. India exported US$20 billion worth of textiles and apparel of which 45% are apparel exports. 

 

The textile and apparel industry is one of the largest and the most important sectors in the Indian economy in terms 

of output, foreign exchange earnings and employment. It contributes approximately 14% to Indiaôs industrial 

production, 4% to the countryôs GDP and 17% to the countryôs export earnings. It provides direct employment to 

over 35 million people and is the second largest provider of employment after the agricultural sector. Thus the 

development of this sector has an overall impact on the economy. The Indian textile and apparel industry contributes 

approximately 4% to the global textile and apparel market. Since the textile industry has such economic importance, 

it has always attracted the Governmentôs attention. Therefore, the Government has introduced policies such as the 

Technology Upgradation Fund Scheme (ñTUFSò), Scheme for Integrated Textile Parks (ñSITPò), low excise duty, 

high import duty (to discourage imports) and National Textile Policy to develop the textile sector. 

 

Indian Apparel Industry  

 

CARE Research estimates (based on industry interactions) that the Indian apparel market grew at a CAGR of 6.5% 

from Rs. 1,225 billion in fiscal year 2005 to Rs. 1,675 billion in fiscal year 2010 (wholesale level). The Indian 

apparel market comprises domestic apparel consumption and exports. The domestic market is estimated to be worth 

Rs. 1,250 billion in fiscal year 2010 (at wholesale level). Spending on domestic retail apparel has grown at a high 

rate of approximately 13ï14%. The apparel market size at the retail level is estimated by CARE Research at Rs. 

2,000 billion in fiscal year 2010. According to CARE Research, the retail purchases on apparels is expected to 

double to approximately Rs. 4,000 billion by fiscal year 2015, a CAGR of approximately 15%. Factors expected to 

contribute to the growth of the Indian apparel industry include: 

 

ü Rising levels of disposable income; 

 

ü Growing preference for ready-to-wear apparels; 

 

ü Increasing penetration of organised retail; 

 

ü Changing consumer habits; 

 

ü Increasing trend towards urbanization; and 

 

ü A comparatively younger populace. 

 

Menswear 

 

According to CARE Research, menôs apparel is the largest segment in the Indian apparel market. CARE Research 

estimates its approximate value at Rs. 519 billion in fiscal year 2010 and expects it to grow at a CAGR of 6.8% to 

Rs. 720 billion by fiscal year 2015. The market penetration of organised manufacturers and brands is greatest in this 

segment of the domestic apparel market. Shirts, trousers and suits contribute almost 71.2% to the domestic apparel 

market and are expected to maintain their market share in future. The t-shirt market is expected to experience the 
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highest growth over the next five years. Other menôs garments include casual and leather jackets, nightwear, 

woollens and dhotis/lungis. Mensware brands have the highest brand loyalty factor in the apparel market, especially 

in the premium and super premium segments. 

 

Worsted Fabrics 

 

Worsted fabric is a blended form of fabric in which one of the components is wool. The wool can be blended with 

both, man-made or cotton fibers to form a worsted fabric.  

 

According to CARE Research estimates based on industry interactions, 45 million meters of worsted fabric was 

produced in fiscal year 2009. There has been minimal growth over the past five years. The industry is expected to 

produce approximately 52 million meters of worsted fabric in fiscal year 2014. Future growth can be attributed to 

the rising income levels, reducing price gap of competing fabrics and increasing preference for wool blended fabric 

among Indian consumers due to its grace and style. The average price for worsted fabric is approximately Rs. 450 

per meter. Worsted fabrics are used primarily in the premium, super premium and luxury segments. The industry has 

a total installed capacity of 0.604 million spindles as of 2009. Major players in the worsted fabric business are 

Raymond, Reid and Taylor, Digjam, Dinesh and Vimal. Though Raymond is the market leader in the worsted fabric 

business, Reid and Taylor has managed to increase its market share over the last few years. 

 

U.S. Apparel Market 
 

The U.S. apparel industry is large and mature. It is characterized by slow volume growth. Its per capita consumption 

stands at 35 meters of textile per annum. As per the U.S. Census Bureau, apparel production has declined at a sharp 

pace during the last three years. It stood at US$5.6 billion in 2009. A gradual increase in imports has substituted for 

the high cost domestic production. Currently, 90% of its apparel consumption (by volume) is met through imports. 

As per the office of textiles commissioner, U.S. apparel imports were worth US$63.1 billion in 2009. South-East 

Asian countries are the key exporters of apparels to the U.S. The shift of apparel manufacturing from western 

countries to eastern nations can be attributed to the abolition of quotas in 2005 thereby leading to a gradual increase 

in exports from relatively cheaper Asian, Latin American and other countries to the western nations. 

 

 

 

 

 



 

3 

SUMMARY OF BUSINESS 

 

Overview 

 

The Company is a vertically integrated, premium clothing provider and fashion company, which manufactures and 

sells the internationally recognized licensed brands óReid & Taylorô and óStephens Brothersô. These two brands 

target the premium and super premium segments of the Indian fabric and ready-to-wear garment markets.   

 

The Companyôs flagship brand, óReid & Taylorô, was founded in Scotland in 1839 by weaver Alexander Reid and 

financier Joseph Taylor. Since that time, the óReid & Taylorô has won many awards for creating fine woollen cloths. 

The customers of Reid & Taylorôs fabrics include several well-known fashion brands. óReid & Taylorô has become a 

widely recognized brand in India and received the title of ñSuperbrandò from the Economic Times Survey in 2009. 

The Company licenses the brand in India and certain other countries under a license agreement signed in July 2008, 

which became retroactively effective from January 1, 2008 and is valid in perpetuity. For further details on the óReid 

& Taylorô brand license agreement, see ñBusiness ï The License Agreementsò on page 90 of this Draft Red Herring 

Prospectus. The Company has expanded the brand beyond the textile to ready-to-wear garments. 

 

The óStephens Brothersô brand is a heritage British brand owned by Austin Reed Limited UK. The brand was first 

established in Great Britain in 1919 and has since become recognized for fine English style clothing for men and 

women. The Company entered into a license agreement (through a novation agreement and guarantee in October 

2008) with Austin Reed Limited for use of the óStephens Brothersô brand name and the processes it employs to 

manufacture its products for a term of five years from September 1, 2006 to December 31, 2011, which can be 

renewed for a further period of five years. For further details on the óStephens Brothersô brand license agreement, 

see ñBusiness ï The License Agreementsò on page 90 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus. 

 

The Companyôs brands target specific premium segments of the Indian apparel market, so as to compliment and not 

compete with one another. The óReid & Taylorô brand covers premium and super premium fabrics, such as worsted, 

all-wool and wool polyester blended suitings, which cater to the premium and super premium markets, as well as 

ready-to-wear garments that focus on the formal wear part of the premium segment. óStephens Brothersô targets the 

super premium segment and specialises in menôs and womenôs ready-to-wear formal wear. Both the óReid & Taylorô 

and óStephens Brothersô brands are part of the Companyôs ñTotal Wardrobe Solutionsò, which was launched by 

SKNL in 2004. This concept was conceived to provide customers with clothing solutions from belts to trousers and 

shirts, all under the same brand name and at the same location. The óReid & Taylorô brand has been consciously 

extended from fabrics to ready-to-wear garments in order to leverage its existing brand equity and thereby 

optimizing brand building costs. In addition, the Company intends to launch its first Company-owned brand in the 

fourth quarter of fiscal 2011. This new brand will serve as the Companyôs casual clothes brand in the premium 

segment. The Company believes this targeted approach gives it a distinct advantage over its competitors.  

 

The Company uses a mix of multi-brand outlets and exclusive brand outlets to distribute its products across a broad 

geographic area. Through its relationship with Brandhouse Retail Limited (ñBHRLò), the Company intends to 

increase the number of BHRL-leased exclusive brand outlets in the near term. In addition, the Company intends to 

supplement this model with Company-leased exclusive brand outlets. The new Company-leased exclusive brand 

outlets will be managed by BHRL, thereby allowing the Company to leverage BHRLôs extensive retailing 

experience while capturing a greater share of the product margins. 

 

In the fiscal year ended March 31, 2010, CARE Research estimates that the Company captured a market share of 

approximately 7.5% in the premium suiting segment and 24% of the worsted fabrics market. The Companyôs sales 

and services charges for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2009 and 2010 and the six month period ended September 

30, 2010 were Rs. 6,526.0 million, Rs. 9,849.4 million and Rs. 5,665.5 million, respectively. The Companyôs 

EBITDA for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2009 and 2010 and the six month period ended September 30, 2010 

were Rs. 2,196.4 million, Rs. 3,242.2 million and Rs. 1,894.8 million, respectively. 

 

Strengths  
 

The Company believes its principal strengths consist of the following: 
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Presence in the highest growth segments 

 

The Companyôs brands are present in the highest growth segments in India, namely, the premium and super 

premium segments. According to CARE Research, the combined market share of these two segments for shirts and 

trousers is expected to increase from 13.0% and 23.9%, respectively, in 2010 to 14.8% and 28.0%, respectively, by 

2015, while the market share for suits is expected to grow from 10.5% in 2009 to 11.2% by 2014. Growth in these 

segments is driven by an increasing proportion of Indiaôs working population as well as increased brand 

consciousness among Indiaôs youth. The Company also believes that the increasing affluence of the Indian middle 

class will be characterised by material social awareness and competition, resulting in premium and super premium 

brands being viewed as symbols of wealth and status. As a result, these two segments are expected to see greater 

growth in the medium term as compared to the economy and mid-price market segments. The Company believes it 

is well-positioned to take advantage of the high growth rates expected from these market segments. 

 

Established brands and market positioning 

 

The Companyôs existing brands are well established in both the Indian and international markets. óReid & Taylorô 

received the title of ñSuperbrandò from the Economic Times Survey in 2009. The Company has brands at two price-

points, óReid & Taylorô in the premium segment and óStephens Brothersô in the super premium segment as well as a 

soon to be launched brand in the casual premium segment. The Company has consciously extended the óReid & 

Taylorô brand from fabrics to the ready-to-wear garment segment in order to leverage its existing brand equity and 

thereby optimize brand building costs. óReid & Taylorô has been endorsed by Indian and international celebrities.   

 

The Company maintains an aggressive growth-oriented advertising and brand building strategy. The Company's 

branding strategy has been an essential element of this brandôs growth. The Company engages in a multi-faceted 

branding strategy that includes celebrity endorsements of its products, including under the slogan ñBond with the 

Bestò. The Company believes that associating its óReid & Taylorô products with Indian celebrities provides instant 

credibility and brand recognition. The Company attempts to make the brand highly identifiable through the use of 

unique graphics and colour schemes. The Company engages in high impact advertising through national television, 

daily newspapers and magazines in all major languages. In addition, the Company promotes the visibility of its 

óReid & Taylorô brand through advertising at widely followed events such as cricket matches and reality shows. 

 

Strong distribution network 

 

The Company believes it has an extensive distribution network that includes wholesale dealers and retail outlets 

spread across India. The Company is a supplier of premium and super premium textiles to certain major corporates 

in India. BHRL operates a nationwide network of exclusive brand outlets that market and sell the Companyôs 

products under a franchise agreement. In the fiscal years ended March 31, 2009 and 2010 and the six month period 

ended September 30, 2010, sales to BHRL represented 39.9%, 37.2% and 29.6%, respectively, of the Companyôs 

total sales. The Company believes BHRLôs exclusive brand outlets reinforce its already strong retail multi-brand 

distribution network and have helped to create a geographically diverse retail network which allows the Companyôs 

products to reach certain areas of India that have historically been underserved by the retail clothing industry. In 

addition, the Company intends to supplement this model with Company-leased exclusive brand outlets that will be 

managed by BHRL. The Company is also exploring the possibility of taking advantage of HMX LLCôs extensive 

North American distribution network to introduce its brands into the North American market in the future.  

 

Vertically integrated operations 

 

The Company maintains a vertically integrated business model which is responsible for managing the key supply 

chain functions from theme and product design (for ready-to-wear), sourcing of raw materials and merchandising, 

outsourcing the production of certain types of clothing products and product parts, critical assembly and finishing of 

product parts, to marketing and promotion, and sales and distribution of its products. This provides the Company 

with significant operational flexibility, direct access to end customers and a greater ability to control access to raw 

materials and product parts as well as the cost, quality and delivery time of such raw materials and product parts. 
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High-quality fabric provider with significant manufacturing capabilities 

 

The Company has established a manufacturing infrastructure that is vertically integrated, giving the Company a 

presence in the entire value chain, from yarn spinning to ready-to-wear garments. The Company has made 

significant investments in technology and equipment at its manufacturing facility in Mysore. The Company believes 

its manufacturing facility in Mysore is fully integrated and automated. These modern production facilities enable the 

Company to provide a wider variety of designs and better quality products. The Company routinely upgrades its 

existing facilities in an effort to employ the most productive technologies in textile manufacturing. The Companyôs 

Mysore facility is ISO 9001 quality management certified. The Company also plans to expand its overall 

manufacturing capacity through the establishment of a new suit stitching factory in Bengaluru to meet increased 

demand for its products as well as to possibly cater to some of SKNLôs overseas subsidiaries in the future. Modern 

manufacturing processes and automation are supplemented by labour cost advantages inherent to Indian 

manufacturing and allows the Company to maintain cost efficient operations. Additionally, the Companyôs vertically 

integrated manufacturing operations help to ensure that the final products meet the Companyôs high quality control 

standards. The Company believes its vertically integrated manufacturing model gives it a significant competitive 

advantage. 

 

Effective outsourcing model 

 

The Company has adopted a business model of partnering with other manufacturers to outsource certain aspects of 

its production while focussing on branding and marketing. This enables the Company to take advantage of excess 

production capacity in the industry without incurring the large capital expenditure necessary for in-house 

production. The Company has historically relied on outsourcing certain products related to polyester-viscose fabrics 

and the ready-to-wear garments because converters may be contracted at competitive rates without affecting the 

quality of the products. As part of this strategy, the Company provides its outsourcing converters with the design 

specifications and oversees all aspects of quality control through on-site personnel and periodic quality audits. As 

demand fluctuates, the Company believes its outsourcing model allows it to increase or decrease its production in a 

timely and cost efficient manner. As demand for the Companyôs products grows, the Company intends to seek out 

additional outsourcing opportunities in order to continue to operate at flexible production levels. The Company may 

seek to add outsourcing partners if it believes it can maintain consistency in the quality of the output through in-

house quality control initiatives. The Company believes that its outsourcing model allows the Company to focus on 

its core competencies and higher value-added processes in order to maximise operational efficiency and product 

quality, and improve margins by reducing its cost base and capital at risk. 

 

Strong shareholder support 

 

The Companyôs promoter, SKNL, is one of Indiaôs leading textile manufacturing companies. This relationship 

allows the Company to draw on the extensive business network and in-depth business knowledge, relationships and 

expertise of SKNL as well as to use SKNLôs pool of experienced managers and personnel. In addition, GICSI, 

through its affiliate Indivest Pte Ltd, became a shareholder of the Company in 2008, providing the Company with 

the financial strength it needs to grow its business in the future.  

 

Experienced management team 

 

The Company believes that its qualified and experienced management team has contributed to the growth of its 

brand image and competitiveness. The Companyôs management team consists of individuals having significant 

experience in the textile industry. The Companyôs Managing Director and Executive Director, Nitin Kasliwal, has 

32 years of experience in the textile industry. The management team has worked together to implement several 

successful business initiatives and are responsible for the Companyôs day to day operations and future expansion 

plans. The management team is supported by an experienced and technically qualified execution team that includes 

brand managers focused on developing each of the Companyôs licensed brands. The Company believes that the 

market experience and knowledge that its brand managers possess has been, and will continue to be, an integral part 

of the Companyôs ability to promote synergies both within the Company and with SKNL, as well as contribute to 

the Companyôs overall success. 

 

Strategy 
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Launch new brands in the premium market segment 

 

In the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2011, the Company intends to launch its first Company-owned brand. The new 

brand will include casual menôs wear targeted at the casual premium segment. This brand will compliment the 

Companyôs other premium market brand, óReid & Taylorô, which has traditionally been viewed as a formal wear 

brand. The brand will target the 21 to 40 year old age group and will be promoted with a focused media campaign 

that will include leading newspaper dailies, magazines and hoardings. The Company intends to sell this new brand 

through traditional multi outlet stores as well as BHRL and Company-leased exclusive brand outlets. The Company 

will continue to explore other expansion opportunities by launching new Company-owned brands or by licensing 

additional international brands for the Indian market.  

 

Optimize the Companyôs mix of exclusive brand outlets and multi-brand outlets 

 

The Company has, in the past, primarily relied on multi-brand outlets to account for the majority of its domestic 

sales. With rising per capita incomes and as Indian consumers develop more sophisticated tastes, the Company 

believes exclusive brand outlets will play a more prominent role in the Indian retail market. The Company believes 

it has been at the forefront of the exclusive brand outlet model through its relationship with BHRL. The Company 

intends to work with BHRL in order to increase the number of BHRL-leased exclusive brand outlets in the near 

term. In addition, the Company intends to supplement this model with Company-leased exclusive brand outlets that 

will be managed by BHRL. The Company intends to set up 100 outlets for the óReid & Taylorô brand, 30 outlets for 

the óStephens Brothersô brand and 30 outlets for the Companyôs new casual premium brand during fiscal year 2012. 

For details, please see the section ñObjects of the Issueò on page 32 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus. The 

Company believes the expansion of its exclusive brand outlet model will complement its already strong multi-brand 

outlet network by allowing the Company to capture a greater share of the overall margin while leveraging BHRLôs 

retailing expertise. 

 

Leverage synergies with SKNLôs international operations 

 

The Company believes that it is in a strong position to leverage the existing synergies with SKNL to expand its 

customer base and sales revenue. With SKNLôs acquisitions of the assets of Hartmarx Corporation USA in North 

America as well as the signing of a license agreement with óDKNYô, the Company believes there are promising 

opportunities for it to supply high quality textile products to SKNLôs overseas business units. For example, the 

Company believes that the existing North American distribution network of HMX LLC provides the Company with 

a platform through which it could supply fabric and garments for use in HMX LLC brands. Similarly, the Company 

believes that with rising income levels in India coupled with a more sophisticated taste in fashion, there is an 

opportunity to launch several of the premium and super premium HMX LLC brands in India through the Companyôs 

well established pan-Indian distribution network. As production quality continues to improve within India and as 

high quality apparel and textile customers are increasingly willing to accept products manufactured in India, SKNL 

may seek to shift a portion of its North American production to the Companyôs high quality, low cost manufacturing 

facilities in India. 

 

Increase production capacity to cater to growing domestic and international demand and add new brands 

 

Management has formulated a cohesive business strategy for growing its business and capitalizing on the significant 

opportunities available in the growing domestic and international textile markets. In line with its continuing growth 

strategy, the Company has undertaken two major growth plans. The first, which was achieved in 2009, was the 

expansion of its weaving and spinning capacity at its Mysore facility from 4.8 million meters per annum of fabric to 

8.4 million meters per annum to cater to both the domestic and international markets for premium and super 

premium textiles. The Company believes this expansion has provided it with the capacity it needs to meet the 

expected increase in demand for premium suiting fabrics. The Company intends to further strengthen this facility 

and de-bottleneck the production process by adding balancing equipment for dyeing, finishing and processing as 

well as purchase additional machinery. The second is the establishment of a new facility for designing and 

producing suits in Bengaluru, which is set to be completed in fiscal year 2011. The new facility is expected to 

produce high-quality menôs outerwear ready-to-wear garments, such as jackets, suits and trousers. The total cost 

estimated for setting up the new manufacturing unit is Rs. 645.7 million. The Company also intends to work with 
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SKNL to find opportunities for the Company to source SKNLôs overseas subsidiaries with production from its new 

Bengaluru facility. 
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SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION  

 

The following tables set forth summary financial information derived from the audited restated financial statements 

as of and for the nine months period ended September 30, 2010 and the year ended March 31, 2008, 2009 and 2010.  

The summary statement of restated assets and liabilities derived from the audited restated financial statements has 

been provided as of and for the nine months period ended September 30, 2010 and the year ended March 31, 2006, 

2007 2008, 2009 and 2010. These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian GAAP, the 

Companies Act and the SEBI Regulations and presented under the section ñFinancial Statementsò on page 139 of 

this Draft Red Herring Prospectus. The summary financial information presented below should be read in 

conjunction with the restated financial statements, the notes thereto and the sections ñFinancial Statementsò and 

ñManagementôs Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operationsò on page 178 of this 

Draft Red Herring Prospectus.  

 

SUMMARY  STATEMENT OF RESTATED ASSETS AND LIABILITIES  

 

(Rs. in Millions) 

Sr. 

No. 

Particulars As at 

30- 

Sep-10 

31- 

Mar -10 

31- 

Mar -09 

31-Mar -

08 

31-

Mar -07 

31-

Mar -06 

A. Fixed Assets       

 Gross Block  1,193.66  1,159.43 1,134.63 785.64 - - 

 Less: Depreciation / Amortisation    350.76  309.48 225.87 69.47 - - 

 Net Block     842.90  849.95 908.76 716.17 - - 

 Less: Revaluation Reserve              -    - - - - - 

 Net Block after adjustment for 

Revaluation Reserve 
    842.90  849.95 908.76 716.17 - - 

 Capital Work- in- Progress 

(including Capital Advances) 

 2,248.44  2,186.65 586.31 129.86 - - 

   3,091.34  3,036.60 1,495.07 846.03 - - 

         

B. Investments         0.01  0.01 0.01 - - - 

         

C. Deferred Tax Assets - - 1.10 6.23 - - 

         

D. Current  Assets, Loans and 

Advances 

       

 Inventories  3,438.97  2,848.03 1,584.85 969.37 - - 

 Receivables   5,377.92  4,863.52 2,927.97 1,908.87 - - 

 Cash & bank balances     617.21  701.30 600.62 27.81 0.01 0.01 

 Loans and advances  9,934.24  8,365.84 6,852.03 954.50 0.48 0.48 

         

 Total Current Assets 19,368.34  16,778.69 11,965.47 3,860.55 0.49 0.49 

         

E. Liabilities & Provisions         

 Secured loans  4,834.54  4,239.28 2,221.23 3,333.40 - - 

 Unsecured loans -                           - - - - - 

 Deferred Tax Liabilities      16.18  15.25 - - - - 

 Current Liabilities      952.39  621.62 595.15 517.04 0.05 0.05 

 Provisions   2,602.39  2,027.61 890.74 193.19 - - 

         

 Total Liabilities & Provisions   8,405.50  6,903.76 3,707.12 4,043.63 0.05 0.05 

         

E. Net Worth (A+B+C+D-E) 14,054.19  12,911.54 9,754.53 669.18 0.44 0.44 

 Represented by:        
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Sr. 

No. 

Particulars As at 

30- 

Sep-10 

31- 

Mar -10 

31- 

Mar -09 

31-Mar -

08 

31-

Mar -07 

31-

Mar -06 

 SHAREHOLDERS FUNDS        

 Share Capital  1,345.97  538.39 520.35 400.50 0.50 0.50 

 Share Application Money - - - - - - 

 RESERVES & SURPLUS 12,708.22  12,373.15 9,234.18 268.68 - - 

 Less: Revaluation Reserve              -    - - - - - 

 Reserves (Net of Revaluation 

Reserve) 

12,708.22  12,373.15 9,234.18 268.68 - - 

 Less: Miscellaneous Expenditure 

not written off 

- - - - 0.06 0.06 

  12,708.22  12,373.15 9,234.18 268.68 (0.06) (0.06) 

 Net Worth 14,054.19  12,911.54 9,754.53 669.18 0.44 0.44 



 

10 

SUMMARY STATEMENT OF RESTATED PROFIT AND LOSS  

 

(Rs. in Millions) 

Particulars For the Financial Year ended 

30- 

Sep-10 

31- 

Mar -10 

31-Mar -

09 

31-Mar -

08 

INCOME      

Income from Operations     

-      Fabrics 4,338.48  7,613.56 5,296.86 1,209.56 

-      Garments 1,327.03  2,235.82 1,229.17 219.68 

Total Income from Operations 5,665.51  9,849.38 6,526.03 1,429.24 

Other income    220.99  562.85 388.57 8.08 

Increase / (decrease) in Inventories   436.99  1,089.84 219.21 (73.54) 

Total Income (A) 6,323.49  11,502.07 7,133.81 1,363.78 

      

EXPENDITURE       

Raw Materials Consumed 3,302.84  6,059.35 2,996.17 497.96 

Manufacturing Expenses   298.82  470.73 429.41 99.41 

Payment to & Provision for Employees    185.59  321.27 281.79 48.38 

Administrative Expenses     81.05  133.34 124.27 29.23 

Selling and Distribution Expenses    339.41  711.21 717.20 120.67 

Restructured Financial Costs Amortised / Miscellaneous 

Expenditure written off 

     10.99  21.98 10.99 1.99 

Interest and Finance Charges   356.06  514.42 271.20 62.24 

Depreciation and Amortisation      44.33  85.60 158.54 69.47 

Total Expenditure (B) 4,619.09  8,317.90 4,989.57 929.35 

      

Profit before tax, extraordinary items and prior period items 

(C) = (A) - (B) 

1,704.40  3,184.17 2,144.24 434.43 

      

PROVISION FOR TAXATION       

Income tax    571.80  1,131.58 688.79 164.61 

Deferred tax Liability/ (Assets)        0.93  16.35 5.13 (6.23) 

Wealth Tax - 0.11 0.11 0.17 

Fringe Benefits Tax -                           - 6.53 1.17 

Taxation for earlier years - 6.74 3.77 - 

Total Tax Expense / (Credit) (D)   572.73  1,154.78 704.33 159.72 

      

Net profit after tax & before extraordinary ite ms and prior 

period items (E) = (C ) - (D) 

1,131.67  2,029.39 1,439.91 274.71 

      

Prior period (Incomes)  / Expenses       1.10  - 2.20 0.06 

Extraordinary Items - - - - 

      

Net profit after extraordinary items and prior period items, 

before restatement 

1,130.57  2,029.39 1,437.71 274.65 

      

Adjustments made on account of Restatement (Refer Note 16 

of Notes to Accounts) 

     

Restructured Financial Costs -                           - 252.73 - 

Restructured Financial Costs Amortised  (10.99) (21.98) (10.99) - 

Prior Period Expenses / Incomes     (1.10) 1.10 (2.20) 2.20 

Taxation for earlier years reversed - (6.74) (3.77) - 

Additional Taxes for the year - - 6.74 3.77 
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Particulars For the Financial Year ended 

30- 

Sep-10 

31- 

Mar -10 

31-Mar -

09 

31-Mar -

08 

Total Adjustments  (12.09) (27.62) 242.51 5.97 

Tax impact on adjustments             -    - - - 

Total Adjustments, net of tax impact   (12.09) (27.62) 242.51 5.97 

      

Net Profit, as Restated 1,142.66  2,057.01 1,195.20 268.68 

      

Balance brought forward from previous year 3,520.89  1,463.88 268.68 - 

Appropriations             -    - - - 

Balance carried to Balance Sheet 4,663.55  3,520.89 1,463.88 268.68 

 

Note: Summary Statement of Restated Profit & Loss for the year ended March 31, 2007 and March 31, 2006 have 

not been prepared as the company had not commenced commercial operations during those years. 
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SUMMARY STATEMENT OF RESTATED CASH FLOWS  

 

(Rs. in Millions) 

Particulars For the Financial Year ended 

30- 

Sep-10 

31- 

Mar -10 

31- 

Mar -09 

31- 

Mar -08 

A. Cash Flow from Operating Activities     

Profit before Tax and Extra Ordinary Items  1,715.39  3,206.15 1,902.50 434.43 

Adjustments for :      

Depreciation/Amortization       44.33  85.60 158.54 69.47 

Miscellaneous Expenditure Written Off               -    - - 1.99 

Interest Expense      356.06  514.42 523.93 62.24 

Interest Income   (207.71) (525.10) (363.52) (0.07) 

(Profit) / Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets          1.14  0.54 0.09 - 

Sundry Balances written off                -    - - (0.03) 

Operating Profit / (Loss) before Working Capital Changes  1,909.21  3,281.61 2,221.54 568.03 

Adjustments for :     

(Increase)/Decrease in Sundry Debtors   (514.40) (1,935.55) (1,019.10) (1,908.87) 

(Increase)/Decrease in Loans and Advances (1,568.39) (1,513.80) (5,897.53) (962.18) 

(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories   (590.94) (1,263.18) (615.48) (969.37) 

Increase/(Decrease) in Current Liabilities & Provisions      704.53  411.41 247.96 546.71 

Cash Generated from / (Used in) Operations     (59.99) (1,019.51) (5,062.61) (2,725.68) 

Direct Taxes Paid (Net)    (370.78) (379.76) (174.47) - 

Cash Flow from / (Used in) before Prior Period items    (430.77) (1,399.27) (5,237.08) (2,725.68) 

Prior Period Adjustments (gross)               -    1.10 - (2.26) 

Net Cash Flow from / (Used in) Operating Activities   (430.77) (1,400.37) (5,237.08) (2,727.94) 

      

B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities      

Purchase of Fixed Assets   (102.19) (1,630.73) (845.79) (915.49) 

Purchase of Investments               -    - (0.01) - 

Sale of Fixed Assets         1.97  3.05 38.12 - 

Interest Received      207.71  525.10 363.52 0.07 

Net Cash Flow from / (Used in) Investing Activities     107.49  (1,102.58) (444.16) (915.42) 

      

C. Cash Flow from Financing Activities      

Procurement of Secured Loans 604.74 2,023.60 1,204.52 3,333.40 

Repayment of Secured Loans (9.49) (5.55) (2,316.69) - 

Procurement of Unsecured Loans - - - - 

Repayment of Unsecured Loans - - - - 

Interest Expense    (356.06) (514.42) (523.93) (62.24) 

Proceeds from issue of Share Capital - 1,100.00 7,890.15 400.00 

Net Cash Flow from/(Used in) Financing Activities     239.19  2,603.63 6,254.05 3,671.16 

      

D. Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 

(A+B+C) 

  (84.09) 100.68 572.81 27.80 

E. Cash and Cash Equivalents at start of the period     701.30  600.62 27.81 0.01 

F.  Cash and Cash Equivalents at close of the period     617.21  701.30 600.62 27.81 

      

Components of Cash & Cash Equivalents:      

Cash and Cheques on Hand         0.21  0.27 0.17 0.11 

Balances with Schedules Banks      

- On Current Accounts      600.96  465.46 26.71 24.13 

- On Margin Money Accounts       16.04  235.57 573.74 3.57 

- On Deposit Accounts                -    - - - 
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Note: Cash Flow Statement for the years ended March 31, 2007 and March 31, 2006 have not been prepared as the 

requirement of reporting as per AS - 3 Cash Flow Statement was not applicable in those financial years. 
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THE ISSUE 

 

Issue of Equity Shares [ǒ] Equity Shares 

of which  

  

i) Fresh Issue by the Company  [ǒ] Equity Shares aggregating up to Rs. 5,000 million 

ii)  Offer for Sale by the Selling Shareholders
(1)

  14,955,273 Equity Shares 

Employee Reservation Portion [ǒ] Equity Shares 

Net Issue to the Public [ǒ] Equity Shares 

of which  

  

A) QIB portion
(2)

 Not more than [ǒ] Equity Shares 

Of which  

Of which:  

Available for allocation to Mutual Funds only (5% 

of the QIB Portion (excluding the Anchor Investor 

Portion))  

[ǒ] Equity Shares 

Balance for all QIBs including Mutual Funds  [ǒ] Equity Shares 

B) Non-Institutional Portion
(3)

 Not less than [ǒ] Equity Shares 

C) Retail Portion
(3)

 Not less than [ǒ] Equity Shares 

  

Equity Shares outstanding prior to the Issue 134,597,453 Equity Shares  

  

Equity Shares outstanding after the Issue  [ǒ] Equity Shares  

  

Use of Net Proceeds  Please see the section ñObjects of the Issueò on page 32 

of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus for information 

about the use of the Net Proceeds. The Company will not 

receive any proceeds from the Offer for Sale.   

 

Allocation to all categories, except the Anchor Investor Portion, if any, shall be made on a proportionate basis. 

 
(1)  The Equity Shares offered by the Selling Shareholders in the Issue have been held by them for more than a period of one 

year as on the date of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.    

 
(2) The Company and the Selling Shareholders may allocate up to 30% of the QIB Portion to Anchor Investors on a 

discretionary basis. One-third of the Anchor Investor Portion shall be reserved for domestic Mutual Funds, subject to valid 

Bids being received from domestic Mutual Funds at or above the price at which allocation is being done to other Anchor 

Investors. For details, please see the section ñIssue Procedureò on page 229 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus. 

 
(3) Subject to valid Bids being received at or above the Issue Price, under-subscription, if any, in any category, would be 

allowed to be met with spill over from any other category or combination of categories at the discretion of the Company, the 

Selling Shareholders in consultation with the GCBRLMs, the BRLMs and the Designated Stock Exchange. Under-

subscription, if any, in the Employee Reservation Portion will be added back to the Net Issue Portion. In case of under-

subscription in the Net Issue, spill over to the extent of under-subscription shall be permitted from the Employee Reservation 

Portion subject to the Net Issue constituting 10% of the post-Issue capital of the Company.   
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GENERAL INFORMATION  
 

Registered Office of the Company  

 

Marathon Innova IT Park  

B2/501 and C-501, 5
th
 Floor  

off Ganpatrao Kadam Marg, Lower Parel  

Mumbai 400 013 

Tel: (91 22) 2493 0180 

Fax: (91 22) 2493 1685 

CIN: U17114MH2000PLC126018 

Website: http://www.bondwiththebest.com 

 

Address of the RoC 

 

The Company is registered with the Registrar of Companies, Mumbai, Maharashtra, which is situated at the 

following address: 

 

Registrar of Companies 

Everest, 5th Floor 

100 Marine Drive 

Mumbai 400 002 

Maharashtra 

 

Board of Directors of the Company  

 

The Board of Directors consists of: 

 

Name and Designation DIN Address 

Dr. A. C. Shah 

Non-Executive Chairman, Independent 

Director 

00022612  C-1/2, Lloyds Garden,  

Appasahaeb Marathe Marg,  

Prabha Devi 

Mumbai 400 025 

 

Nitin S. Kasliwal 

Managing Director and Executive 

Director 

00022630 Flat No 1, Kanta,  

Little Gibbs Road,  

Maalabar Hill, 

Mumbai 400 026 

 

Ani l Kumar Channa  
Non-Executive Director 

01359682 71, Sagar Tarang co-operative housing society, 

15 K, Abdul Gafur Khan Road,  

Worli, Mumbai 400 018 

 

Kunnasagaran Chinniah  
Non-Executive Director 

01590108 12, Countryside Grove, 

Singapore 789 967 

 

Dara P. Mehta  
Non-Executive, Independent Director 

00041164 10, Southlands,  

177 Colaba Road,  

Mumbai 400 005 

 

Pradip P. Shah 

Non-Executive, Independent Director 

00066242 72A Embassy Apartments  

7
th
 Floor, Napean Sea Road  

Mumbai 400 006 
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For further details of the Directors, please see the section ñManagementò on page 106 of this Draft Red Herring 

Prospectus.  

 

Company Secretary and Compliance Officer 

 

Nihar R. Avasare is the company secretary and the compliance officer of the Company. His details are as follows: 

 

Nihar R. Avasare 

2
nd

 Floor, Inga Complex 

Mahakali Caves Road, Andheri (East) 

Mumbai 400 093 

Tel: (91 22) 2825 0797 

Fax: (91 22) 2826 5628 

Email: nihar.avasare@reidntaylor.co.in 

 

Investors can contact the Compliance Officer or the Registrar to the Issue in case of any pre-Issue or post-

Issue related problems such as the non-receipt of letters of allocation, credit of Allotted Equity Shares in the 

respective beneficiary account and refund orders. 

 

All grievances relating to the Issue may be addressed to the Registrar to the Issue, giving full details such as name, 

address of applicant, application number, number of Equity Shares applied for, amount paid on application and 

designated branch or the collection centre where the application was submitted.  

 

All  grievances relating to the ASBA process may be addressed to the Registrar to the Issue with a copy to the 

SCSBs, giving full details such as name, address of applicant, application number, number of Equity Shares applied 

for, amount paid on application and designated branch or the collection centre of the SCSB where the ASBA Bid 

cum Application Form was submitted by the ASBA Bidders. 

 

Global Coordinators and Book Running Lead Managers  

 

JM Financial Consultants Private Limited  
141, Maker Chamber-III  

Nariman Point  

Mumbai 400021 

Tel: (91 22) 6630 3030 

Fax: (91 22) 2204 2137 

E-mail: rtil.ipo@jmfinancial.in 

Investor Grievance Email: grievance.ibd@jmfinancial.in 

Website: www.jmfinancial.in 

Contact Person: Lakshmi Lakshmanan 

SEBI Registration No.: INM000010361 

 

 

UBS Securities India Private Limited  

2/F, 2 North Avenue  

Maker Maxity 

Bandra Kurla Complex, 

Bandra (East),  

Mumbai 400051 

Tel: (91 22) 6155 6000 

Fax: (91 22) 6155 6300 

E-mail: customercare@ubs.com 

Investor Grievance Email: customercare@ubs.com 

Website: www.ubs.com/Indianoffers 

Contact Person: Ashish Mukkirwar  

SEBI Registration No.: INM000010809 

 

J.P. Morgan India Private Limited  

J.P. Morgan Tower 

Off C.S.T. Road, Kalina 

Santacruz (East), 

Mumbai 400 098 

Tel: (91 22) 6157 3000 

Fax: (91 22) 6157 3911 

E-mail: project_bond@jpmorgan.com 

Investor Grievance Email: investorsmb.jpmipl.com 

Website: www.jpmipl.com 

Contact Person: Ranjan Sharma  

SEBI Registration No.: INM000002970 

Religare Capital Markets Limited  

GYS Infinity, Paranjpe óBô Scheme, Subhash Road 

Vil e Parle (East),  

Mumbai 400 057 

Tel: (91 22) 6766 3400 

Fax: (91 22) 6766 3600 

E-mail: rtil.ipo@religare.in 

Investor Grievance Email: grievance.ibd@religare.in 

Website: www.religarecapitalmarkets.com 

Contact Person: Kunur Bavishi 

SEBI Registration No: INM000011062 
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Book Running Lead Managers  

  

Antique Capital Markets Private Limited  

6th Floor, Nirmal Building, Nariman Point 

Mumbai 400 021 

Tel: (91 22) 4031 3300 

Fax: (91 22) 2202 2691 

E-mail: rtil.ipo@antiquelimited.com 

Investor Grievance Email: 

investors@antiquelimited.com 

Website: www.antiquelimited.com 

Contact Person: Ankur Joshi 

SEBI Registration No.: INM000011385 

Edelweiss Capital Limited*  

14th Floor, Express Towers 

Nariman Point 

Mumbai 400 021 

Tel: (91 22) 4086 3535 

Fax: (91 22) 4086 3610 

E-mail: rtil.ipo@edelcap.com 

Investor Grievance Email: 

customerservice.mb@edelcap.com 

Website: www.edelcap.com 

Contact Person: Neetu Ranka/Viral Shah  

SEBI Registration No.: INM0000010650 
*In compliance with the proviso to Regulation 21A(1) 

and explanation (iii) to Regulation 21A(1) of SEBI 

(Merchant Bankers) Regulations, 1992, read with 

Regulation 110 and Schedule XX of the SEBI 

Regulations, Edelweiss Capital Limited would be 

involved only in the marketing of the Issue. 

 

HSBC Securities and Capital Markets (India) Private 

Limited  

52/60 Mahatma Gandhi Road  

Fort, Mumbai 400 001  

Tel: (91 22) 2268 5555 

Fax: (91 22) 2263 1984 

E-mail: rtil.ipo@hsbc.co.in 

Investor Grievance Email: investorgrievance@hsbc.co.in 

Website: 

http://www.hsbc.co.in/1/2/corporate/equitiesglobalinvestment 

Contact Person: Sumit Roy  

SEBI Registration No.: INM000010353 

 

IDBI Capital Market Services Limited  

5
th
 Floor, Mafatlal Centre 

Nariman Point 

Mumbai 400 021 

Tel: (91 22) 4322 1212 

Fax: (91 22) 2283 8782 

E-mail: rtil.ipo@idbicapital.com 

Investor Grievance Email: 

 redressal@idbicapital.com 

Website: www.idbicapital.com 

Contact Person: Kartik Shah/ Subodh Mallaya 

SEBI Registration No.: INM000010866 

 

 

Legal Advisors to the Issue 

 

Domestic Legal Counsel to the Company 

 

Amarchand & Mangaldas & Suresh A. Shroff & Co. 

5
th
 Floor, Peninsula Chambers  

Peninsula Corporate Park  

Ganpatrao Kadam Marg, Lower Parel  

Mumbai 400 013  

Tel: (91 22) 2496 4455 

Fax: (91 22) 2496 3666 

 

Domestic Legal Counsel to the Underwriters 

 

AZB & Partners  

23
rd
 Floor, Express Towers 

Nariman Point, Mumbai 400 021 

Tel: (91 22) 6639 6880 

Fax: (91 22) 6639 6888 
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International Legal Counsel to the Underwriters  

Allen & Overy 

9th Floor, Three Exchange Square 

Central 

Hong Kong 

Tel: (852) 2974 7000 

Fax: (852) 2974 7292          

 

Syndicate Members  

 

[ǒ] 

 

Auditors to the Company  

 

Haribhakti & Co., Chartered Accountant  

701, Leela Business Park, 

Andheri Kurla Road, 

Andheri (East), Mumbai 400 059 

Tel: (91 22) 6672 9999 

Fax: (91 22) 6672 9777 

Email: rakesh.rathi@bdoharibhakti.co.in 

Membership no. of Rakesh Rathi (Partner): 45228 

Firm Registration No.: 103523W 

 

Registrar to the Issue  

 

Bigshare Services Private Limited 

E-2, Ansa Industrial Estate  

Sakivihar Road, Sakinaka 

Andheri (East) 

Mumbai 400 072 

Tel: (91 22) 4043 0200 

Fax: (91 22) 2847 5207 

Email: ipo@bigshareonline.com 

Investor Grievance Email: rtil_ipo@bigshareonline.com   

Website: www.bigshareonline.com 

Contact Person: Ashok Shetty 

SEBI Registration No.: IN 000001385 

 

IPO Grading Agency 

 

This Issue has been graded by [ǒ] as [ǒ], indicating [ǒ]. The rationale furnished by the grading agency for its 

grading will be updated at the time of filing the Red Herring Prospectus with the RoC.  

 

Experts 

 

Except the report of [ǒ] in respect of the IPO grading of this Issue, the Company has not obtained any expert 

opinions.   

 

Bankers to the Issue and Escrow Collection Banks 

 

[ǒ] 
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Bankers to the Company  

 

Bank of India 

Bullion Exchange Branch 

185 Sheikh Memon Street 

Zevari Bazar 

Mumbai 400 002 

Tel: (91 22) 6744 3301 

Fax: (91 22) 2343 7073 

Email: anil.verma@bankofindia.co.in 

Website: http://www.bankofindia.com/ 

Export Import Bank of India  

Centre One Building, Floor 21 

World Trade Centre Complex 

Cuffe Parade  

Mumbai 400 005 

Tel: (91 22) 2218 2420 

Fax: (91 22) 2218 3238 

Email: mukul@eximbankindia.in 

Website: http://eximbankindia.com/ 

 

IDBI Bank  

IDBI Tower, WTC Complex 

Cuffe Parade, Colaba 

Mumbai 400 005 

Tel: (91 22) 6655 2204 

Fax: (91 22) 2218 1195 

Email: h.biswas@idbi.co.in 

Website: http://www.idbi.com/ 

 

Indian Overseas Bank 

Elphinstone Building 

2/10 Veer Nariman Road, Fort 

Mumbai 400 023 

Tel: (91 22) 2204 5078 

Fax: (91 22) 2204 5669 

Email: fortbr@mummrc01.iobnet.co.in 

Website: http://www.iob.in/ 

Punjab National Bank 

PNB House, Sir P M Road, Fort 

Mumbai 400 001 

Tel: (91 22) 2262 7555 

Fax: (91 22) 2267 8515 

Email: pnbhousemumbai@rediffmail.com 

Website: http://www.pnbindia.in/ 

 

State Bank of India 

# 7, MRN Signature 

Vishva Manava Double Road 

Saraswathipuram 

Mysore 570 009 

Tel: (91 821) 2417122 

Fax: (91 821) 2417128 

Email: sbi.0461@sbi.co.in 

Website: http://www.statebankofindia.com/ 

 

The Jammu & Kashmir Bank Limited  

79-A, Mehta House 

Bombay Samachar Marg, Fort 

Mumbai 400 001 

Tel: (91 22) 2261 0056 

Fax: (91 22) 6659 5975 

Email: altaf.mehboob@jkmail.com 

Website: http://jkbank.net/ 

 

 

Self Certified Syndicate Banks 

 

The list of banks that have been notified by SEBI to act as a SCSB for the ASBA process are provided on 

www.sebi.gov.in/pmd/scsb.pdf. For details on Designated Branches of SCSBs collecting ASBA Bid Cum 

Application Forms, please refer to the above mentioned link. 

 

Monitoring Agency 

 

The Company has appointed [ǒ] as the Monitoring Agency. The appointment of the Monitoring Agency will be 

pursuant to Regulation 16 of the SEBI Regulations.  

 

Inter Se Allocation of Responsibilities between the GCBRLMs and the BRLMs  

 

The following table sets forth the inter se allocation of responsibilities for various activities among the GCBRLMs 

and the BRLMs for the Issue: 

 

mailto:mukul@eximbankindia.in
http://eximbankindia.com/
http://www.idbi.com/
http://www.iob.in/
mailto:altaf.mehboob@jkmail.com
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Sr. 

No. 

Activities Responsibility Co-

ordinator  

1.  Capital structuring with relative components and formalities such as type 

of instruments, etc. 

JM Financial, 

UBS, J. P. 

Morgan, 

Religare, 

Antique, 

HSBC and 

IDBI  

JM 

Financial 

2.  Due diligence of the Company operations/ management / business plans/ 

legal etc. Drafting and design of the red herring prospectus including 

memorandum containing salient features of the prospectus.  

The GCBRLMs and the BRLMs shall ensure compliance with stipulated 

requirements and completion of prescribed formalities with the Stock 

Exchanges, the RoC and SEBI including finalisation of the Prospectus and 

RoC filing 

JM Financial, 

UBS, J. P. 

Morgan, 

Religare, 

Antique, 

Edelweiss*, 

HSBC and 

IDBI 

JM 

Financial 

3.  Drafting and approval of all statutory advertisements JM Financial, 

UBS, J. P. 

Morgan, 

Religare, 

Antique, 

HSBC and 

IDBI 

JM 

Financial 

4.  Drafting and approval of all publicity materials other than statutory 

advertisements as mentioned in 3 above, including corporate advertising, 

brochures, etc. 

JM Financial, 

UBS, J. P. 

Morgan, 

Religare, 

Antique, 

HSBC and 

IDBI 

Religare 

5.  Appointment of other intermediaries including, Registrars, printers, 

advertising agency and Bankers to the Issue  

JM Financial, 

UBS, J. P. 

Morgan, 

Religare, 

Antique, 

HSBC and 

IDBI 

Religare 

6.  Preparation of road show presentation JM Financial, 

UBS, J. P. 

Morgan, 

Religare, 

Antique, 

HSBC and 

IDBI 

UBS 

7.  International institutional marketing strategy  

 Finalising the list and division of investors for one to one meetings in 

consultation with the Company, and  

 Finalising the international road show schedule and investor meeting 

schedule  

JM Financial, 

UBS, J. P. 

Morgan, 

Religare, 

Antique, 

Edelweiss, 

HSBC and 

IDBI 

UBS 
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Sr. 

No. 

Activities Responsibility Co-

ordinator  

8.  Domestic institutions/ banks/ mutual funds/ marketing strategy  

 Finalising the list and division of investors for one to one meetings, 

institutional allocation in consultation with the Company; 

 Finalising the list and division of investors for one to one meetings; 

and  

 Finalising investor meeting schedules  

JM Financial, 

UBS, J. P. 

Morgan, 

Religare, 

Antique, 

Edelweiss, 

HSBC and 

IDBI 

JM 

Financial 

9.  Non-institutional and Retail marketing of the Issue, which will cover, inter 

alia: 

 Formulating marketing strategies, preparation of publicity budget; 

 Finalising media, marketing and public relations strategy; 

 Finalising centre for holding conferences for press and brokers; and 

 Follow-up on distribution of publicity and Issue material including 

forms, the prospectus and deciding on the quantum of Issue material 

JM Financial, 

UBS, J. P. 

Morgan, 

Religare, 

Antique, 

Edelweiss, 

HSBC and 

IDBI 

JM 

Financial 

10.  Co-ordination with the Stock Exchanges for book building software, 

bidding terminals and mock trading  

JM Financial, 

UBS, J. P. 

Morgan, 

Religare, 

Antique, 

HSBC and 

IDBI 

Religare 

11.  Finalisation of Pricing in consultation with the Company  JM Financial, 

UBS, J. P. 

Morgan, 

Religare, 

Antique, 

HSBC and 

IDBI 

UBS 

12.  Post-Bidding activities including management of escrow accounts, 

coordination of non-institutional allocation, intimation of allocation and 

dispatch of refunds to bidders etc.  

The post Issue activities for the Issue involving essential follow up steps, 

which include the finalisation of trading and dealing of instruments and 

demat of delivery of shares, with the various agencies connected with the 

work such as the Registrarôs to the Issue and Bankers to the Issue and the 

bank handling refund business. The GCBRLMs and the BRLMs shall be 

responsible for ensuring that these agencies fulfil their functions and 

enable it to discharge this responsibility through suitable agreements with 

the Company   

JM Financial, 

UBS, J. P. 

Morgan, 

Religare, 

Antique, 

HSBC and 

IDBI 

J. P. 

Morgan 

* In compliance with the proviso to Regulation 21A(1) and explanation (iii) to Regulation 21A(1) of SEBI (Merchant Bankers) 

Regulations, 1992, read with Regulation 110 and Schedule XX of the SEBI Regulations, Edelweiss Capital Limited would be 

involved only in the marketing of the Issue. 
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Credit Rating 

 

As the Issue is of Equity Shares, there is no credit rating for this Issue. 

 

Trustees 

 

As the Issue is of Equity Shares, the appointment of trustees is not required. 

 

Book Building Process 

 

Book Building Process, with reference to the Issue, refers to the process of collection of Bids on the basis of the Red 

Herring Prospectus within the Price Band, which will be decided by the Company in consultation with the 

GCBRLMs and the BRLMs and advertised at least two working days prior to the Bid/Issue Opening Date. The Issue 

Price is finalised after the Bid/Issue Closing Date. The principal parties involved in the Book Building Process are: 

 

1. The Company; 

 

2. The Selling Shareholders; 

 

3. The GCBRLMs; 

 

4. The BRLMs; 

 

5. The Syndicate Members who are intermediaries registered with SEBI or registered as brokers with BSE/ 

NSE and eligible to act as Underwriters. The Syndicate Members are appointed by the GCBRLMs and the 

BRLMs;  

 

6. The SCSBs; 

 

7. The Registrar to the Issue; and 

 

8. The Escrow Collection Banks. 

 

This being an Issue for less than 25% of post issue paid-up equity share capital of the Company, the SEBI 

Regulations read with Rule 19(2)(b) of the SCRR, permit an issue of securities to the public through the 100% Book 

Building Process, wherein not more than 50% of the Issue shall be available for allocation on a proportionate basis 

to QIBs. Out of the QIB Portion (excluding the Anchor Investor Portion), 5% shall be available for allocation on a 

proportionate basis to Mutual Funds only. The remainder shall be available for allocation on a proportionate basis to 

QIBs and Mutual Funds, subject to valid Bids being received from them at or above the Issue Price. Further, not less 

than 15% of the Issue will be available for allocation on a proportionate basis to Non-Institutional Bidders and not 

less than 35% of the Issue will be available for allocation on a proportionate basis to Retail Individual Bidders, 

subject to valid Bids being received at or above the Issue Price.  

 

In accordance with the SEBI Regulations, QIB Bidders are not allowed to withdraw their Bid(s) after the Bid/Issue 

Closing Date. For further details, please see the section ñTerms of the Issueò on page 222 of this Draft Red Herring 

Prospectus.  

 

The Company shall comply with the SEBI Regulations and any other ancillary directions issued by SEBI for this 

Issue. In this regard, the Company has appointed the GCBRLMs and the BRLMs to manage the Issue and procure 

subscriptions to the Issue. 

 

The Book Building Process under the SEBI Regulations is subject to change from time to time and the investors are 

advised to make their own judgment about investment through this process prior to making a Bid or application in 

the Issue.  

 

Illustration of Book Building Process and Price discovery process (Investors should note that this example is 
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solely for illustrative purposes and is not specific to the Issue; it excludes bidding by Anchor Investors or ASBA 

process) 

 

Bidders can bid at any price within the price band. For instance, assume a price band of Rs. 20 to Rs. 24 per equity 

share, issue size of 3,000 equity shares and receipt of five bids from bidders, details of which are shown in the table 

below. A graphical representation of the consolidated demand and price would be made available at the bidding 

centres during the bidding period. The illustrative book below shows the demand for the equity shares of the issuer 

company at various prices which is collated from bids received from various investors. 

 

Bid Quantity  Bid Amount (Rs.) Cumulative Quantity Subscription 

500 24 500 16.67% 

1,000 23 1,500 50.00% 

1,500 22 3,000 100.00% 

2,000 21 5,000 166.67% 

2,500 20 7,500 250.00% 

 

The price discovery is a function of demand at various prices. The highest price at which the issuer is able to issue 

the desired number of shares is the price at which the book cuts off, i.e., Rs. 22 in the above example. The issuer, in 

consultation with the GCBRLMs and the BRLMs, will finalise the issue price at or below such cut-off price, i.e., at 

or below Rs. 22. All bids at or above this issue price and cut-off bids are valid bids and are considered for allocation 

in the respective categories. 

 

Steps to be taken by the Bidders for Bidding: 

 

1. Check eligibility for making a Bid (please see ñWho Can Bid?ò in the section ñIssue Procedureò on page 

230 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus); 

 

2. Ensure that you have a demat account and the demat account details are correctly mentioned in the Bid cum 

Application Form; 

 

3. Except for Bids on behalf of the Central or State Governments and the officials appointed by the courts, for 

Bid of all values, ensure that you have mentioned your PAN, Client ID and DP ID in the Bid cum 

Application Form. In accordance with the SEBI Regulations, PAN would be the sole identification number 

for participants transacting in the securities market, irrespective of the amount of transaction (please see 

ñPermanent Account Number or PANò in the section ñIssue Procedureò on page 248 of this Draft Red 

Herring Prospectus). However Bidders residing in the State of Sikkim are exempted from mandatory 

requirement of PAN. The exemption is subject to Depository Participants verifying the veracity of the 

claim of the investors that they are residents of Sikkim, by collecting sufficient documentary evidence in 

support of their address; 

  

4. Ensure that the Bid cum Application Form is duly completed as per instructions given in this Draft Red 

Herring Prospectus and in the Bid cum Application Form or ASBA Bid cum Application Form;  

 

5. Bids by QIBs (including Anchor Investors) will only have to be submitted to the GCBRLMs and the 

BRLMs and/or their affiliates, other than Bids by QIBs  who Bid through ASBA process, who shall submit 

the Bids to the Designated Branches of the SCSBs; and 

 

6. ASBA Bidders will have to submit Bids (physical form) to the Designated Branches. ASBA Bidders should 

ensure that the ASBA Account has adequate credit balance at the time of submission to the SCSB to ensure 

that the ASBA Bid cum Application Form is not rejected. 

 

Underwriting Agreement 

 

After the determination of the Issue Price but prior to the filing of the Prospectus with the RoC, the Company and 

the Selling Shareholders will enter into an Underwriting Agreement with the Underwriters for the Equity Shares 

proposed to be offered through the Issue. It is proposed that pursuant to the terms of the Underwriting Agreement, 
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the GCBRLMs and the BRLMs shall be responsible for bringing in the amount devolved in the event that the 

Syndicate Members do not fulfil their underwriting obligations. The underwriting shall be to the extent of the Bids 

uploaded by the Underwriters including through its respective Syndicate Member/sub-syndicate. The Underwriting 

Agreement is dated [ǒ]. 

 

The Underwriters have indicated their intention to underwrite the following number of Equity Shares: 

 

This portion has been intentionally left blank and will be filled in before filing of the Prospectus with the RoC. 

 

Name and Address of the Underwriters Indicated Number of 

Equity Shares to be 

Underwritten  

Amount 

Underwritten  

(in Rs. million)  

[ǒ] [ǒ] [ǒ] 

 

The above mentioned is indicative underwriting and this will be finalised after determination of the Issue Price and 

actual allocation. 

 

In the opinion of the Board of Directors (based on a certificate given by the Underwriters), the resources of the 

above mentioned Underwriters are sufficient to enable them to discharge their respective underwriting obligations in 

full. The above mentioned Underwriters are registered with SEBI under Section 12(1) of the SEBI Act or registered 

as brokers with the Stock Exchange(s). The Board of Directors, at its meeting held on [ǒ], has accepted and entered 

into the Underwriting Agreement mentioned above on behalf of the Company. SKNL and Indivest, have by their 

board resolution dated [ǒ] and [ǒ] respectively, accepted and entered into the Underwriting Agreement. 

 

Allocation among Underwriters may not necessarily be in proportion to their underwriting commitments.  

 

Notwithstanding the table above, the GCBRLMs, the BRLMs and the Syndicate Members shall be responsible for 

ensuring payment with respect to Equity Shares allocated to investors procured by them. In the event of any default 

in payment, the respective Underwriter, in addition to other obligations defined in the Underwriting Agreement, will 

also be required to procure subscriptions for/subscribe to Equity Shares to the extent of the defaulted amount. 

 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Issue is also subject to obtaining (i) final listing and trading approvals of the 

Stock Exchanges, which the company shall apply for after Allotment, and (ii) the final approval of the RoC after the 

Prospectus is filed with the RoC. 
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE  

 

The share capital of the Company as at the date of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus is set forth below:  

 

(In Rs. except share data) 

  Aggregate Value at 

Face Value 

Aggregate Value at 

Issue Price 

A AUTHORISED  SHARE CAPITAL
 

  

  150,000,000 Equity Shares  1,500,000,000  

    

B ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP CAPITAL 

BEFORE THE ISSUE 

  

  134,597,453 Equity Shares  1,345,974,530  

    

C PRESENT ISSUE IN TERMS OF THIS DRAFT RED 

HERRING PROSPECTUS 

  

 [ǒ] Equity Shares aggregating to Rs. [ǒ] million  [ǒ] [ǒ] 

 of which   

 Fresh Issue of [ǒ] Equity Shares aggregating up to Rs. 

5,000 million
(1)

 

[ǒ] [ǒ] 

 Offer for Sale of 14,955,273 Equity Shares aggregating to 

Rs. [ǒ] million 
(2)

 

[ǒ] [ǒ] 

 of which    

 Employee Reservation of up to [ǒ] Equity Shares [ǒ] [ǒ] 

 Net Issue to the Public of [ǒ] Equity Shares [ǒ] [ǒ] 

    

E EQUITY CAPITAL AFTER THE ISSUE    

 [ǒ] Equity Shares  [ǒ] [ǒ] 

    

F SECURITIES PREMIUM ACCOUNT    

  Before the Issue 8,054,577,897  

 After the Issue  [ǒ]  
(1) The Fresh Issue has been authorized by a resolution of the Board dated September 27, 2010 and by a special resolution 

passed pursuant to section 81(1A) of the Companies Act, at the EGM of the shareholders of the Company held on September 

27, 2010. 

 
(2) The Offer for Sale of 11,964,218 Equity Shares by S. Kumars Nationwide Limited, the Promoter has been authorized by a 

resolution of the board of directors of S. Kumars Nationwide Limited dated September 27, 2010. The Offer for Sale of 

2,991,055 Equity Shares by Indivest Pte Ltd has been authorized by a resolution of the board of directors of Indivest Pte Ltd 

dated September 27, 2010.  

 

Changes in the Authorised Share Capital  

 

1. The initial authorised share capital of Rs. 500,000 divided into 50,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each was 

increased to Rs. 500,000,000 divided into 50,000,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each, pursuant to resolution 

of shareholders passed at the EGM held on November 27, 2007.  

 

2. The authorised share capital of Rs. 500,000,000 divided into 50,000,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each was 

increased to Rs. 581,000,000 divided into 55,000,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each and 1,550,000 

preference shares of Rs. 20 each, pursuant to resolution of shareholders passed at the EGM held on June 2, 

2008.  

 

3. The authorised share capital of Rs. 581,000,000 divided into 55,000,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each and 

1,550,000 preference shares of Rs. 20 each was reclassified to Rs. 581,000,000 divided into 58,100,000 

Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each, consequent to the reclassification of 1,550,000 preference shares of Rs. 20 

each aggregating Rs. 31,000,000 to 3,100,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each, pursuant to resolution of the 
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shareholders passed at the EGM held on August 19, 2010.  

 

4. The authorised share capital of Rs. 581,000,000 divided into 58,100,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each was 

increased to Rs. 1500,000,000 divided into 150,000,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each, pursuant to resolution 

of shareholders passed at the EGM held on August 19, 2010.  

 

Notes to the Capital Structure 

 

1. Share Capital History of the Company  

 

(a) The following is the history of the equity share capital and securities premium account of the 

Company: 

 
Date of 

allotment 

of the 

Equity 

Shares 

No. of 

Equity 

Shares 

Face 

value 

(Rs.) 

Issue 

price 

(Rs.) 

Consideration 

(cash, other 

than cash etc) 

Cumulative 

No. of 

Equity 

Shares 

Cumulative 

paid-up 

Equity capital 

(Rs.) 

Cumulative 

securities 

premium 

(Rs.) 

 

April 19, 

2000 

7 10 10 Cash 7 70 Nil  

December 

10, 2002 

49,993 10 10 Cash 50,000 500,000 Nil  

February 

15, 2008 

40,000,000 10 10 Cash 40,050,000 400,500,000 Nil  

September 
22, 2008 

1,517,045(1) 10 659.18 Cash 41,567,045 415,670,450 984,835,273 

September 

22, 2008 

10,467,614 10 659.18 Cash 52,034,659 520,346,590 7,770,300,930(2)  

January 29, 
2010 

1,804,322 10 609.65 Cash 53,838,981 538,389,810 8,852,262,617  

September 

10, 2010 

 

80,758,472 10 - Bonus 

issue in the 

ratio of 3:2 

134,597,453 1,345,974,530 8,054,577,897(3)  

(1)  The Company allotted 1,517,045 Equity Shares to Indivest pursuant to conversion of 1,517,045 

compulsorily convertible preference shares of Rs. 20 each.  

 
(2)  Net of issue expenses of approximately Rs. 9,900,000.  

 
(3)  The securities premium accounts was utilised towards bonus issue of Equity Shares. 

 

(b) The following is the history of preference share capital of the Company: 

 

Date of 

allotment 

of the 

preference 

shares  

No. of 

preference 

shares 

Face 

value 

(Rs.) 

Issue price 

per 

preference 

share (Rs.) 

Consideration 

(cash, other 

than cash etc) 

Cumulative 

No. of 

preference 

shares 

Cumulative 

paid-up 

preference 

share 

premium 

(Rs.) 

July 14, 

2008 

1,517,045 20 659.18 Cash 1,517,045 969,664,823 

September 

22, 2008 

(1,517,045)
 

(1)
 

20 Nil  - 0 Nil  

(1)  On September 22, 2008 the Company allotted 1,517,045 Equity Shares pursuant to conversion of 

1,517,045 compulsorily convertible preference shares of Rs. 20 each.  

 

(c) Issue of Equity Shares for consideration other than cash: 

 

Date of allotment of the 

Equity Shares 

No. of Equity 

Shares 

Face 

value 

(Rs.) 

Issue 

price (Rs.) 

Consideration 

(cash, other than 

cash etc) 
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Date of allotment of the 

Equity Shares 

No. of Equity 

Shares 

Face 

value 

(Rs.) 

Issue 

price (Rs.) 

Consideration 

(cash, other than 

cash etc) 

 September 10, 2010 80,758,472 10 - Bonus Issue in the 

ratio of 3:2 

 

2. History of the Equity Share Capital held by the Promoter  
 

(a) Details of the build up of the Promotersô shareholding in the Company: 

 

Date of 

Allotment/ 

Transfer 

No. of 

Equity 

Shares 

allotted/ 

transferred 

Face 

Value 

(Rs.) 

Issue/ 

Acquisition 

Price (Rs.) 

Nature of 

consideration 

(Cash, gift, 

etc.) 

Nature of 

transaction 

% of 

pre- 

Issue 

Capital 

% of 

post- 

Issue 

Capital 

S. Kumars Nationwide Limited 

December 

10, 2007 

50,000 10 10 Cash Transfer 0.04%  

February 

15, 2008 

40,000,000 10 10 Cash Allotment 29.72%  

September 

10, 2010 

60,075,000 10 - Bonus 

Issue in the 

ratio of 3:2 

Allotment 44.63% [ǒ]* 

* To be finalised after determination of Issue Price.  

 

The Promoter had initially pledged 13,529,012 Equity Shares of the Company with ICICI Bank 

Limited as security for a term loan of Rs. 2,750 million availed by the Promoter. Subsequently, 

pursuant to issue of bonus Equity Shares on September 10, 2010, the Promoter has further pledged 

21,466,326 Equity Shares with ICICI Bank Limited in accordance with the terms of the financing 

arrangement between the Promoter and ICICI Bank Limited. Accordingly, an aggregate of 

34,995,338 Equity Shares have been pledged by the Promoter to ICICI Bank Limited.        

 

(b) Details of Promoterôs contribution and Lock-in:  

 
Date of 

Acquisition 

and when 

made fully 

paid-up 

Nature of 

Allotment/Transfer  

Number 

of Equity 

Shares 

locked in 

 

Nature of 

Consideration 

(Cash) 

No. of 

Equity 

Shares 

Face 

Value 

(Rs.) 

Issue/Acquisition 

Price per Equity 

Share (Rs.) 

Percentage 

of post-Issue 

paid-up 

equity share 

capital  

S. Kumars Nationwide Limited 

[ǒ] [ǒ] [ǒ] [ǒ] [ǒ] [ǒ] [ǒ] [ǒ] 

The figures to be provided in this table shall be finalised upon determination of the Issue Price and the 

number of Equity Shares to be issued in the Fresh Issue, consequent to the Book Building Process. 
 

The minimum Promotersô contribution has been brought to the extent of not less than the specified 

minimum lot and from the persons defined as Promoters under the SEBI Regulations. The 

Promotersô contribution constituting not less than 20% post-Issue paid-up equity share capital 

shall be locked-in for a period of three years from the date of Allotment in the Issue.  

 

The Equity Shares that are being locked-in are not ineligible for computation of Promotersô 

contribution in terms of Regulation 33 of the SEBI Regulations.  

 

The Company has obtained specific written consent from the Promoter for inclusion of the Equity 

Shares held by them in the minimum Promotersô contribution subject to lock-in. Further, the 

Promoter has given an undertaking to the effect that it shall not sell/transfer/dispose of in any 

manner, Equity Shares forming part of the minimum Promotersô contribution from the date of 

filing the Draft Red Herring Prospectus till the date of commencement of lock-in in accordance 

with the SEBI Regulations. 
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(c) Details of pre-Issue Equity Share capital locked-in for one year: 

 

In addition to the 20% of the post-Issue paid-up equity shareholding of the Company held by the 

Promoters and locked-in for three years as specified above and other than 14,955,273 forming part 

of the Offer for Sale portion, the entire pre-Issue equity share capital will be locked-in for a period 

of one year from the date of Allotment of the Equity Shares in this Issue. Further, 8,993,604 

Equity Shares held by Indivest Pte Ltd, an FVCI, for a period of at least one year as on the date of 

this Draft Red Herring Prospectus will not be subject to lock-in.  

 

(d) Other requirements in respect of lock-in: 

 

The Equity Shares held by the Promoter that are locked-in for a period of three years can be 

pledged only with any scheduled commercial bank or public financial institution as collateral 

security for loans granted by such banks or institution. Further, such pledge can be created only if 

the loan has been granted by such scheduled commercial bank or public financial institution for 

financing one or more of the objects of the Issue and the pledge of the Equity Shares is one of the 

terms of sanction of the loan. 

 

The Equity Shares held by the Promoter that are locked-in for a period of one year can be pledged 

with any scheduled commercial bank or public financial institution as collateral security for loans 

granted by such bank or financial institution, provided that the pledge of the Equity Shares is one 

of the terms of sanction of the loan. 

 

The Equity Shares held by the Promoter and locked-in may be transferred to and amongst the 

Promoter Group or to a new promoter or persons in control of the Company, subject to the 

continuation of the lock-in in the hands of the transferees for the remaining period and compliance 

with the SEBI Takeover Regulations, as applicable. 

 

The Equity Shares held by persons other than the Promoter and locked-in for a period of one year 

from the date of allotment in the Issue may be transferred to any other person holding Equity 

Shares which are locked-in, subject to the continuation of the lock-in in the hands of transferees 

for the remaining period and compliance with the Takeover Code. 

 

(e) Lock-in of Equity Shares to be issued, if any, to the Anchor Investor 

  

Any Equity Shares Allotted to Anchor Investors shall be locked-in for a period of 30 days from 

the date of Allotment of Equity Shares in the Issue. 

 

3. Shareholding Pattern of the Company  
 

(a) The table below presents the shareholding pattern of Equity Shares before the proposed Issue and 

as adjusted for the Issue:  

 

 Pre-Issue Post-Issue
(2)

 

No. of Equity 

Shares 

Percentage of 

Equity Share 

capital 

No. of 

Equity 

Shares 

Percentage of 

Equity Share 

capital 

Promoter      

SKNL 100,125,000
(1)

 74.39 [ǒ] [ǒ] 

Sub Total (A) 100,125,000 74.39 [ǒ] [ǒ] 

     

Promoter Group (B) - - - - 

     

Total Holding of 

Promoter and Promoter 

100,125,000 74.39 [ǒ] [ǒ] 
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 Pre-Issue Post-Issue
(2)

 

No. of Equity 

Shares 

Percentage of 

Equity Share 

capital 

No. of 

Equity 

Shares 

Percentage of 

Equity Share 

capital 

Group (C=A + B) 

     

Others (D)   [ǒ] [ǒ] 

Indivest 34,472,453 25.61 [ǒ] [ǒ] 

     

Public (pursuant to the 

Issue) (E) 

- - [ǒ] [ǒ] 

Total (A+B+C+D+E)  134,597,453 100.00 [ǒ] 100.00 

 
(1) S Kumars. Nationwide limited jointly holds one share each with Ganesh Pai, L.N. Somani, Nimesh Shah, 

Ramesh Ladha, Naresh Maheshwari and Jagadeesh Shetty.  
 

(2) The figures to be provided in this table shall be finalised upon determination of the Issue Price and the 

number of Equity Shares to be issued in the Fresh Issue, consequent to the Book Building Process.   

 

4. The list of top ten shareholders of the Company and the number of Equity Shares held by them is as 

under:  

 

(a) As of the date of the Draft Red Herring Prospectus: 

 

Sr. 

No. 

Name of the shareholders No. of Equity Shares 

held 

Percentage 

1. SKNL 100,124,994 74.39 

2. Indivest  34,472,453 25.61 

3. SKNL jointly with Ganesh Pai 1 0.00 

4. SKNL jointly with L.N. Somani 1 0.00 

5. SKNL jointly with Nimesh Shah 1 0.00 

6. SKNL jointly with Ramesh Ladha 1 0.00 

7. SKNL jointly with Naresh 

Maheshwari 

1 0.00 

8. SKNL jointly with Jagadeesh Shetty 1 0.00 

 

(b) As of 10 days prior to the date of the Draft Red Herring Prospectus:  

 

Sr. 

No. 

Name of the shareholders No. of Equity Shares 

held 

Percentage 

1. SKNL 100,124, 994 74.39% 

2. Indivest  34,472,453 25.61% 

3. SKNL jointly with Ganesh Pai 1 0.00 

4. SKNL jointly with L.N. Somani 1 0.00 

5. SKNL jointly with Nimesh Shah 1 0.00 

6. SKNL jointly with Ramesh Ladha 1 0.00 

7. SKNL jointly with Naresh 

Maheshwari 

1 0.00 

8. SKNL jointly with Jagadeesh Shetty 1 0.00 

 

(c) As of two years prior to the date of the Draft Red Herring Prospectus:  

  

Sr. 

No. 

Name of the shareholders No. of Equity Shares 

held 

Percentage 

1. SKNL 40,049,994 76.96% 
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Sr. 

No. 

Name of the shareholders No. of Equity Shares 

held 

Percentage 

2. Indivest  11,984,659 23.03% 

3. SKNL jointly with Ganesh Pai 1 0.00 

4. SKNL jointly with L.N. Somani 1 0.00 

5. SKNL jointly with Nimesh Shah 1 0.00 

6. SKNL jointly with Ramesh Ladha 1 0.00 

7. SKNL jointly with Naresh 

Maheshwari 

1 0.00 

8. SKNL jointly with Jagadeesh Shetty 1 0.00 

 

5. The Company, the Directors, the GCBRLMs and the BRLMs have not entered into any buy-back 

arrangement and/or safety net facility for the purchase of Equity Shares from any person.  

  

6. None of the GCBRLMs, the BRLMs or their associates hold any Equity Shares of the Company. 

 

7. The Company has not raised any bridge loans against the Issue Proceeds.  

 

8. Except as stated in the section ñManagementò on page 106 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus, none of 

the Directors or key management personnel hold any Equity Shares in the Company. Further, none of the 

directors of the Promoter hold any Equity Shares in the Company.  

 

9. None of the Promoter, directors of the Promoter, Promoter Group, the Directors and their immediate 

relatives have purchased or sold any Equity Shares during a period of six months preceding the date on 

which this Draft Red Herring Prospectus is filed with SEBI.  

 

10. Except as stated below, the Company has not made any issue of Equity Shares during a period of one year 

preceding from the date of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus, at a price which may be lower than the Issue 

price:  

 

Date of allotment of 

Equity Shares 

Number of 

Equity 

Shares 

Issue price 

(in Rs.) 

Nature of 

Payment 

Reasons for allotment of 

Equity Shares 

January 29, 2010 1,804,322 609.65 Cash Preferential allotment to 

Indivest  

 

11. No person connected with the Issue shall offer any incentive, whether direct or indirect, in any manner, 

whether in cash, kind, services or otherwise, to any Bidder. 

 

12. Not more than 50% of the Net Issue shall be available for allocation to QIBs on a proportionate basis. 5% 

of the QIB Portion (excluding Anchor Investor Portion) shall be available for allocation to Mutual Funds 

only and the remaining QIB Portion shall be available for allocation to the QIB Bidders including Mutual 

Funds subject to valid Bids being received at or above the Issue Price. Further, not less than 15% of the Net 

Issue will be available for allocation on a proportionate basis to Non-Institutional Bidders and not less than 

35% of the Net Issue will be available for allocation to Retail Individual Bidders, subject to valid Bids 

being received from them at or above the Issue Price. Under-subscription, if any, in any of these categories, 

the unsubscribed portion may be added to one of the other categories at the discretion of the Company and 

the Selling Shareholders, in consultation with the GCBRLMs and the BRLMs and the Designated Stock 

Exchange. Under-subscription, if any, in the Employee Reservation Portion will be added back to the Net 

Issue portion.  

 

13. A total of up to [ǒ] Equity Shares aggregating to Rs. [ǒ] million, have been reserved for allocation to 

Eligible Employees, subject to valid Bids being received at or above the Issue Price and subject to the 

maximum Bid in this portion being Rs. 200,000. Only Eligible Employees would be eligible to apply in this 

Issue under the Employee Reservation Portion. Eligible Employees may Bid in the Net Issue as well and 
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such Bids shall not be treated as multiple Bids.   

 

14. A Bidder cannot make a Bid for more than the number of Equity Shares offered through the Issue, subject 

to the maximum limit of investment prescribed under relevant laws applicable to each category of investor. 

 

15. An oversubscription to the extent of 10% of the Issue can be retained for the purposes of rounding off to 

the nearer multiple of minimum allotment lot.  

 

16. There are no outstanding warrants, options or rights to convert debentures, loans or other instruments 

convertible into the Equity Shares. 

 

17. There will be no further issue of Equity Shares, whether by way of issue of bonus shares, preferential 

allotment, rights issue or in any other manner during the period commencing from submission of this Draft 

Red Herring Prospectus with SEBI until the Equity Shares have been listed.  

 

18. The Company presently does not intend or propose to alter the capital structure for a period of six months 

from the Bid/Issue Opening Date, by way of split or consolidation of the denomination of Equity Shares or 

further issue of Equity Shares (including issue of securities convertible into or exchangeable, directly or 

indirectly for Equity Shares) whether on a preferential basis or issue of bonus or rights or further public 

issue of specified securities or qualified institutions placement or otherwise. However, if the Company 

enters into acquisitions, joint ventures or other arrangements, the Company may, subject to necessary 

approvals, consider raising additional capital to fund such activity or use Equity Shares as currency for 

acquisitions or participation in such joint ventures.  

 

19. There shall be only one denomination of the Equity Shares, unless otherwise permitted by law. The 

Company shall comply with such disclosure and accounting norms as may be specified by SEBI from time 

to time. 

 

20. The Company has eight members as of the date of filing of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.  

 

21. The Company has not issued any Equity Shares out of revaluation reserves.  

  

22.  All Equity Shares will be fully paid-up at the time of Allotment failing which no Allotment shall be made. 

 

23. There have been no financial arrangements whereby the Promoter Group, the Directors and their relatives 

have financed the purchase by any other person of securities of the Company, other than in the normal 

course of the business of the financing entity during a period of six months preceding the date of filing of 

this Draft Red Herring Prospectus. 
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OBJECTS OF THE ISSUE 

 

The Issue comprises a Fresh Issue by the Company and an Offer for Sale by the Selling Shareholders.  

 

Offer for Sale 

 

The Company will not receive any proceeds from the Offer for Sale by the Selling Shareholders. 

 

Objects of the Fresh Issue   
 

The Company proposes to utilise the funds which are being raised through the Fresh Issue towards funding the 

following objects: 

 

1. To set up 160 exclusive brand outlets (ñEBOsò); 

2. To set up a manufacturing unit at Bengaluru for ready-made garments and suits;  

3. To purchase machinery at the Mysore facility; 

4. To fund the launch of a new brand in the casual premium segment; 

5. To implement an ERP System (ñERPò); 

6. Towards pre-payment and/or re-payment of certain loans; and 

7. For general corporate purposes; 

 

The main objects clause of the Companyôs Memorandum of Association enables the Company to undertake the 

activities for which funds are being raised through this Issue. Further, the Company confirms that the activities 

which it has been carrying out until now are in accordance with the objects clause of its Memorandum of 

Association. 

 

Issue Proceeds and Net Proceeds  

 

The details of the proceeds of the Issue are summarised below: 

(in Rs. million) 

Particular  Estimated Amount  

Gross Proceeds of the Issue [ǒ] 

Issue related expenses* [ǒ] 

Offer for Sale portion (to the Selling Shareholders) [ǒ] 

Net Proceeds of the Fresh Issue (to the Company) (the 

ñNet Proceedsò) 

[ǒ] 

*Other than listing fees, which will be paid by the Company, all expenses with respect to the Issue will be shared between the 

Selling Shareholders and the Company, in the proportion to the Equity Shares offered for sale or issued, as the case may be in 

the Issue. 

 

Requirement of Funds 

 

The fund requirements for the objects of the Fresh Issue as described below are based on management estimates and 

the Companyôs current business plan and have not been independently appraised by any bank or financial institution. 

The fund requirements described below are proposed to be entirely funded from the Net Proceeds. Accordingly, the 

Company confirms that there is no requirement to make firm arrangements of finance under Regulation 4(g) of the 

SEBI Regulation through verifiable means towards atleast 75% of the stated means of finance, excluding the amount 

to be raised through the Issue. 
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The Company proposes to utilize the Net Proceeds as set forth in the table below:  

 (in Rs. million) 

S. 

No. 

Particulars Total 

Estimated 

Cost 

Expenditure 

incurred as of 

November 15, 2010 

Proposed schedule for 

deployment of the Net 

Proceeds 

fiscal 

year 

2011 

fiscal 

year 

2012 

fiscal 

year 

2013 

1.  Setting up 160 EBOs 928.7 Nil  Nil  928.7 Nil  

2.  To set up a manufacturing unit 

at Bengaluru for ready-made 

garments and suits 

645.7 85.9* 559.8 Nil  Nil  

3.  To purchase machinery at the 

Mysore facility 

839.8 33.1**  Nil  806.7 Nil  

4.  To fund the launch of a new 

brand in the casual premium 

segment 

436.6 Nil  82.3 354.3 Nil  

5.  Implementation of ERP 

System 

127.0 Nil  73.00 54.00 Nil  

6.  Towards pre-payment and on 

re-payment of certain loans  

1,072.0 Nil  1,072.0 Nil  Nil  

7.   General Corporate Purposes [ǒ] Nil  [ǒ] [ǒ] [ǒ] 

 Total [ǒ] 119.0 [ǒ] [ǒ] [ǒ] 
* Ramalinga Athithan & Co, Chartered Accountant, through their letter dated November 30, 2010 have certified that Rs. 85.9 

million has been deployed as of November 15, 2010 towards acquiring the land for setting up the manufacturing unit at 

Bengaluru for ready-made garments.  

**  Ramalinga Athithan & Co, Chartered Accountant, through their letter dated November 30, 2010 have certified that Rs. 33.1 

million has been deployed as of November 15, 2010 towards installation of a transformer and a transmission line at the Mysore 

facility.  

 

In view of the dynamic and competitive environment of the industry in which the Company operates, the Company 

may revise its business plan from time to time and consequently its capital requirements may also change. The 

Company may have to revise its estimated costs, fund allocation and fund requirements owing to factors such as 

economic and business conditions, increased competition, and other external factors which may not be within the 

control of the Companyôs management and may entail rescheduling and revising the planned expenditure and fund 

requirements and increasing or decreasing the expenditure for a particular purpose from the planned expenditure. 

 

In case of any increase in the actual utilisation of funds earmarked for the objects below, such additional funds for a 

particular activity will be met by way of means available to the Company, including from internal accruals, 

additional equity and/or incremental debt. If the actual utilisation towards any of the aforesaid objects is lower than 

the proposed deployment as indicated above, such balance will be used for future growth opportunities, including 

funding existing objects, if required, general corporate purposes and/or any other project, activity or initiative that 

the Company may undertake. 

 

Details of the activities to be financed from the Net Proceeds  

 

1. Setting up 160 EBOs 

 

The Company follows the franchisee model to sell its products to consumers and currently does not sell its 

products directly to customers. The Company proposes to set up and operate 160 EBOs. The Company 

proposes to set up these EBOs in fiscal 2012. 

 

The Company proposes to set up 100 EBOs for the óReid & Taylorô brand, 30 EBOs for the óStephens 

Brothersô brand and 30 EBOs for a new brand that the Company proposes to launch in the casual premium 

wear segment. 
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These EBOs as mentioned above would be set up across cities in India as indicated in the table below. The 

Company has estimated that the area per EBO for the óReid & Taylorô brand to be approximately 1,400 

square feet (ñSq.ftò) and the area per EBO for the óStephens Brothersô and the new casual premium wear 

brand to be approximately 1,200 Sq.ft. The Company proposes to lease various properties to set up its 

EBOs. Accordingly, the Company would be required to pay security deposits upon entering into relevant 

lease agreements with property owners. These security deposits are estimated to range between six months 

and one yearôs rent paid in advance. 

 

Methodology for computation of estimated cost of establishment of EBOs 

 

The estimated cost for establishment of these EBOs primarily comprises of (i) expenses towards payment 

of security deposit, (ii) expenses towards interiors such as furniture and fixtures (ñInterior Expensesò), 

and (iii) expenses towards computers, signages, mannequins and visual merchandising (ñOutlet 

Expensesò). The Company estimates that Interior Expenses and Outlet Expenses would be similar across 

EBOs proposed to be set up in various locations. However, payments towards security deposit may vary 

based on various factors including location and size of the EBO. 

 

Break-up for the costs for setting up EBOs 

 

The break-up of estimated costs for setting up the above mentioned EBOs are as follows:  

(in Rs. million) 

Particulars Estimated Cost 

Security Deposit 295.0 

Interior Expenses 485.9 

Outlet Expenses 19.2 

Pre-operative Expenses  128.6 

Total 928.7 

 

The Companyôs business requires a dynamic appraisal of the market conditions based on which precise 

locations of EBOs are determined by the Company. Accordingly, the Company may need to modify its 

plans which could have an impact on the estimated expenditure towards setting up of these EBOs. The 

Company currently does not have firm arrangements in relation to properties for its EBOs. 

 

If any changes are required to be made to the locations of the EBOs, the actual expenditure incurred for 

establishing such EBOs may differ from the current estimates. 

 

The Company has not incurred any expenditure on setting up of EBOs as of November 30, 2010. In the 

event the Company incurs any expenditure, the Company proposes to recoup such costs from the Net 

Proceeds. 

 

Expenses towards security deposit 

 

The total expenditure proposed to be incurred towards security deposit is estimated to be approximately Rs. 

295.0 million. For certain EBOs proposed to be located at Mumbai, Chennai, Bengaluru, National Capital 

Region- Delhi, Pune, Kolkata, Ahmedabad and Hyderabad, the estimate for security deposit payable in 

such regions has been derived from a report titled ñMarket Beatò by Cushman and Wakefield for the third 

quarter of calendar year 2010. For other locations and cities, the amounts are based on the quotations from 

Purple Patch Consulting and CSI Real Estate Professionals, each dated September 25, 2010.  

 

The city-wise details of EBOs are set forth below along with estimated expenditure towards security 

deposit: 
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Sr. 

No 

City  No. of 

EBOs 

Total 

Area  

(in Sq.ft) 

Security Deposit (calculated at six monthsô rent to be 

paid in advance) 

(Rs.) 

1 Ahmedabad 1 1,400               756,000 

2 Ajmer 1 1,400               546,000  

3 Akola 1 1,400               588,000  

4 Aligarh 1 1,400               630,000  

5 Allahabad 1 1,400               756,000  

6 Amritsar 1 1,400            1,050,000  

7 Aurangabad 1 1,400               840,000  

8 Bengaluru 14 18,200 21,906,000 

9 Bareilly 1 1,400               756,000  

10 Belgaum 1 1,400               840,000  

11 Bhilai 1 1,400               630,000  

12 Bhopal 1 1,400            1,218,000  

13 Bilaspur 1 1,400               630,000  

14 Chandigarh 4 4,800          12,960,000  

15 Chennai 11 14,600          13,842,000 

16 Cochin 1 1,200            1,332,000  

17 Coimbatore 1 1,400            1,092,000  

18 Cuttack  1 1,400               630,000  

19 Delhi 26 34,600 77,202,000 

20 Dhanbad 1 1,400               630,000  

21 Durgapur 1 1,400               546,000  

22 Gurgaon 2 2,400            6,480,000  

23 Hyderabad 9 11,600 8,754,000 

24 Jabalpur 1 1,400               630,000  

25 Jaipur 2 2,600            2,880,000  

26 Jallandhar 1 1,400            1,260,000  

27 Jammu 1 1,400            1,260,000  

28 Jamshedpur 1 1,400               840,000  

29 Jhansi 1 1,400               756,000  

30 Jodhpur 1 1,400            1,050,000  

31 Kanpur 1 1,400            1,134,000  

32 Kolhapur 1 1,400            1,050,000  

33 Kolkata 10 13,000          20,748,000 

34 Lucknow 3 4,000            5,160,000  

35 Ludhiana 1 1,200            1,080,000  

36 Madurai 1 1,400               714,000  

37 Mangalore 1 1,400            1,050,000  

38 Meerut 1 1,400            1,260,000  

39 Mumbai 23 29,800 66,030,000 

40 Nagpur 1 1,400               840,000  

41 Nanded 1 1,400               588,000  

42 Noida 2 2,400            4,680,000  

43 Panjim 1 1,400            1,470,000  

44 Patiala 1 1,400               588,000  

45 Pondicherry 1 1,400               756,000  

46 Pune 10 12,800 15,576,000 
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Sr. 

No 

City  No. of 

EBOs 

Total 

Area  

(in Sq.ft) 

Security Deposit (calculated at six monthsô rent to be 

paid in advance) 

(Rs.) 

47 Raipur 1 1,400               630,000  

48 Ranchi 1 1,400               840,000  

49 Saharanpur 1 1,400               630,000  

50 Shimla 1 1,400            2,100,000  

51 Surat 1 1,400               924,000  

52 Trichy 1 1,400               714,000  

53 Udaipur 1 1,400               840,000  

54 Ujjain 1 1,400               630,000  

55 Varanasi 1 1,400               840,000  

56 Vijayawada 1 1,400               840,000  

 Total 160 212,000 295,002,000  

 

Outlet and Interior Expenses  

 

An estimate of Interior Expenses proposed to be incurred for each EBO for a particular brand is set forth 

below:  

 

Interiors  Reid & 

Taylor  

Stephens 

Brothers 

New casual premium wear 

brand 

Total cost (per Sq.ft) (in Rs.) 2,355.1 2,133.0 2,207.0 

Estimated area per EBO (in 

Sq.ft) 

1,400.0 1,200.0 1,200.0 

Number of EBOs 100.0 30.0 30.0 

Total Cost (in Rs. million) 329.7 76.8 79.4 

Total (in Rs. million) 485.9 

 

The cost estimates for Interior Expenses of EBOs for óReid & Taylorô and óStephens Brothersô brands are 

based on quotations received from M/s Mayank Shah, Architect, dated October 15, 2010 and September 29, 

2010, respectively. The cost estimates for Interior Expenses of the EBOs for the new casual premium wear 

brand are based on quotations received from M/s Architheque, Architect, dated September 20, 2010.  

 

In addition to security deposits and Interior Expenses, the Company would also need to incur certain Outlet 

Expenses amounting to Rs. 19.2 million and pre-operative expenses such as costs towards obtaining 

licenses, legal costs, staff salary, brokerage and opening day launch expenses amounting to 128.6 million. 

The estimates for the Outlet Expenses and Pre-operative Expenses are based on management estimates.  

 

2.  To set up a manufacturing unit at Bengaluru for ready-made garments and suits. 
 

The Company proposes to establish a manufacturing unit in Bengaluru for ready-made garments and suits. 

The garment unit would produce outerwear for men and women such as suits, jackets and trousers. For 

further details in relation to this proposed facility, please see the section ñBusinessò on page 79 of this Draft 

Red Herring Prospectus. 

 

The total estimated cost for setting up the manufacturing unit is Rs. 645.7 million. The break-down of the 

estimated costs are set forth below: 

 

 

 

 

 

(in Rs. million) 
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Particulars Amount 

deployed as on 

November 15, 

2010* 

Amount to be 

funded from 

the Net 

Proceeds 

Expected 

Date of 

Completion 

Land 85.9 Nil  November 

2010 

Building, Civil Works and Interiors Nil  249.9 February 

2011 

Machinery Nil  223.0 March 2011 

Utilities  Nil  55.0 March 2011 

Pre-operative expenses  Nil  31.9 N.A. 

Total  85.9 559.8  
* The Company has incurred Rs. 85.9 million towards establishment of this manufacturing unit as certified by 

Ramalinga Athithan & Co, Chartered Accountant through their letter dated November 30, 2010.  

 

a. Land 

 

The total requirement for land for constructing the manufacturing unit is estimated to be 10 acres. 

The Company has received a letter of allotment dated July 7, 2010 from the Karnataka Industrial 

Areas Development Board in relation to allotment of 10 acres of land in plot No. 75 to 80 of 

Bidadi Industrial Area, 2
nd

 phase, 2
nd

 sector. The allotment of land is on a lease-cum-sale basis for 

a period of 10 years. The lease arrangement shall be converted into a sale of the land to the 

Company at the end of 10 years subject to fulfillment of certain terms and conditions. The 

consideration payable for the land under the letter of allotment was Rs. 85.9 million. The 

Company has paid the entire amount of Rs. 85.9 million as on date.  

 

b. Building, Civil Works and Interiors 

 

The Company estimates to incur an expenditure of approximately Rs. 249.9 million towards costs 

for constructing the building, civil works and interiors. These estimates are based on quotations 

dated October 4, 2010 received from Spacemast, Architects. These costs would primarily 

comprise of costs incurred towards civil works, construction costs towards buildings, drains, roads 

and walls, electric fittings, furniture and fixtures and amenities for fire safety.  

 

c. Machinery  

 

The Company estimates to incur an expenditure of approximately Rs. 223.0 million towards 

purchasing machinery for the factory, which would primarily comprise of machines for sewing, 

ironing and pressing. 

 

The details of quotations received from various vendors for machinery proposed to be purchased 

for this manufacturing unit is set forth below:  

 

Sr. 

No 

Date of 

quotation 

Name of the vendor Department Quantity  Cost 

(In Rs. 

million)  

1 September 

23, 2010 

AMF Reece Sewing 13 4.6* 

2 June 29, 

2010 

Durkopp Adler Sewing 171 30.9* 

3 June 29, 

2010 

Durkopp Adler Sewing 280 11.4** 

4 April 15, 

2010 

Wenzhou Import & 

Export United Company 

Limited 

Sewing 10 1.7** 
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Sr. 

No 

Date of 

quotation 

Name of the vendor Department Quantity  Cost 

(In Rs. 

million)  

5 July 10, 

2010 

Loiva Intech Private 

Limited 

Sewing 831 4.6** 

6 September 

13, 2010 

Japsew Corporation Sewing 30 1.9** 

7 July 11, 

2010 

Harichand Anand and 

Company 

Sewing 1 2.3***  

8 September 

3, 2010 

IIGM Private Limited Sewing 71 8.4** 

9 September 

3, 2010 

IIGM Private Limited Sewing 15 0.7** 

10 September 

5, 2010 

IIGM Private Limited Sewing 21 1.0* 

11 September 

5, 2010 

PFAFF Sewing 490 54.1* 

12 September 

5, 2010 

IIGM Private Limited Sewing 7 7.4** 

13 September 

3, 2010 

Macpi HK Limited In-line and final 

ironing, spreading, 

fusing and bundling 

240 44.5* 

14 August 25, 

2010 

E.H. Turel & Company Sewing 37 14.4* 

15 September 

25, 2010 

Strobel 

Spezialmaschinen  

Sewing 33 16.7* 

    Total 204.6 
*The quotations are denominated in Euro. The Company has used an exchange rate of Rs. 61.9500 which is 

the prevailing exchange rate on October 21, 2010 (Source: www.rbi.org.in).  

**The quotations are denominated in USD. The Company has used an exchange rate of Rs. 44.3600 which is 

the prevailing exchange rate on October 21, 2010 (Source: www.rbi.org.in). 

*** The quotations are denominated in Japanese Yen (JPY). The Company has used an exchange rate of Rs. 

0.5478 which is the prevailing exchange rate on October 21, 2010 (Source: www.rbi.org.in). 

 

In addition to the above expenses, the Company expects to incur expenses towards payment of 

custom duty of approximately 3% amounting to Rs. 6.1 million and clearing and installation 

charges of approximately 6% amounting to Rs. 12.3 million. The Company does not propose to 

utilise the Net Proceeds of the Issue to procure any ñsecond-handò equipment or machinery for the 

Bengaluru facility. 

 

d. Utilities 

 

The Company estimates to incur an expenditure of approximately Rs. 55.0 million towards setting 

up certain utilities such as vaccum units, boilers, water filtration and softening units, air 

compressor system, diesel generators for the manufacturing unit and electrical systems. This 

amount includes expenses towards customs duty and installation charges. The Company has 

obtained certain quotations from various third parties for an amount aggregating approximately to 

Rs. 47.1 million for utilities such as vaccum units, air compressor systems, water filtration and 

softening units, boilers and electrical systems. The balance cost of Rs. 7.9 million is based on 

Companyôs estimates for diesel generators.  

 

e. Pre-operative expenses 

 

The Company estimates to incur an expenditure of approximately Rs. 31.9 million towards pre-

operative expenses such as trial-run expenses, project management expenses and engineering and 

consultancy fees. 
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3. To purchase machinery at the Mysore facility 

 

The Company owns a manufacturing facility in Mysore, in the state of Karnataka. The facility produces 

premium worsted suiting fabrics. In the fiscal year ended March 31, 2009, the Company increased the 

Mysore facility's installed capacity to 8.4 million metres per annum from 4.8 million metres per annum in 

the prior year. This increase was primarily made in the weaving departments. This facility produces 

substantially all of the Companyôs premium suiting material. For further details on this manufacturing 

facility, please see the section ñBusinessò beginning on page 79 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.  

 

The Companyôs existing dyeing, finishing and processing, departments for this unit are facing capacity 

constraints on account of expansion made to the weaving departments. The Company proposes to de-

bottleneck the production process in order to improve this facilityôs efficiency and serve customers 

demand. Accordingly, the Company proposes to add balancing equipment to its dyeing, finishing and 

processing departments and incur certain expenditure towards purchasing machinery at this facility and 

towards civil works.  

 

Break up of costs 

 

Based on the above, the break-up of the project cost for de-bottlenecking of existing manufacturing 

facilities, expenditure towards machinery and for civil works is as under:  

 

(In Rs.million) 

Particulars Amount 

Deployed as 

on November 

15, 2010* 

Estimated Cost 

Balancing equipments towards de-bottlenecking of the Mysore 

facility including installation charges and customs duty        

- 411.9 

Expenditure on machinery including installation charges and 

customs duty        

33.1 328.5 

Civil works - 66.3 

Total 33.1 806.7 
* The Company has incurred Rs. 33.1 million towards installation of a transformer and a transmission line at the 

Mysore facility as certified by Ramalinga Athithan & Co, Chartered Accountant through their letter dated November 

30, 2010.  

 

a. Balancing equipment for dyeing, finishing and processing 

 

The Company estimates to incur an expenditure of approximately Rs. 411.9 million towards 

purchasing balancing equipment for dyeing, finishing and processing. The Company has obtained 

quotations from various third parties for an amount aggregating approximately to Rs. 409.1 

million. The balance cost of Rs. 2.8 million is based on Companyôs estimates.  

 

The table below sets forth details of machinery which the Company proposes to purchase along 

with the details of the quotations received from various vendors:  

 

Sr. 

No 

Date of 

Quotation 

Name of Party Type of Machines Quantity  Estimated 

Cost 

(in Rs. 

million)  

1. September 

8, 2010 

Corino Machine Automatic Weft 

Straightener 

1 2.5* 

2. September 

19, 2010 

Monforts 

Texfilmaschinon 

Stenter Frame Range 1 21.4* 
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Sr. 

No 

Date of 

Quotation 

Name of Party Type of Machines Quantity  Estimated 

Cost 

(in Rs. 

million)  

GMBH 

3. September 

3, 2010 

Santex Group Continuous 

Decatising Machine  

1 33.6* 

4. February 12, 

2010 

Santex Group Steaming Machine 1 12.6* 

5. September 

21, 2010 

Biella Shrunk Process 

SAS 

Cloth Pressing 

Machine 

1 24.4* 

6. September 

21, 2010 

Biella Shrunk Process 

SAS 

Permanent Finishing 

and Setting Machine 

1 21.2* 

7. September 

1, 2010 

Zonco Federico & 

Figlio S.p.A. 

High Speed Rope 

Scouring Machine 

1 25.1* 

8. September 

22, 2010 

Zonco Federico & 

Figlio S.p.A. 

Combined Milling 

and Scouring 

Machine 

1 10.3* 

9. September 

22, 2010 

Zonco Federico & 

Figlio S.p.A. 

High Speed Machine 

to Scour, Soften and 

Dry Fabrics 

1 12.3* 

10. September 

15, 2010 

CIMI S.p.A. Lavanova Ecosystem 
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1 35.6* 

11. September 

20, 2010 

Biella Shrunk Process 

SAS  

Continuous Steaming 

and Shrinking 

Machine 

1 10.0* 

12. September 

3, 2010 

TMT Manenti s.r.l.  Kier Decatising 

Permanent Finishing 

Machine 

1 18.7* 

13. September 

2, 2010 

TMT Manenti s.r.l. New Continuous 

Multi Finishing 

DOLPHIN line 

1 34.0* 

14. September 

14, 2010 

CIMI S.p.A. Rotodry 12  1 24.5* 

15. September 

4, 2010 

Deeco Mechatron 

Marketing Private 

Limited 

Cut Convertor, Chain 

grill and Spare Parts  

1 54.2* 

16. September 

28, 2010 

Stafi Engineers Private 

Limited  

Radio Frequency 

Textile Yarn Dryer 

1 6.3 

   Total  346.7 
*  The quotations are denominated in Euro. The Company has used an exchange rate of Rs. 61.9500 which is 

the prevailing exchange rate on October 21, 2010 (Source: www.rbi.org.in).  

 

In addition to the above expenses, the Company expects to incur expenses towards payment of 

custom duty of approximately 12% amounting to Rs. 41.6 million and clearing and installation 

charges of approximately 6% amounting to Rs. 20.8 million.  

 

In the event, the Company incurs any expenditure on the aforementioned machinery or on account 

of the above charges, the Company will recoup the costs from the Net Proceeds. The Company 

does not propose to utilise the Net Proceeds of the Issue to procure any second-hand equipment or 

machinery. 

 

b. Expenditure on other machinery  

 

The Company estimates to incur an expenditure of approximately Rs. 361.6 million towards 
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capital expenditure on other machinery. The Company has obtained quotations from various third 

parties for an amount aggregating approximately to Rs. 331.8 million. The balance cost of Rs. 

29.8 million is based on Companyôs estimates.  

 

Sr. 

No 

Name of 

Supplier 

Date of 

Quotation 

Type of Machines Quantity  Estimated 

Cost 

(in Rs. 

million)  

1. UTG Textile 

Technology 

August 25, 

2010 

Humidification plant (local 

equipment) 

1   3.3** 

2. UTG Textile 

Technology 

August 25, 

2010 

Humidification plant 

(imported equipment)  

1 0.4 

5. Shakti Textile 

Engineers Private 

Limited  

September 

20, 2010 

Fabric dyeing machine 2 2.2 

6. Benninger Co. 

Ltd. 

August 26, 

2010 

High speed section wraping 

machine 

2 34.8* 

7 Sepcon Systems 

Private Limited 

September 

15, 2010 

Electromechanical 

equipments for combined 

effluent treatment plant of 

500 KLD to 1,000 KLD 

1 6.0 

8. Sussen May 31, 

2010 

Compact sets for Fiomax 

Ring Frames 

29 73.7** 

9. Venus Textiles 

Service 

September 

14, 2010 

Fiomax 2000 ring spinning 

frames for spindles 

 

29 1.0 

10. Y. R. Industries January 4, 

2010 

Elitwist creel conversion for 

pipes, holders and brackets  

40 4.5 

11. Staubli January 13, 

2010 

Computerised pattern maker 82 29.2** 

12. Staubli January 13, 

2010 

Beam knotting machine and 

tying frame type  

3 1.7* 

13. Dornier September 

13, 2010 

Conversion parts for 

weaving machines. 

18 3.1** 

14. Xorella AG September 

8, 2010 

Vacuum conditioning and 

steaming system 

(Contexxor) 

1 9.1* 

15. SSM Vertriebs 

AG 

August 1, 

2010 

24 Spindles - assembly 

winding machine (model 

TW2-D) 

1 3.8* 

16. SSM Vertriebs 

AG 

August 1, 

2010 

96 Spindles - assembly 

winding machine (model 

TW2-W) 

1 11.4* 

17. USTER 

Technologies 

(India) Private 

Limited 

April 20, 

2010 

Digital testing machine 1 4.8* 

18. Santex Group August 27, 

2010 

Crabbing machine MOD 

FIXA 

1 46.3** 

19. Seimens Limited January 29, 

2010 

68 KV switch yard - 35.6 

20. Thermax Limited August 21, 

2010 

Biomass boiler - 8.7 

21. Thermax Limited August 21, 

2010 

Thermic fluid heater - 1.7 
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Sr. 

No 

Name of 

Supplier 

Date of 

Quotation 

Type of Machines Quantity  Estimated 

Cost 

(in Rs. 

million)  

    Total 281.3 
*The quotations are denominated in CHF. The Company has used an exchange rate of Rs. 45.9360 which is 

the prevailing exchange rate on October 21, 2010 (Source: www.xe.com- rates at noon eastern time on 

October 21, 2010).  

** The quotations are denominated in Euro. The Company has used an exchange rate of Rs. 61.9500 which is 

the prevailing exchange rate on October 21, 2010 (Source: www.rbi.org.in).  

 

In addition to the above expenses, the Company expects to incur expenses towards payment of 

customs duty of approximately 12% amounting to Rs. 33.7 million and clearing and installation 

charges of approximately 6% amounting to Rs. 16.8 million.  

 

In the event, the Company incurs any expenditure on the aforementioned machinery on account of 

the above charges / duties, the Company will recoup the costs from the Net Proceeds. The 

Company does not propose to utilise the Net Proceeds of the Issue to procure any second hand 

machinery. 

 

The Company also expects to incur costs towards civil works amounting to Rs. 66.3 million at the 

Bengaluru facility. The Company has obtained quotations from Citiline Constructions in this 

regard.  

 

4. To fund the launch of the Companyôs new brand in the casual premium wear segment 

 

The Company intends to launch a new brand in the casual premium wear segment. This brand will target 

young professionals within the age group of 21 to 40 years. For further details, please see the section 

ñBusinessò beginning on page 79 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus. The brand would be promoted with 

a focused media campaign covering leading newspaper dailies, magazines and hoardings. 

 

The Company proposes to launch this brand by advertisements in the following medium: 

 

(in Rs. million) 

Medium Total 

Print 164.4 

Television 148.2  

Outdoor hoardings 59.5  

Digital (internet, mailers and social networking sites)  19.5  

Radio 0.7 

Other mediums 21.9  

Photo shoot for print advertisements 3.5  

Marketing kits 1.9  

Production charges for television advertisements 15.0  

Product placement charges 2.0  

Total 436.6 

 

The above costs towards print, television, outdoor hoardings, digital and radio advertisements are based on 

quotations received from a third party. 

  

For further details on the products which are proposed to be offered under this brand, please see the section 

ñBusiness ï The Future Casual Premium Brandò beginning on page 86 of this Draft Red Herring 

Prospectus. 

 

5. Implementation of ERP System  
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The Company plans to develop and implement an ERP system to facilitate the integration of various 

business processes of the Company.  

 

This ERP system will assist in improving the transparency of production processes, enable optimum use of 

manufacturing facilities, meet customersô requirements, streamline business processes and operations, 

shorten delivery time and improve control over inventory and shipment. 

 

The Company estimates that it will incur an expenditure of Rs. 127.0 million towards the establishment of 

this ERP system. The table below sets forth details of the proposed expenditure and price quotations 

received from various vendors:  

 

Sr. 

No. 

Particular  Quotation Received 

from 

Date Amount 

(In Rs. 

million ) 

1 ERP licenses and implementation cost Infinite Computer 

Solutions 

July 15,2010 85.0 

2 Leased lines to connect different 

locations 

Tata Communications  July 6, 2010 5.0 

3 Servers  IBM May 12, 

2010 

26.0 

4 Oracle R- Database Management 

System  

Redington Sept 29, 

2010 

11.0  

   Total 127.0 

 

In the event that the Company incurs any expenditure in relation to implementation of the ERP System, the 

Company will recoup such costs from the Net Proceeds. 

 

6. Pre-payment and/or re-payment of certain loans  

 

A. Working Capital Facilities: 

 

The Company has entered into a working capital consortium agreement dated January 6, 2009, which was 

subsequently amended by a first supplemental working consortium agreement dated July 27, 2009. Bank of 

India, State Bank of Indore, IDBI Bank Limited, Jammu & Kashmir Bank, Export Import Bank of India 

and State Bank of India are the members of this working capital consortium. For further details in relation 

to the agreement for working capital, please see the section titled ñFinancial Indebtednessò on page 191 of 

this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.  

 

The Company proposes to utilise Rs. 322.0 million from the Net Proceeds towards pre-payment and/or re-

payment of a portion of the outstanding amount with respect to certain lenders in the working capital 

consortium, as follows:  

 

a. Working capital facility from IDBI Bank Limited:  

 

Sr. 

No. 

Lender Nature of 

Borrowing 

Total 

amount 

outstanding 

as at 

December 4, 

20101 

(In Rs 

million)  

Total 

amount 

proposed 

to be 

utilised 

from Net 

Proceed 

(In Rs. 

million)  

Rate of 

interest 

per 

annum 

Re-

payment 

schedule 

Minimum 

notice 

period for 

Pre-

payment 

Prepayment 

penalty 

1. IDBI 

Bank 

Limited 

Cash 

Credit 

Facility 

1,138.6        101.7 BPLR 

minus 

50 basis 

points 

Repayable 

on 

demand 

N.A. Nil. 

prepayment 

permitted 

after 
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Sr. 

No. 

Lender Nature of 

Borrowing 

Total 

amount 

outstanding 

as at 

December 4, 

20101 

(In Rs 

million)  

Total 

amount 

proposed 

to be 

utilised 

from Net 

Proceed 

(In Rs. 

million)  

Rate of 

interest 

per 

annum 

Re-

payment 

schedule 

Minimum 

notice 

period for 

Pre-

payment 

Prepayment 

penalty 

p.a. obtaining 

prior consent 

of the lender. 
1The amount outstanding as of December 4, 2010 has been certified by Ramalinga Athithan & Co., 

Chartered Accountants vide their certificate dated December 6, 2010.  

 

b. Working capital facility from Jammu and Kashmir Bank: 

 

Sr. 

No. 

Lender Nature of 

Borrowing 

Total 

amount 

outstanding 

as at 

December 4, 

20101 

(In Rs 

million)  

Total 

amount 

proposed 

to be 

utilised 

from Net 

Proceed 

(In Rs. 

million)  

Rate of 

interest 

per 

annum 

Re-

payment 

schedule 

Minimum 

notice 

period for 

Pre-

payment 

Prepayment 

penalty 

1. Jammu 

and 

Kashmir 

Bank 

Cash 

Credit 

Facility 

220.3 220.3 PLR + 

1% p.a. 

(present 

rate 

13.75% 

p.a.) 

Repayable 

on 

demand 

NA Nil. 

Prepayment 

permitted 

after 

obtaining 

prior consent 

of the lender. 
1The amount outstanding as of December 4, 2010, has been certified by Ramalinga Athithan & Co., 

Chartered Accountants vide their certificate dated December 6, 2010.  

 

In event the Company repays a portion of the above mentioned loans before the completion of this Issue, 

the Company will then recoup such costs from the Net Proceeds.  

 

B. Term Loan: 

 

The Company intends to utilise Rs. 750 million from the Net Proceeds towards pre-payment and/or re-

payment the term loan availed from IDBI Bank Limited, the details of which are as follows:  

 

a. Term loan agreement dated December 30, 2009 between IDBI Bank Limited and the Company: 

 
Sr. 

No. 

Lender Nature of 

Borrowing  

Purpose of 

utilisation  

Total amount 

outstanding1 

(In Rs million)  

Total 

amount 

proposed to 

be utilised 

from Net 

Proceed 

(In Rs. 

mill ion) 

Rate of 

interest 

per 

annum 

Re-payment 

schedule 

Minimum 

notice 

period for 

Pre-

payment 

Prepayment 

penalty 

1 IDBI 

Bank 

Limited 

Term Loan  For part financing 

capital expenditure 

and brand 

launch/building 

expense  

750.0 (amount 

sanctioned is 

Rs. 800.0 

million) 

750.0 12.75% In eight equal 

quarterly 

instalments of 

Rs. 100 million 

to be paid from 

December 31, 

2010 

30 days 

prior notice 

Prepayment 

premium of 1% 

per annum or such 

other amount as 

may be decided by 

the lender 

1The amount outstanding as of December 4, 2010 has been certified by Ramalinga Athithan & Co., Chartered 

Accountants vide their certificate dated December 6, 2010. 
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In event the Company repays a portion of the above mentioned loans before the completion of this Issue, 

the Company will then recoup such costs from the Net Proceeds.  

 

For further details in relation to security charged and negative covenants, please see the section titled 

ñFinancial Indebtednessò on page 191 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus. 

 

7. General Corporate Purposes  

 

The Net Proceeds will be first utilized towards the objects mentioned above. The remaining balance is 

proposed to be utilized for general corporate purposes, including strategic initiatives, brand building 

exercises and strengthening of the Companyôs marketing capabilities. The Companyôs management, in 

accordance with the policies of the Board of Directors, will have flexibility in utilizing any surplus amount. 

  

Interim use of funds 

 

The management of the Company, in accordance with the policies established by the Board from time to 

time, will have flexibility in deploying the Net Proceeds. Pending utilization for the purposes described 

above, the Company may invest the funds in high interest bearing liquid instruments including money 

market mutual funds, deposits with banks for the necessary duration or for reducing overdrafts. Such 

investments would be in accordance with investment policies approved by the Board from time to time. 

The Company confirms that, pending utilization of the Net Proceeds, it shall not use the funds for any 

investments in equity markets.  

 

Issue Related Expenses 

 

The expenses for this Issue include lead management fees, co-lead management fees, underwriting 

commission, brokerage and selling commission, registrarôs fees, advertisement and marketing expenses, 

printing and distribution expenses, IPO Grading expenses, legal fees, bidding software expenses, 

depository charges and listing fees to the Stock Exchanges and other expenses.  

 

The estimated Issue related expenses are as under:  

 

Activity  Amount (Rs. 

million)  

% of the Issue 

Expenses 

% of total 

Issue Size 

Lead management fees, underwriting commission and 

selling commission (including commission to SCSBs for 

ASBA applications)
 
 

[ǒ] 

 

[ǒ] [ǒ] 

Registrarôs fees [ǒ] [ǒ] [ǒ] 

Advertisement and marketing expenses [ǒ] [ǒ] [ǒ] 

Printing and distribution expenses [ǒ] 

 

[ǒ] [ǒ] 

Advisors [ǒ] [ǒ] [ǒ] 

Bankers to the Issue [ǒ] [ǒ] [ǒ] 

IPO grading expenses [ǒ] [ǒ] [ǒ] 

Others (bidding software expenses, depository charges, 

listing fees, other expenses etc.)
 
 

[ǒ] [ǒ] [ǒ] 

Total [ǒ] [ǒ] [ǒ] 

 

Other than listing fee which will be borne only by the Company, all expenses relating to the Issue as 

mentioned above will be shared between the Company and the Selling Shareholder in proportion to the 

Equity Shares offered for sale or issued, as the case may be in the Issue.  

 

Bridge Financing Facilities 
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The Company has not raised any bridge loan against the proceeds of this Issue. 

 

Working Capital Requirement  

 

The Net Proceeds will not be used to meet the Companyôs working capital requirements. The Company 

expects to meet the Companyôs working capital requirements in the future through internal accruals, 

drawdown from existing debt facilities or availing new lines of credit.  

 

Monitoring Utilization of Funds  

 

In terms of Regulation 16 of the SEBI Regulations, the Company has appointed [ǒ] as the monitoring 

agency to monitor the utilization of the Net Proceeds. The Company in accordance with clause 49 of the 

Listing Agreement undertakes to place the report(s) of the Monitoring Agency on receipt before the Audit 

Committee without any delay. The Company will disclose the utilisation of the Net Proceeds, including 

interim use under a separate head in its balance sheet for such fiscal periods as required under the SEBI 

Regulations, the Listing Agreements with the Stock Exchanges and any other applicable laws or 

regulations, clearly specifying the purposes for which the Net Proceeds have been utilized. The Company 

will also, in its balance sheet for the applicable fiscal periods, provide details, if any, in relation to all such 

Net Proceeds that have not been utilized, if any, of such currently unutilized Net Proceeds.  

 

In accordance with clause 43A of the Listing Agreement, the Company shall furnish to the Stock 

Exchanges on a quarterly basis a statement including material deviations, if any, in the utilization of the 

proceeds of the Issue for the objects of the Issue as stated above. This information will also be published in 

newspapers simultaneously with the interim or annual financial results after placing the same before the 

Audit Committee. In the event that the Monitoring Agency points out any deviation in the use of Net 

Proceeds from the objects of the Fresh Issue as stated above, or has given any other reservations about the 

end use of funds, the Company shall intimate the same to the Stock Exchanges without delay. Further, on 

an annual basis, the Company shall prepare a statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those 

stated in this Draft Red Herring Prospectus and place it before the Audit Committee. Such disclosure shall 

be made until such time as the Net Proceeds has been fully spent. The statement shall be certified by the 

statutory auditors of the Company.  

 

Other confirmations  

 

No part of the Net Proceeds will be paid by the Company as consideration to the Promoter, the Directors, 

key managerial personnel, associates or the Group Companies. 

 

Except as mentioned in this section, there are no material existing or anticipated transactions with the 

Promoter, Directors, the members of the Promoter Group, the Group Companies or key managerial 

personnel in relation to the utilisation of the Net Proceeds. 
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BASIS FOR ISSUE PRICE 

  

The Issue Price will be determined by the Company and the Selling Shareholders in consultation with the 

GCBRLMs and the BRLMs on the basis of the assessment of market demand for the offered Equity Shares by the 

Book Building Process. The face value of the Equity Shares of the Company is Rs. 10 each and the Issue Price is [ǒ] 

times of the face value at the lower end of the Price Band and [ǒ] times the face value at the higher end of the Price 

Band.   

 

Qualitative Factors 
 

Some of the qualitative factors which, for the basis for computing the prices, are set forth below: 

  

 Presence in high growth segments 

 Established brands and market positioning 

 Strong distribution network 

 Integrated operations 

 Significant manufacturing capabilities 

 Experienced management team 
 

For more details on qualitative factors, refer to section titled ñBusinessò on page 79 of this Draft Red Herring 

Prospectus. 

 

Quantitative Factors 
 

1. Basic and Diluted Earnings per share (EPS) 

  

Year ended March 31 Basic EPS Diluted EPS Weight 

2010 15.45 15.45 3 

2009 9.61 9.59 2 

2008 4.12 4.12 1 

Weighted Average 11.62 11.61  

 

Adjusted EPS (Basic and Diluted) for the half year ended September 30, 2010 (not annulised): Rs. 8.49  
 

Note: 
a)  As the business of the Company was transferred with effect from January 1, 2008, references to the fiscal year 

ended March 31, 2008 refer to the period from January 1, 2008 to March 31, 2008. 

b)  The Company did not have any subsidiaries for the financial years ending March 31, 2008, March 31, 2009 and 

March 31, 2010 and for half year ended September 30, 2010. 

c)  Earnings per Equity Share and diluted earnings per Equity Share for the year ending March 31, 2010, March 31, 

2009 and March 31, 2008 based on the adjusted capital due to bonus issue of Equity Shares issued on September 

10, 2010 in the ratio of 2:3. 

 

2. Price Earnings Ratio (P/E) in relation to the Issue price of Rs. [ǒ] per share  
 

a. P/E based on Basic and Diluted EPS for the year ended March 31, 2010: [ǒ] times 

b. Industry P/E 

a. Highest : 88.7 

b. Lowest : 7.7 

c. Industry Composite : 24.8 
 

Source: Industry: ñTextile Productsò, Capital Market, Vol. XXV/19, November 15 ï 28, 2010 
 

3. Return on Networth (RoNW) 
 

Year ended March 31 RoNW (%)  Weight 

2010 15.9 3 
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Year ended March 31 RoNW (%)  Weight 

2009 12.3 2 

2008 40.2 1 

Weighted Average 18.75  

Note: 

a) As the business of the Company was transferred effective 1 January 2008, references to the fiscal year ended 

March 31, 2008 refer to the period from January 1, 2008 to March 31, 2008. 

b) The Company did not have any subsidiaries for the financial years ending 31 March 2008, 31 March 2009 and 31 

March 2010. 
 

4. Minimum Return on Total Net Worth after Issue needed to maintain Pre-Issue Basic EPS for the year 

ended March 31, 2010 is [ǒ] 
 

5. Net Asset Value  

 

NAV as at March 31, 2010             : Rs. 239.82 per Equity Share 

NAV as at September 30, 2010 : Rs. 104.42 per Equity Share  

 

Issue price   : Rs. [ǒ] per Equity Share 
 

NAV after the Issue  : Rs. [ǒ] per Equity Share 
 

Note:  
a)  NAV per Equity Share as at March 31, 2010 is on the basis of number of Equity Shares outstanding as at March 

31, 2010, without taking into account the bonus issue of Equity Shares on September 10, 2010. 
 

6. Comparison with Industry peers  
 

 

 

 Face value 

(Rs.) as at 

March 31, 

2010 

EPS (Rs.) 

For the year 

ended March 

31, 2010 

P/E 

Ratio 

RoNW (%) 

For the year ended 

March 31, 2010 

Book Value 

Per share 

(Rs.) 

As at March 

31, 2010 

1. The Company  10 15.45 [ǒ] 15.9 239.82 

 Peer Group      

2. Bombay Rayon Fashions 

Limited 
10 15.5 12.7 11.3 172.4 

3. Zodiac Cloth Co. Limited 10 15.9 27.8 16.4 110.9 

4. Raymond Limited 10 1.6 88.1 0.9 191.1 

5. Nahar Spinning Mills 

Limited 
5 13.9 6.3 10.1 153.8 

 Industry Composite   24.8   

Peer Group Average  11.7 33.7 9.7 157.0 
 (1) As at and for the year ended March 31, 2010, as restated 

  

Source: Industry: ñTextile Productsò, Capital Market, Vol. XXV/19, Nov 15 ï 28, 2010  
 

Note:  

a) For The Company, book value per Equity Share as at March 31, 2010 is on the basis of number of Equity Shares 

outstanding as at March 31, 2010, without taking into account the bonus issue of Equity Shares on September 10, 

2010 
 

The Issue price will be [ǒ] times of the face value of the Equity Shares. The Company, the Selling 

Shareholders, the GCBRLMs and the BRLMs believes that the Issue Price of Rs. [ǒ] is justified in view of 

the above qualitative and quantitative parameters. 
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STATEMENT OF TAX BENEFIT S 

 

 

 

To, 

The Board of Directors 

Reid & Taylor (India) Limited 

Marathon Innova IT Park, 

B2-501 and C-501, 

Off G. K. Marg, 

Lower Parel (West), 

Mumbai - 400013 

 

 

Dear Sirs, 

 

 

Sub:  Certification of statement of Possible Tax Benefits in connection with Initial Public Offering by Reid 

& Taylor (India) Limited (ñthe Companyò) under Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of 

Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2009 (ñthe Regulationsò) 

 

 

We, Haribhakti & Co., the statutory auditors of the Company have been requested by the management of the 

Company having its registered office at the above mentioned address to certify the statement of tax benefits to the 

Company and its Shareholders under the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961, Wealth Tax Act, 1957 and Gift 

Tax Act, 1958 presently in force in India as of date in connection with the proposed Initial Public Offerings of the 

Company. 

 

Several of these benefits are dependent on the Company or its Shareholders fulfilling the conditions prescribed 

under the relevant tax laws and their interpretations. Hence, the ability of the Company or its Shareholders to derive 

tax benefits is dependent upon fulfilling such conditions, which based on business imperatives the Company faces in 

the future, the Company may or may not choose to fulfill. 

 

The benefits discussed in the enclosed statement are not exhaustive nor are they conclusive. The preparation of the 

contents stated is the responsibility of the Companyôs management. This statement is only intended to provide 

general information and to guide the investors and is neither designed nor intended to be a substitute for professional 

tax advice. A shareholder is advised to consult his/ her/ their own tax consultant with respect to the tax implications 

of an investment in the equity shares particularly in view of the fact that certain recently enacted legislation may not 

have a direct legal precedent or may have a different interpretation on the benefits, which an investor can avail. 

Further, we have also incorporated the amendments brought out by the Finance Act, 2010, where applicable. We do 

not express any opinion or provide any assurance as to whether: 

 

 the Company or its Shareholders will continue to obtain these benefits in future; or 

 

 the conditions prescribed for availing the benefits have been / would be met with; 

 

 the revenue authorities/ courts will concur with the views expressed herein. 

 

Our views are based on the existing provisions of law and its interpretations, which are subject to change from time 

to time. We do not assume responsibility to up-date the views of such changes. 
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This report is intended solely for your information and for inclusion in the Offer Document in connection with 

the proposed Initial Public Offering of the Company and is not to be used, referred to or distributed for any 

other purpose without our prior written consent. 

 

For Haribhakti & Co.  

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No. 103523W 

 

 

 

Rakesh Rathi 

Partner 

Membership No. 45228 

 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: December 1, 2010  
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ANNEXURE 

 

Statement of Special Tax Benefits: 

 

There are no special tax benefits available to the Company and its shareholders. 

 

Statement of General Tax Benefits available to the Company & its Shareholder under the Income Tax Act, 

1961 (ñITAò) and other Direct Tax Laws presently in force in India: 

I.  Benefits available to the Company 

 

1. As per Section 10(34) of the ITA, any income by way of dividends referred to in Section 115 ï O (i.e. 

dividends declared, distributed or paid on or after 1st April, 2003 by domestic companies) received on the 

shares of any company is exempt from tax. Moreover, the company will also be entitled to avail the credit 

of dividend received by it from its subsidiaries in accordance with the provisions of section 115-O (1A) on 

which tax on distributed profits has been paid by the subsidiary. Furthermore, the amount of above said 

dividend shall be reduced by amount of dividend paid to any person for the New Pension System Trust 

referred to in clause (44) of section 10 of the ITA. 

 

As per Section 10(35) of the ITA, the following income will be exempt in the hands of the Company;  

 

(a) Income received in respect of the units of a Mutual Fund specified under clause (23D) of Section 

10; or 

 

(b) Income received in respect of units from the Administrator of the specified undertaking; or 

 

(c) Income received in respect of units from the specified company. 

 

However, this exemption does not apply to any income arising from transfer of units of the Administrator 

of the specified undertaking or of the specified Company or of a mutual fund, as the case may be. 

 

For this purpose (i) ñAdministratorò means the Administrator as referred to in Section 2(a) of the Unit Trust 

of India (Transfer of Undertaking and Repeal) Act, 2002 and (ii) ñSpecified Companyò means a Company 

as referred to in Section 2(h) of the said Act.  

 

2. As per Section 2(29A) read with Section 2(42A), shares held in a company or a Unit of a Mutual Fund 

specified under clause (23D) of Section 10 are treated as long term capital asset if the same are held by the 

assessee for more than twelve months period immediately preceding the date of its transfer. Accordingly, 

the benefits enumerated below in respect of long term capital assets would be available if the shares in a 

company or a Unit of a Mutual Fund specified under clause (23D) of Section 10 are held for more than 

twelve months. 

 

3. As per Section 10(38) of the ITA, long term capital gains arising to the company from the transfer of long 

term capital asset being an equity share in a company or a unit of an equity oriented fund where such 

transaction is chargeable to securities transaction tax will be exempt in the hands of the Company. 

 

For this purpose, ñEquity Oriented Fundò means a fund ï  

 

i. where the investible funds are invested by way of equity shares in domestic companies to the 

extent of more than sixty five percent of the total proceeds of such funds; and  

 

ii.  which has been set up under a scheme of a Mutual Fund specified under Section 10(23D) of the 

ITA. As per Section 115JB, while calculating ñbook profitsò the Company will not be able to 

reduce the long term capital gains to which the provisions of Section 10(38) of the ITA apply and 

will be required to pay Minimum Alternate Tax @ 18% (plus applicable surcharge and education 
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cess) of the book profits. 

 

4. As per Section 54EC of the ITA and subject to the conditions and to the extent specified therein, long-term 

capital gains (in cases not covered under Section 10(38) of the ITA) arising on the transfer of a long-term 

capital asset will be exempt from capital gains tax to the extent such capital gains are invested in a ñlong 

term specified assetò within a period of 6 months after the date of such transfer. It may be noted that 

investment made on or after April 1, 2007 in the long term specified asset by an assessee during any 

financial year cannot exceed Rs. 50 Lacs. 

 

However, if the assessee transfers or converts the long term specified asset into money within a period of 

three years from the date of its acquisition, the amount of capital gains exempted earlier would become 

chargeable to tax as long-term capital gains in the year in which the long term specified asset is transferred 

or converted into money. 

 

A ñlong term specified assetò for making investment under this section on or after 1st April 2007 means 

any bond, redeemable after three years and issued on or after the 1st April 2007 by:4 

  

(i) National Highways Authority of India constituted under Section 3 of the National Highways 

Authority of India Act, 1988; or 

 

(ii)  Rural Electrification Corporation Limited, a company formed and registered under The 

Companies Act, 1956. 

 

5. As per Section 111A of the ITA, short term capital gains arising to the Company from the sale of equity 

share or a unit of an equity oriented fund transacted through a recognized stock exchange in India, where 

such transaction is chargeable to securities transaction tax, will be taxable at the rate of 15% (plus 

applicable surcharge and education cess).  

 

6. As per Section 112 of the ITA, taxable long-term capital gains, if any, on sale of listed securities or units or 

zero coupon bonds will be charged to tax at the concessional rate of 20% (plus applicable surcharge and 

education cess) after considering indexation benefits in accordance with and subject to the provisions of 

Section 48 of the ITA or at 10% (plus applicable surcharge and education cess) without indexation benefits, 

at the option of the Company. Under Section 48 of the ITA, the long term capital gains arising out of sale 

of capital assets excluding bonds and debentures (except Capital Indexed Bonds issued by the Government) 

will be computed after indexing the cost of acquisition/ improvement. 

 

7. Under Section 115JAA(1A) of the ITA, credit is allowed in respect of any Minimum Alternate Tax 

(óMATô) paid under Section 115JB of the ITA for any assessment year commencing on or after April 1, 

2006. Tax credit eligible to be carried forward will be the difference between MAT paid and the tax 

computed as per the normal provisions of the ITA for that assessment year. Such MAT credit is allowed to 

be carried forward for set off purposes for up to 10 years succeeding the year in which the MAT credit is 

allowable. 

 

8. The company will be entitled to amortize preliminary expenses being the expenditure incurred on public 

issue of shares, under Section 35D(2)(c)(iv) of the Act, subject to the limit specified in Section 35D(3) and 

fulfillment of requirements u/s 35(1) (ii). 

 

9. Deduction under Section 32: As per provisions of Section 32(1)(iia) of the Act, the company is entitled to 

claim additional depreciation of 20% of the actual cost of any new machinery or plant which has been 

acquired and installed after 31st March, 2005 subject to fulfillment of conditions prescribed therein. 

 

10. Short-term capital loss suffered during the year shall be set off against income if any under the head capital 

gain; balance loss if any, could be carried forward for set off against capital gains of future years upto eight 

subsequent assessment years. 

 

11. Long-term capital loss suffered during the year is allowed to be set-off only against long-term capital gains; 
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balance loss, if any, could be carried forward for eight years for claiming set-off against subsequent yearsô 

long-term capital gain. 

 

II.  Tax Benefits available to shareholders of the Company under the Income Tax Act, 1961 

 

A. Resident shareholders 

 

1.  Under Section 10(32) of the IT Act, any income of minor children who is a shareholder of the 

Company clubbed in the total income of the parent under Section 64(1A) of the IT Act, will be 

exempt from tax to the extent of Rs. 1,500 per minor child whose income is so included in the 

income of the parent. 

 

2.  The Company is required to pay a ódividend distribution taxô currently at the rate of 16.60875% 

(including applicable surcharge and education cess) on the total amount distributed or declared or 

paid as dividend (interim/final). Under Section 10(34) of the IT Act, income by way of dividend 

referred to in Section 115-O of the IT Act, received on the shares of the Company is exempt from 

income tax in the hands of shareholders. However, it is pertinent to note that Section 14A of the IT 

Act restricts claims for deduction of expenses incurred in relation to exempt income. Thus, any 

expenses incurred to earn the dividend income are not an allowable expenditure.  

 

3.  The characterization of the gains/losses, arising from transfer of shares, as capital gains or 

business income would depend on the nature of holding (whether for investment or carrying on 

trading in shares) in the hands of the shareholder and various other factors. 

 

4. (a) The long-term capital gains (under section 2(29B) of the IT Act) accruing to the 

shareholders of the Company on sale of the Companyôs shares in a transaction carried out 

through a recognized stock exchange in India, and where such transaction is chargeable 

to securities transaction tax (ñSTTò), is exempt from tax as per provisions of Section 

10(38) of the IT Act. 

  

(b) The short-term capital gains (under section 2(42A) of the IT Act) accruing to the 

shareholders of the Company on transfer of the Companyôs equity shares in a transaction 

carried out through a recognized stock exchange in India, and where such transaction is 

chargeable to STT, tax will be chargeable at 15% (plus applicable surcharge and 

education cess) as per provisions of Section 111A of the IT Act. Further no deduction 

under Chapter VI-A of the IT Act, would be allowed in computing such short term capital 

gains subjected to tax under Section 111A. In other cases, where the transaction is not 

subjected to STT, the short term capital gains would be chargeable as a part of the total 

income and the tax rates would depend on the income slab. 

 

(c) As per the provisions of Section 112 of the IT Act, long term gains accruing/ arising to 

the shareholders of the Company from the transfer of shares/ securities of the Company 

being listed in recognized stock exchanges, where no security transaction tax is paid then 

it is chargeable to tax at 10% (plus applicable surcharge and education cess) after 

deducting from the sale proceeds the cost of acquisition without indexation or chargeable 

to tax at the rate of 20% (plus applicable surcharge and education cess) after claiming the 

benefit of indexation, surcharge and education cess, whichever is lower. Under Section 

48 of the IT Act, the long term capital gains arising out of sale of capital assets excluding 

bonds and debentures (except Capital Indexed Bonds issued by the Government) will be 

computed after indexing the cost of acquisition / improvement. 

 

(d) Shareholders are entitled to claim exemption in respect of tax on long term capital gains 

(other than those exempt under Section 10(38) of the IT Act) under Section 54EC of the 

IT Act, if the amount of capital gains is invested in certain specified bonds / securities 

within six months from the date of transfer, subject to the fulfillment of the conditions 

specified therein. The maximum investment permissible on and after April 1, 2007 for 
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the purposes of claiming the exemption in the notified bonds, by any person in a financial 

year, is Rs. 50 lacs. However, according to Section 54EC(2) of the IT Act, if the 

shareholder transfers or converts the notified bonds into money within a period of three 

years from the date of their acquisition, the amount of capital gains exempted earlier 

would become chargeable to tax as long term capital gains in the year in which such 

bonds are transferred or otherwise converted into money. 

 

(e) Shareholders that are individuals or Hindu undivided families can avail of an exemption 

under Section 54F of the IT Act, by utilization of the net consideration arising from the 

transfer of the Companyôs share held for a period of more than 12 months (which is not 

exempt under Section 10(38)), for purchase / construction of a residential house within 

the specified time period and subject to the fulfillment of the conditions specified therein. 

 

5. As per Section 74 Short-term capital loss suffered during the year is allowed to be set-off against 

short-term as well as long-term capital gains of the said year. Balance loss, if any, could be carried 

forward for eight years for claiming set-off against subsequent yearsô short term as well as long 

term capital gains. Long-term capital loss suffered during the year is allowed to be set-off against 

long term capital gains. Balance loss, if any, could be carried forward for eight years for claiming 

set-off against subsequent yearsô long-term capital gains. 

 

6. As per section 56 (2) (vii) Where an individual or a Hindu undivided family receives from any 

person on or after the 1st day of October, 2009, any property, (moveable/immovable property 

includes shares & securities [being capital asset of the assessee]), 

 

(i) without consideration, the aggregate fair market value of which exceeds fifty thousand 

rupees, the whole of the aggregate fair market value of such property shall be chargeable 

to income-tax under the head Income from other sources; 

 

(ii)  for a consideration which is less than the aggregate fair market value of the property by 

an amount exceeding fifty thousand rupees, the aggregate fair market value of such 

property as exceeds such consideration shall be chargeable to income-tax under the head 

Income from other sources. 

 

Provided that this clause shall not apply to any property received: 

 

(a) from any relative; or 

 

(b) on the occasion of the marriage of the individual; or 

 

(c) under a will or by way of inheritance; or 

 

(d) in contemplation of death of the payer or donor, as the case may be; or 

 

(e) from any local authority as defined in the Explanation to clause (20) of Section 10 of the IT Act; 

or 

 

(f) from any fund or foundation or university or other educational institution or hospital or other 

medical institution or any trust or institution referred to in clause (23C) of Section 10 of the IT 

Act; or 

 

(g) from any trust or institution registered under Section 12AA of the IT Act. 

 

B.1 Non-resident shareholders ï other than Foreign Institutional Investors 

 

1. Under Section 10(32) of the IT Act, any income of minor children, who is a shareholder of the 

Company, which is clubbed with the total income of the parent under Section 64(1A) of the IT 
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Act, will be exempt from tax to the extent of Rs.1,500 per minor child whose income is so 

included. 

 

2. The Company is required to pay a ódividend distribution taxô currently at the rate of 16.60875% 

(including applicable surcharge and education cess) on the total amount distributed or declared or 

paid as dividend. Dividend (whether interim or final) declared, distributed or paid, under Section 

115-O of the IT Act, by the Company are exempt in the hands of shareholders as per the 

provisions of Section 10(34) of the IT Act. However, it is pertinent to note that Section 14A of the 

IT Act restricts claim for deduction of expenses incurred in relation to exempt income. Thus, any 

expenses incurred to earn the dividend income are not an allowable expenditure.  

 

3. The characterization of the gains/losses, arising from transfer of shares, as capital gains or 

business income would depend on the nature of holding (whether for investment or carrying on 

trading in shares) in the hands of the shareholder and various other factors. 

 

4. The long-term capital gains accruing/ arising to a shareholder of the Company, being a non-

resident, on transfer of the Companyôs equity shares in a transaction carried out through a 

recognized stock exchange in India, and where such transaction is chargeable to STT, is exempt 

from tax as per provisions of Section 10(38) of the IT Act. 

 

5. The short-term capital gains accruing/ arising to a shareholder of the Company on transfer of the 

Companyôs equity shares in a transaction carried out through a recognized stock exchange in 

India, and where such transaction is chargeable to STT, tax is chargeable at 15% plus applicable 

surcharge and education cess as per provisions of Section 111A of the IT Act. Further, no 

deduction under Chapter VI-A and rebate would be allowed in computing such short term capital 

gains subjected to tax under Section 111A. In other case, i.e. where the transaction is not subjected 

to STT, the short term capital gains would be chargeable as a part of the total income and the tax 

rate would depend on the income slab. 

 

6. As per the provisions of Section 112 of the IT Act, long term gains accruing/ arising to the 

shareholders of the Company from the transfer of shares/ securities of the Company being listed in 

recognized stock exchanges, where no security transaction tax is paid then it is chargeable to tax at 

10% (plus applicable surcharge and education cess) after deducting from the sale proceeds the cost 

of acquisition without indexation or chargeable to tax at the rate of 20% (plus applicable surcharge 

and education cess ) after claiming the benefit of indexation surcharge and education cess, 

whichever is lower.  

 

7. Under the provisions of Section 90(2) of the IT Act, if the provisions of the Double Taxation 

Avoidance Agreement (ñDTAAò) between India and the country of residence of the non-resident 

are more beneficial, then the provisions of the DTAA shall be applicable. 

 

8. The shareholders are entitled to claim exemption in respect of tax on long term capital gains other 

than those exempt under Section 10(38) of the IT Act under Section 54EC of the IT Act, if the 

amount of capital gains is invested in certain specified bonds / securities within six months from 

the date of transfer subject to the fulfillment of the conditions specified therein. The maximum 

investment permissible for the purposes of claiming the exemption in the notified bonds by any 

person in a financial year is Rs. 50 lacs. However, according to Section 54 EC(2) of the IT Act, if 

the shareholder transfers or converts (otherwise than by transfer) the notified bonds into money 

within a period of three years from the date of their acquisition, the amount of capital gains 

exempted earlier would become chargeable to tax as long term capital gains in the year in which 

such bonds are transferred or otherwise converted (otherwise than by transfer) into money. 

 

9. Individual shareholders can avail of an exemption under Section 54F by utilization of the net 

consideration arising from the sale of companyôs share held for a period more than 12 months 

(which is not exempt under Section 10(38)), for purchase/construction of a residential house 

within the specified time period and subject to the fulfillment of the conditions specified therein. 
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10. As per the first proviso to section 48, capital gains arising from the transfer of shares of the 

Company, shall be computed by converting the cost of acquisition, expenditure incurred wholly 

and exclusively in connection with such transfer and the full value of the consideration received or 

accruing as a result of the transfer of the capital asset into the same foreign currency as was 

initially utilised in the purchase of the shares. Cost Indexation benefit will not be available in such 

a case. The capital gains so computed in such foreign currency shall be reconverted into Indian 

currency and such manner of computation of capital gains shall be applicable in respect of capital 

gains accruing or arising from every reinvestment thereafter in, and sale of, shares of the 

Company. 

 

11. As per Section 74 Short-term capital loss suffered during the year is allowed to be set-off against 

short-term as well as long-term capital gains of the said year. Balance loss, if any, could be carried 

forward for eight years for claiming set-off against subsequent yearsô short term as well as long 

term capital gains. Long-term capital loss suffered during the year is allowed to be set-off against 

long term capital gains. Balance loss, if any, could be carried forward for eight years for claiming 

set-off against subsequent yearsô long-term capital gains. 

 

12. As per section 56 (2) (vii) Where an individual or a Hindu undivided family receives from any 

person on or after the 1st day of October, 2009, any property, (moveable/immovable property 

which includes shares & securities [being capital asset of the assessee]), 

 

(i) without consideration, the aggregate fair market value of which exceeds fifty thousand 

rupees, the whole of the aggregate fair market value of such property shall be chargeable 

to income-tax under the head Income from other sources; 

 

(ii)  for a consideration which is less than the aggregate fair market value of the property by 

an amount exceeding fifty thousand rupees, the aggregate fair market value of such 

property as exceeds such consideration shall be chargeable to income-tax under the head 

Income from other sources. 

 

Provided that this clause shall not apply to any property received 

 

(a) from any relative; or 

 

(b) on the occasion of the marriage of the individual; or 

 

(c) under a will or by way of inheritance; or 

 

(d) in contemplation of death of the payer or donor, as the case may be; or 

 

(e) from any local authority as defined in the Explanation to clause (20) of Section 10 of the IT Act; 

or 

 

(f) from any fund or foundation or university or other educational institution or hospital or other 

medical institution or any trust or institution referred to in clause (23C) of Section 10 of the IT 

Act; or 

 

(g) from any trust or institution registered under Section 12AA of the IT Act. 

 

13. As per Section 115E of the ITA, in the case of a shareholder being a Non-Resident Indian, and 

subscribing to the shares of the Company in convertible foreign exchange, in accordance with and 

subject to the prescribed conditions, long term capital gains arising on transfer of the shares of the 

Company (in cases not covered under Section 10(38) of the ITA) will be subject to tax at the rate 

of 10% (plus applicable surcharge and education cess), without any indexation benefit. 



 

57 

 

14. As per Section 115F of the ITA and subject to the conditions specified therein, in the case of a 

shareholder being a Non-Resident Indian, gains arising on transfer of a long term capital asset 

being shares of the Company will not be chargeable to tax if the entire net consideration received 

on such transfer is invested within the prescribed period of six months in any specified asset or 

savings certificates referred to in Section 10(4B) of the ITA. If part of such net consideration is 

invested within the prescribed period of six months in any specified asset or savings certificates 

referred to in Section 10(4B) of the ITA then such gains would not be chargeable to tax on a 

proportionate basis. Further, if the specified asset or savings certificate in which the investment 

has been made is transferred within a period of three years from the date of investment, the 

amount of capital gains tax exempted earlier would become chargeable to tax as long term capital 

gains in the year in which such specified asset or savings certificates are transferred.  

 

15. As per Section 115G of the ITA, Non-Resident Indians are not obliged to file a return of income 

under Section 139(1) of the ITA, if their only source of income is income from specified 

investments or long term capital gains earned on transfer of such investments or both, provided tax 

has been deducted at source from such income as per the provisions of Chapter XVII-B of the 

ITA. 

 

16. As per Section 115H of the ITA, where Non-Resident Indian becomes assessable as a resident in 

India, he may furnish a declaration in writing to the Assessing Officer, along with his return of 

income for that year under Section 139 of the ITA to the effect that the provisions of Chapter XIIA 

shall continue to apply to him in relation to such investment income derived from the specified 

assets for that year and subsequent assessment years until such assets are converted into money. 

 

17. As per Section 115I of the ITA, a Non-Resident Indian may elect not to be governed by the 

provisions of Chapter XII-A for any assessment year by furnishing a declaration along with his 

return of income for that assessment year under Section 139 of the ITA, that the provisions of 

Chapter XII-A shall not apply to him for that assessment year and accordingly his total income for 

that assessment year will be computed in accordance with the other provisions of the ITA. 

 

For the purpose of aforesaid clauses ñNon-Resident Indianò means an Individual, being a citizen 

of India or a person of Indian origin who is not a ñresidentò. A person shall be deemed to be of 

Indian origin if he, or either of his parents or any of his grand-parents, was born in undivided 

India. 

 

B.2 Non-resident shareholders ï Foreign Institutional Investors 

 

1. The Company is required to pay a ódividend distribution taxô currently at the rate of 16.60875% 

(including applicable surcharge and education cess) on the total amount distributed or declared or 

paid as dividend (interim/final). Under Section 10(34) of the IT Act, income by way of dividend 

referred to in Section 115-O received on the shares of the Company is exempt from income tax in 

the hands of shareholders. However it is pertinent to note that Section 14A of the IT Act restricts 

claim for deduction of expenses incurred in relation to exempt income. 

 

2. The characterization of the gains/losses, arising from sale of shares, as capital gains or business 

income would depend on the nature of holding (whether for investment or trading in Equity 

Shares) in the hands of the shareholder and various other factors. 

 

3. (a) The long-term capital gains accruing to the shareholders of the Company on sale of the 

Companyôs shares in a transaction carried out through a recognized stock exchange in 

India, and where such transaction is chargeable to STT, is exempt from tax as per 

provisions of Section 10(38). 

 

(b) The short-term capital gains accruing / arising to the members of the Company on sale of 

the Companyôs equity shares in a transaction carried out through a recognized stock 
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exchange in India, and where such transaction is chargeable to STT, tax will be 

chargeable at 15% plus applicable surcharge and education cess as per provisions of 

Section 111A. In other case, i.e. where the transaction is not subjected to STT, as per the 

provisions of Section 115AD of the Act, the short term capital gains would be chargeable 

to tax at 30% plus applicable surcharge and education cess. 

 

(c) As per the provisions of Section 115AD of the Act, long term gains accruing to the 

shareholders of the Company from the transfer of shares of the Company being listed in 

recognized stock exchanges and purchased in foreign currency, otherwise than as 

mentioned in point 3(a) above, are chargeable to tax at 10% plus applicable surcharge 

and education cess. The benefit of indexation and the adjustment with respect to 

fluctuation in foreign exchange rate would not be allowed to such shareholders. The 

filing of return under section 139(1) for income computed under Section 115AD is 

mandatory. Further, where the Gross Total Income (GTI) of the members includes any 

income on which tax has been paid as per special rates provided under Section 115AD, 

then the GTI shall be reduced by the amount of such income and deduction under chapter 

VIA shall be allowed in respect of reduced GTI. 

 

(d) The shareholders are entitled to claim exemption in respect of tax on long term capital 

gains under Section 54EC of the IT Act, if the amount of capital gains is invested in 

certain specified bonds /securities within six months from the date of transfer subject to 

the fulfillment of the conditions specified therein. The maximum investment permissible 

for the purposes of claiming the exemption in the notified bonds by any person in a 

financial year is Rs. 5o Lacs. However, according to section 54 EC(2) of the IT Act, if 

the shareholder transfers or converts (otherwise than by transfer) the notified bonds into 

money within a period of three years from the date of their acquisition, the amount of 

capital gains exempted earlier would become chargeable to tax as long term capital gains 

in the year in which such bonds are transferred or otherwise converted (otherwise than by 

transfer) into money.  

 

4.  Under the provisions of Section 90(2) of the IT Act, if the provisions of the DTAA between India 

and the country of residence of the non-resident are more beneficial, then the provisions of the 

DTAA shall be applicable. 

 

5. As per Section 74 Short-term capital loss suffered during the year is allowed to be set-off against 

short-term as well as long-term capital gains of the said year. Balance loss, if any, could be carried 

forward for eight years for claiming set-off against subsequent yearsô short term as well as long 

term capital gains. Long-term capital loss suffered during the year is allowed to be set-off against 

long term capital gains. Balance loss, if any, could be carried forward for eight years for claiming 

set-off against subsequent yearsô long-term capital gains. 

 

III.  Tax Benefits available to the shareholders under the Wealth Tax Act, 1957 

 

Equity Shares of company held by the shareholder will not be treated as an asset within the meaning of 

Section 2(ea) of Wealth Tax Act, 1957. Hence no Wealth Tax will be payable on the market value of shares 

of the Company held by the shareholder of the Company.  

 

IV.  Tax Benefits available to the shareholders under the Gift Tax Act, 1958 

 

Gift Tax is not leviable in respect of any gifts made on or after 1st October, 1998. Therefore, any gift of 

shares of the Company will not attract gift tax. 

 

V. Benefits available to Mutual Funds 

 

As per the provisions of Section 10(23D) of the IT Act, any income of Mutual Funds registered under the 

SEBI Act, 1992 or regulations made thereunder, Mutual Funds set up by public sector banks or public 
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financial institutions or Mutual Funds authorised by RBI would be exempt from income tax, subject to the 

conditions as the Central Government may by notification in the Official Gazette specify in this behalf. 

However, Mutual Funds will be liable to pay tax on distributed income to unit holders under Section 115R 

of the IT Act. 

 

VI.  Tax Deduction at Source 

 

No income-tax is deductible at source from income by way of capital gains under the present provisions of 

the IT Act, in case of residents. However, as per the provisions of section 195 of the IT Act, any income by 

way of capital gains, payable to non residents (other than long-term capital gains exempt under section 

10(38) of the IT Act), may be eligible to the provisions of with-holding tax, subject to the provisions of the 

relevant tax treaty. Accordingly income tax may have to be deducted at source in the case of a non- resident 

at the rate under the domestic tax laws or under the tax treaty, whichever is beneficial to the assessee unless 

a lower withholding tax certificate is obtained from the tax authorities. As per section 196D, no tax is to be 

deducted from any income, by way of capital gains arising from the transfer of shares payable to Foreign 

Institutional Investor. 

 

Notes: 

 

Å The above Statement of Possible Direct Tax Benefits sets out the provisions of law in a summary manner 

only and is not a complete analysis or listing of all potential tax consequences of the purchase, ownership 

and disposal of equity shares; 

Å The above Statement of Possible Direct Tax Benefits sets out the possible tax benefits available to the 

Company and its shareholders under the current tax laws presently in force in India.  

Å This statement is only intended to provide general information to the investors and is neither designed nor 

intended to be a substitute for professional tax advice. In view of the individual nature of the tax 

consequences, the changing tax laws, each investor is advised to consult his or her own tax consultant with 

respect to the specific tax implications arising out of their participation in the issue; 

Å In respect of non-residents, the tax rates and the consequent taxation mentioned above shall be further 

subject to any benefits available under the Double Taxation Avoidance Agreement, if any, between India and 

the country in which the non-resident has fiscal domicile; and 

Å The stated benefits will be available only to the sole/first named holder in case the shares are held by joint 

share holders. 
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SECTION IV: ABOUT THE COMPANY  

 

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW  

 

The information in this section is derived from a combination of various official and unofficial publicly available 

materials and sources of information. It has not been independently verified by the Company, the Selling 

Shareholders, the GCBRLMs and the BRLMs or their respective legal or financial advisors, and no representation 

is made as to the accuracy of this information, which may be inconsistent with information available or compiled 

from other sources.  

 

Global Textile and Apparel (T&A) Industry  

 

The removal of quota regime on January 1, 2005 significantly changed the global textiles and apparel trade. The 

international textile trade between nations saw manifold increases as the manufacturing base shifted to relatively 

low-cost Asian countries such as China, Bangladesh, India, Indonesia and Malaysia. Asian countries became the key 

exporters, and the high-cost producers and key consumers like the U.S. and the EU became the key importers.  

 

In 2009, world apparel production stood at US$140 billion, with 71% of production accounted for by Asian 

countries. The U.S. and the EU accounted for 11% and 14% of global production respectively.  

 

As a mature industry segment, the growth rate of the global Textile and Apparel industry mirrors the growth rate in 

global GDP. Of the total apparel retail market valued at approximately US$500 billion in 2009, and the U.S. and the 

EU accounted for 33% and 30% respectively.  

 

World Apparel Production* ï Break-up 2009 World Apparel Market
#
 ï Break-up 2009 

  

* Whole-sale level; 
#
 Retail level 

Source: CARE Research 

 

Outlook on Indian economy 

 

India, the worldôs largest democracy in terms of population had a Gross Domestic Product (GDP) on purchasing 

power parity basis at approximately US$3,561 bn in 2009 with Indiaôs GDP at 7.4% for FY10 (Source Central 

Intelligence Agency Factbook 2009 & RBI). This makes it the fourth-largest economy in the world after USA, 

China and Japan. During the pre-liberalisation period, India was always considered an agrarian economy adhering to 

socialist policies with more than 70% of the GDP being contributed by agriculture growth. In 1991, the Government 

of India (GoI) initiated a series of economic reforms to promote industrial growth to bring in economic stability and 

growth. The new policies (liberal) included opening of international trade and investment, privatisation, tax reforms 

etc to transform the economy from socialism to capitalism. Due to this, the low annual growth rate of the economy 

of India which stagnated at about 3.5% from 1950s to 1980s has increased to above 8% average GDP growth from 

2004-2009. This makes India one of the fastest growing emerging economies in the world. CARE Research expects 

the overall GDP to touch the double digit figure by 2015 at 10% led by higher domestic consumption and growth in 

exports.  
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GDP Growth Rate - India 

FY 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011(E) 2012(E) 2013(E) 2014(E) 2015(E) 

GDP 9.49 9.71 9.22 6.72 7.44 8.50 9.00 9.00 9.50 10.00 

Agriculture  5.25 3.68 4.73 1.58 0.22 4.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 4.00 

Services 11.10 10.17 10.51 9.75 8.53 10.00 11.00 11.00 11.50 11.50 

Industry  9.28 12.75 9.49 3.87 9.27 8.50 9.00 9.50 10.00 10.50 
 

Source: RBI & CARE Research (Economics Cell) 

 

The Index of Industrial Production (IIP), a barometer of the manufacturing activity in the country, has shown a 

growth of 11.6% in the first quarter of FY11 as against the growth of 3.9% in the same quarter of the FY10. The 

strong performance of IIP in last few months and the improving business sentiment underscores that the Indian 

economy is firmly on the recovery path. The recuperating demand conditions on the back of the government 

stimulus package, improving employment situation, resumption in foreign capital inflows, recovering financial 

markets and stabilising export demand have supported growth momentum of the Indian economy. GDP growth of 

7.4% during FY10 has been one of the highest achieved globally during the difficult times.  

 

According to CARE Ratingôs Economic Research team, Indiaôs GDP growth is expected to accelerate to about 8.5% 

in FY11 and further increase to 9% in FY12. Robust recovery seen in the last quarter of FY10 is likely to continue 

the momentum, driven by buoyant performance of the industrial sector, a better performance of the monsoon 

relative to last year, and sustained resilience of services sector. 

 

Indian T&A Industry  

 

The Indian T&A industry is estimated on the basis of industry interactions by CARE Research to be worth Rs. 2,700 

billion in 2010. It has witnessed robust growth over the last two decades, especially in the period after the abolition 

of the Quota regime on January 1, 2005, which led to free cross-border textile trade. India is positioned as a key 

manufacturing destination with inexpensive labor, abundant cotton supplies and healthy designing skills. 

Approximately 65% of the total T&A production (wholesale price level) is consumed domestically. Indiaôs domestic 

textiles and apparel consumption is estimated by CARE Research at Rs. 1,750 billion (wholesale level), of which 

apparel accounts for approximately 71%. India exported US$20 billion worth of textiles and apparel of which 45% 

are apparel exports.  

 

Indian T&A industry  

 
Note: Exchange Rate: US$1.00 = Rs. 47 

Source: CARE Research, Office of Textile Commissioner 
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T&A is one of the largest and the most important sectors for the Indian economy in terms of output, foreign 

exchange earnings and employment. It contributes approximately 14% of Indiaôs industrial production, 4% of the 

country's GDP and 17% of the countryôs export earnings. It provides direct employment to over 35 million people 

and is the second largest provider of employment after agriculture. The development of this sector has had a 

significant overall impact on the economy. Indian T&A makes up approximately 4% of the global T&A market. As 

an industry with economic importance, the textile industry has always been able to attract the concern of the 

government. The government has therefore introduced policies such as TUFS, SITP, low excise duty, high import 

duty (to discourage imports) and NTP to benefit the development of the textile sector.  

 

The largest sector of the textile industry is the decentralized power-loom and knitting sector. The major sub-sectors 

that comprise the textile sector include the organized Cotton/Man-made Fiber Textile Mill Industry, the Man-made 

Fiber/Filament Yarn Industry, the Wool & Woolen Textile Industry, the Sericulture and Silk Textiles Industry, 

Handlooms, the Jute & Jute Textiles Industry and Textiles Exports. 

 

A growing economy, rising disposable incomes and the growing aspirations of Indian consumers are expected to 

continue driving growth in the Indian T&A industry.  

 

Indian Apparel Industry 

 

According to CARE Research estimates (based on industry interactions), the Indian apparel market grew at a CAGR 

of 6.5% from Rs. 1,225 billion in 2005 to Rs. 1,675 billion in 2010 (wholesale level). The Indian apparel market 

comprises domestic apparel consumption and exports. The domestic market is estimated to be worth Rs. 1,250 

billion in 2010 (at the wholesale level). Domestic retail level spending on apparel has been growing at a rate of 

around 13 ï 14 %. The apparel market size at the retail level is estimated by CARE Research at Rs. 2,000 billion in 

2010. According to CARE Research, the retail purchase of apparel is expected to double to approximately Rs. 4,000 

billion by 2015, a CAGR of approximately 15%, due in large part to the following factors: 

 

1. Rising level of disposable income: According to CMIE data, per capita disposable income grew at a 

CAGR of close to 13% over the period from 2005 to 2010. This rise in disposable income led to a healthy 

growth in the consumption of apparel. Per capita disposable income is expected to grow at a similar rate 

over the next five years, thereby driving growth in the demand for apparel. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Source: CARE Research 

Source: CMIE 
 

2. Growing preference for ready-to-wear apparel: The rapid shift in preference from tailor-made to ready-

to-wear apparel should drive growth in the Indian apparel industry. This is primarily due to the easy 

availability of ready-to-wear apparel in different sizes, pattern and colors. High pressure work 
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environments leave the consumer with little time to go to the tailor, leading to an increase in the demand 

for ready-to-wear apparel. 

 

3. Increasing penetration of organized retail: The robust growth of the Indian retail market is another 

driver of the growth of the Indian apparel market. The increasing number of retail outlets should boost 

growth in the Indian clothing industry. Changing preferences towards a mall-culture of shopping and the 

related opening of large numbers of new malls, multi-brand outlets, exclusive brand outlets, lifestyle stores, 

and other retail outlets are driving growth in apparel sales.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Source: CARE Research 

 

4. Changing consumer habits: As the lifestyles of Indiaôs prosperous urban consumers have evolved, their 

clothing needs have broadened, reflecting a greater number of occasions for clothing styles. For men, 

clothing choices once fit into three basic categories: home-wear, work clothes, and special occasion wear. 

Now, with more ñsocializingò opportunities, men are buying more sophisticated combinations of outfits: 

party wear, sportswear, or clothes for going out to the mall. This is also true for women, especially in 

metropolitan areas and larger towns. 

 

5.  Increasing trend towards urbanization: The urbanization rate in India was just 28% of the population in 

2005. Indiaôs urbanization rate is among the lowest in the world, but by 2025, the number of Indians living 

in cities is expected to grow by 300 million. These new urban dwellers will demand apparel in new styles 

and fashions to match their new lifestyles. 

 

6. Comparatively younger populace: The median age of Indiaôs population is 25, which relatively low in 

comparison to the global average of around 28 years. A younger population spends more on lifestyle 

products as compared to an older population thereby driving growth in the Indian fashion apparel market. 

 

Out of the Rs.1,675 billion Indian apparel market (wholesale price), approximately 75% is consumed 

domestically. The domestic apparel market is expected by CARE Research to grow from Rs. 1,250 billion 

in 2009 to Rs. 1,800 billion in 2015, a CAGR of 7.6%. Exports are expected by CARE Research to grow at 

a CAGR of 18% from Rs. 425 billion in 2010 to Rs. 975 billion in 2015.  
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Outlook for the Indian Apparel Market - Rs. billion 
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Source: CARE Research 

 

Domestic Apparel Market 

 

The domestic Indian apparel market can be divided into three segments,  

 

 Menôs apparel; 

 Womenôs apparel; and 

 Kids' apparel (including uniforms). 

  

Menôs apparel is the largest segment of the domestic Indian apparel market, with a 41.5% market share. The level of 

penetration of organized manufacturers and brands is the most in this segment of the market. The size of the men's 

apparel segment is expected to grow at a rate of 6.8% from 2010 to 2015, and will continue to enjoy the largest 

share in the domestic apparel market. 

 

Source: CARE Research 

 

At the wholesale level, CARE Research expects, the domestic apparel market to grow from Rs. 1,250 billion in 2009 

to Rs. 1,800 billion in 2015, a CAGR of 7.6%. Menôs apparel, the largest segment, is expected to grow at a CAGR 

of 6.8%, from Rs. 519 billion in 2010 to Rs. 720 billion in 2015.  

 

 

 

 

Segment-wise break-up ï 2010(E) Segment-wise break-up ï 2015(E) 
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Shirts
36.8%

Trousers
25.7%

Suits
8.7%

T-Shirts
8.0%

Inner-wear
7.2%

Others
13.6%

Segment-wise Market Size ï 2010 (E) ï 2015 (P) - Rs. Billion 

 
Source: CARE Research 

 

At the retail level, the growth rates are expected to be much higher at 14% ï 15% per annum. According to CARE 

Research, retail purchase of apparel is expected to double from Rs. 2,000 billion in 2010 to approximately Rs. 4,000 

billion by 2015, a CAGR of approximately 15%. Retail spending on womenôs wear is expected to grow at higher 

rate. 

 

Menswear 

 

According to CARE Research, menôs apparel is the largest segment in the Indian apparel market. CARE Research 

estimates the market size at Rs. 519 billion in 2010 and it is expected to grow at a CAGR of 6.8% to Rs. 720 billion 

in 2015. The level of penetration of organized manufacturers and brands is the most in this segment of the domestic 

apparel market. Shirts, trousers and suits contribute almost 71.2% to the domestic apparel market and these 

segments are expected to maintain their market share in the future. The T-shirts market is expected to experience the 

highest growth over the next 5 years. Other menôs garments include casual and leather jackets, nightwear, woolens 

and dhotis/lungis. Brand loyalty factor is high amongst the menswear segment, especially in the premium and super 

premium segment. 

 

Category-wise break-up Menswear ï 2010(E) Category-wise break-up Menswear ï 2015(P) 

 
 

Source: CARE Research 
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Source: CARE Research 

 

Menôs shirts 

 

CARE Research valued the market in menôs shirts at Rs. 191 billion in 2010. Menôs shirts, as a single product 

category, commands the largest market share (36.8%) in the menswear segment with the greatest number of 

manufacturers and brands competing in the market. This market is expected to grow at a CAGR of 6.4% over the 

next five years, and is projected to be worth Rs. 261 billion in 2015. The growth in this product category at the retail 

level is expected to be at a CAGR of 13% from Rs. 420 billion in 2010 to Rs. 770 billion in 2015. Growth can be 

attributed to the increased penetration of ready-to-wear shirts in the market place, especially in the rural markets, 

rising income levels and the easy availability of ready-to-wear shirts in various colors, sizes and patterns at malls 

and local garment retailers. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Louis Vuitton, Chanel, Gucci, 

Zegna, Dunhill 

Nautica, Lacoste, Manzoni, Gant, Espirit, 

Tommy, Stephens Brothers 

Lohis Philippe, Wills Lifestyle, Van 

Heusen,Raymond, Zodiac, Reid & Taylor, 

Kruger 

Peter England, Koutons, Excalibur, 

John Players, Belmonte 

Regional Brands, World Player 

Unbranded 



 

67 

Menôs Shirts ï 2010(E) ï 2015(P) ï Rs. Billion 
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Source: CARE Research 

 

The market for menôs shirts can be divided into five categories by price point. Rising income levels, increasing 

eagerness to buy and the popularization of formal wear at the workplace is driving growth in the super premium, 

premium and medium shirts category. The highest growth is expected in the super premium category, followed by 

the premium category. This can also be attributed to the introduction of more domestic and international brands in 

these categories. 

 

Category-wise breakup of Menôs Shirts 

Menôs Shirts 2006 2010(E) 2015(P) 

Super premium (Rs.1,800-Above) 1.5% 2.2% 2.8% 

Premium (Rs.1,200-Rs.1,800) 9.4% 10.8% 12.0% 

Medium (Rs. 700 ï Rs.1,200) 17.4% 18.5% 20.0% 

Economy (Rs. 400 ï Rs. 700) 23.5% 23.6% 23.8% 

Low (Up to Rs. 400) 48.2% 44.9% 41.4% 

Source: Images yearbook business of fashion 2010, Volume VII, No. 1 (Images), CARE Research 

 

Menôs Trousers 

 

The trousers category is the second largest category in menôs apparel, accounting for 25.7% of the menswear apparel 

market. The trousers market is expected to grow at a CAGR of 7.1% from Rs. 133 billion in 2010 to Rs. 188 billion 

in 2015. At present, retail penetration in the menôs trousers category is not as high as for menôs shirts. However, this 

is changing, with a growing preference for ready-to-wear trousers on the demand side and the availability of ready-

to-wear trousers in various brands, sizes, colors, designs and fabrics on supply side. Growth in this product category 

at the retail level is expected to be at a CAGR of 14% from Rs. 319 billion in 2010 to Rs. 633 billion in 2015. 
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Menôs Trousers ï 2010(E) ï 2015(P) ï Rs. billion 
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Source: CARE Research 

 

The low priced trouser segment (below Rs. 300) contributed 50% of total trouser sales in 2009. The share of low 

priced trousers is expected to fall to 45% in 2014 due to an increase in per capita disposable income, enabling buyers 

to graduate to higher price point categories. The greatest growth has been observed in the premium and super 

premium categories during the period from 2006 to 2009. These two categories collectively accounted for a 23.9% 

share in 2009. This share is expected to grow to 28% in 2014. The products in this segment mainly sell through 

organized retail especially exclusive brand outlets (Raymonds, Reid & Taylor, Cottons) and multi brand outlets 

(Shoppers Stop, Pantaloons, Lifestyle). Growth in these categories will primarily be driven by the easy availability 

of luxury brands, rising levels of brand consciousness and formal wear culture at the workplace.  

 

Category-wise breakup of Menôs Trousers 

Menôs Trousers FY06 2010(E) 2015(P) 

Super premium (Rs. 3,500-Above) 1.8% 2.5% 3.0% 

Premium (Rs. 1,500 ï Rs. 3, 500) 15.2% 21.4% 25.0% 

Medium (Rs 800- Rs. 1500) 15.6% 16.2% 17.0% 

Economy (Rs. 300 ï Rs. 800) 9.3% 9.6% 10.0% 

Low (Up to Rs. 300) 58.1% 50.4% 45.0% 

Source: Images, CARE Research 

 

Menôs Formal Suits 

 

The current market size of the formal suits, jackets and blazers segment is estimated at Rs. 45 billion. This segment 

is expected to grow at a CAGR of 7% over the next five years, with a projected worth of Rs. 63 billion in 2015. This 

growth can be attributed to the rapid shift from tailored to ready-to-wear suits, rising disposable income, the growing 

service sector and the influence of multinational corporations. Growth in this product category at the retail level is 

expected to be at a CAGR of 14% from Rs. 319 billion in 2010 to Rs. 633 billion in 2015. 
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Menôs Suits ï 2010(E) ï 2015(P) ï Rs. Billion 
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Source: CARE Research 

 

Lowest price suits contributed 82% to total suit sales in 2009 in value terms. This segment is expected to shrink over 

the years as more people graduate to the relatively costlier economy and medium segments. The premium segment 

is expected to see a growth in its share from 4.8% in 2009 to 6% in 2014. The increase in this category can be 

attributed to the increasing preference of executives to wear formal attire at office meetings. The premium and super 

premium category is expected to grow from a 10.5% market share in 2009 to 11.2% in 2014. This would primarily 

be driven by an increasing number of foreign brands entering into India, rising income levels, increases in the size of 

the working population and rising brand consciousness amongst the Indian youth. According to CARE Research 

estimates, Reid & Taylor holds a market share of 7.5% in the premium suiting segment. 

 

Category-wise breakup of Menôs Formal Suits 

Men's Suits 2006 2009(E) 2014(P) 

Super premium (Rs.8,000-above) 2.0% 2.5% 3.0% 

Premium (Rs.4,500-Rs.8,000) 8.0% 8.0% 8.2% 

Medium (Rs.2,500 ï Rs. 4,500) 4.0% 4.8% 6.0% 

Economy (Rs.1,200-Rs.2,500) 2.5% 2.7% 3.0% 

Low (Upto Rs.1,200) 83.5% 82.0% 78.8% 

Source: Images, CARE Research 

 

Worsted Fabrics 

 

Worsted fabric is a blended form of fabric in which one of the components is wool. The wool can be blended with 

both, man-made or cotton fiber to form a worsted fabric.  

 

According to CARE Research estimates based on industry interactions, 45 million meters of worsted fabric were 

produced in 2009. There have been minimal additions over the past five years. The industry is expected to produce 

52 million meters of worsted fabric in 2014. This projected growth can be attributed to the rising income levels, 

reductions in the price gap with competing fabrics and increasing preference for wool blended fabric among Indian 

consumers due to its grace and style. The average price for worsted fabric is approximately Rs.450 per meter and it 

operates primarily in the premium, super premium and luxury segment. The industry has a total installed capacity of 

0.604 million spindles as of 2009. Major players in the worsted fabric business are Raymond, Reid and Taylor, 

Digjam, Dinesh, OCM and Vimal. Though Raymond is the market leader in the worsted fabric business, Reid and 

Taylor has managed to increase its market share over the last few years.  
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Worsted Fabric Production ï Millions of Meters 

 
Source: CARE Research, Textiles association of India  

 

Worsted Fabric Market Share - 2010 

 
Source: CARE Research, Textiles Association of India 

 

Indian Retail Industry  

 

According to CARE Research estimates, the Indian retail industry was worth Rs. 20,000 billion in 2008. It is 

projected to grow at a CAGR of 12% to reach Rs. 35,500 billion in 2015. This growth would primarily be driven by 

higher disposable incomes and changing customer psyche towards discretionary spending. Rising disposable 

income, increasing working population, weekend culture, a relatively younger populace and growing urbanization 

are some of the structural factors which will inject high growth in the retail industry. 

 

The organised retail market size stood at Rs. 1,236 billion in 2010. CARE Research expects it to grow at a CAGR of 

23% to reach Rs. 3,500 billion in 2015. It is expected to grow at a pace faster than the overall retail industry thereby 

taking the penetration levels from 6% in 2010 to 10% in 2015. This growth would be primarily backed by the rising 

preference for branded apparel, increases in the number of malls in smaller towns and tier II cities and increases in 

the number of exclusive brand outlets (EBOs). The opening up of specialty stores and specialty malls should also 

drive growth in the organised retail market.  

 

Compared to developed nations such as the U.S., U.K. and other European countries, organized retailing in India is 

still in a nascent stage. Considering that emerging nations such as China and Brazil required 15 - 20 years to raise 

the share of organised retail from 5% in their respective countries to present levels of around 25% and 40%, 
















































































































































































































































































































































































































































